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HK$
Us$
RMB
107.89 UFJ 2020 20
12 31
2010 2010 11 26
Teeroy Limited
2013 2013 10 23
Teeroy Limited
BVI
2010 12 BVI
Chang Yun Holdings
Limited
PRC
WH WH Group
Limited
EUR EU
2007 23 BVI
Heroic Zone Investments Limited
2013 BVI
High Zenith Limited
IFRS
2014
Norson Holding,
S. de R.L. de C.V. 2019 12 31
50
Pini Polonia 100

Pini Polonia sp.
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2013 BVI

(Rich Matrix Global Limited)

2007 BVI
Rise Grand Group
Limited
RMB
2006 28
100
Rotary Vortex
Limited
0.0001
2006 20 BVI
Shine B
Holding 1 Limited 2015
1998 10 15
Henan Shuanghui Investment & Development Co., Ltd.
000895
1994 29
100
Henan Luohe Shuanghui Industry Group
Co., Ltd. 2019
1997 25
100
Smithfield Foods, Inc.
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited
2013 25 BVI
Sure Pass Holdings Limited
us the United States of America
us$

30 18
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76 7602B -7604A
(Unit 7602B-7604A, Level 76, International Commerce Centre, 1 Austin Road West, Kowloon,
Hong Kong)
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12 31 12 31
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
21.8 21.0 20.2 19.2 19.1
53.8 56.1 53.8 49.3 48.3
3.3 3.4 3.3 3.2 3.2

24,103 22,605 22,379 21,534 21,209

6.6 1.0 3.9 1.5 -4.6
2,031 1,650 1,583 1,788 1,557
8.4 7.3 7.1 8.3 7.3
2,052 1,411 1,501 1,703 1,302
(357) (258) (182) (465) (307)
1,695 1,153 1,319 1,238 995
1,465 943 1,133 1,036 786
230 210 186 202 209
1,695 1,153 1,319 1,238 995
1,378 1,046 1,126 1,014 866
9.96 6.43 7.79 7.58 5.75

17,282 15,298 15,258 13,611 14,301
(7,830) (6,880)  (7.036)  (6,573)  (7,598)

9,452 8,418 8,222 7,038 6,703
8,684 7,746 7,445 6,316 5,763

768 672 777 722 940
9,452 8,418 8,222 7,038 6,703
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50

2019 12 31 101 46 40
15

2019 3,650 2018 3,518
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77.1 2018 77.0

25/315



~

EDINETOOOO
O00DOo00oOo0ooo00oOo0ooOO(E30533)

Ogoooood
2019 2018 ()
( )
(€3]

— 12,331 12,147 +1.5
— 10,078 9,136 +10.3
— 937 688 +36.2
— 757 634 +19.4

24,103 22,605 +6.6
— 1,574 1,547 +1.7
— 403 246 +63.8
— 167 (113)
— ® (113) (30) +276.7

2,031 1,650 +23.1
)
)
2019
51.2 2018 53.7
2019 77.5 2018 93.8
2019 36.3
47.1 2018 32.4 55.9 2019
54.6 45.9 2018 58.3

37.3
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2019 2018 ()
( )
3,615 3,458 +4.5
7,814 7,773 +0.5
902 916 1.5
12,331 12,147 +1.5
673 712 -5.5
847 785 +7.9
54 50 +8.0
1,574 1,547 +1.7
2019 0.5 3,345
2018
2019 0.8
1.7
2019 1.5 12,331
ASP ASF
2019 2018 1.7 1,574
5.5
7.9
2019
2018 8.0

2019 2018 ()
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( )
4,725 3,584
4,467 4,790
886 762
10,078 9,136
262 179
150 48
) 19
403 246

2019 53,797 2018 4.1
19.0 13,202
ASF
2019 1.7 34,513
Pini Polonia 4.3
4,224 6.1
10.3
31.8
6.7 ASF
16.3 Pini Polonia
2018 246
46.4
2018 ASF
150
ASP 2019

2018 19
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2019 2018 ()
( )
2 8 -75.0
877 619 +41.7
58 61 -4.9
937 688 +36.2
(13) 5
83 147
97 29 +234.5
167 (113)
2019 4.1 21,805
36.2 937
167 2018 113
ASF
2019 ASF
97
2019 19.4 757
129

15 18
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2019 2018
6.6 1.0 +5.6
EBITDA
11.1 9.3 +1.8
8.4 .3 +1.1
— 12.8 12.7 +0.1
— 2.9 1.9 +1.0
— 4.1 3.2) +7.3
— 470.6 460.3 +10.3
_ 7.5 4.4 +3.1
— 7.7 (5.4) +13.1
6.7 5.6 +1.1
1.7 1.6 +0.1
43.8 36.0 +7.8
32.7 37.1 -4.4
EBITDA
1.2 1.5 -0.3
10.4 7.5 +2.9
17.8 12.4 +5.4
2019 12 31
552 2018 525 RVMB
US$ PLN RON
2019 12 31
447 2018 317
2019 12 31 1.7
2018 1.6 2019 12 31 2,874 2018

2,893
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2019
593 2018 790
74 2018 752
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2019 5.200
400 2029
2018 1,750
2019 12 31
125 2018 236
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
( ) ( )
1,787 1,788
1,177 1,051
125 236
3 3
41
3,092 3,119
2,227 2,362
680 621
185 136
3,092 3,119
2019 12 31 3,110 2018 3,134
2020 29
2021 14
2022 15
2023 10
2027 19
2029 13
100
2019 12 31 73.5 2018

78.8 HKS
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2019 12 31 98.7 2018 88.0
2019 12 31
32.7 26.9 2018 37.1 30.8 2019 12 31 EBITDA
EBITDA EBITDA EBITDA
1.2
1.0 2018 1.5 1.2
2018 115 2019 144
IFRS 16
2019 12 31 3.7 2018 3.5
IDR
BBB+ BBB
Baa2
IDR BBB
BBB-
Bal
2019 703 2018 811
2019 2018
( )
99 84
478 596
126 131

703 811

33/315



EDINETOOOO
O00DOo00oOo0ooo00oOo0ooOO(E30533)

ooooood

2019 12 31 2018 12 31 13,009 2.6 12,258

1,084 13,342 4,860

625 5,485 2018 4,515
2018 12 31 1,094 2019 12 31 1,244
104
2019 85

2019 25 Rotary Vortex Limited

Henan Luohe Shuanghui Industry Group Co.,
Ltd. Henan Shuanghui Investment &
Development Co., Ltd.
2019

73.41
73.25

2019 28 Pini Polonia Sp. z o.o. Pini Polonia 66.5
Pini Polonia

Pini Polonia
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2019
2.6

Dominion Energy RNG Holdings, Inc.

LLC

Monarch Bio Energy, LCC

2020

GCM

GCM

Align RNG, LLC

Monarch
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2019
11 2018
153
Align Roeslein Alternative Energy,
Align Monarch
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2019
2.22 1.74
71.6 81.9 76.8
24.64 33.80 7.63
89.9
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2019 12 31

50,000,000,000 14,720,749,758 35,279,250,242
2019 12 31
0.0001
14,720,749,7
0.0001 0,749,758
14,720,749,758
2019 12 31
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2016 10 2,388,000 | 14,650,809,111 238.8 1,465,080.9111
2016 12 260,000 | 14,651,069,111 26 1,465,106.9111
2017 11,500 | 14,651,080,611 1.15 1,465,108.0611
2017 1,734,500 | 14,652,815,111 173.45 1,465,281.5111
2017 52,500 | 14,652,867,611 5.25 1,465,286.7611
2017 2,003,000 | 14,654,870,611 200.3 1,465,487.0611
2017 3,101,000 | 14,657,971,611 310.1 1,465,797.1611
2017 10 872,500 | 14,658,844,111 87.25 1,465,884.4111
2017 11 800,000 | 14,659,644,111 80 1,465,964.4111 | 1PO
2017 12 4,585,000 | 14,664,229,111 458.5 1,466,422.9111
2018 11,255,000 | 14,675,484,111 1,125.5 1,467,548.4111
2019 557,500 | 14,676,041,611 55.75 1,467,604.1611
2019 9,697,500 | 14,685,739,111 969.75 1,468,573.9111
2019 23,562,000 | 14,709,301,111 2,356.2 1,470,930.1111
2019 359,500 | 14,709,660,611 35.95 1,470,966.0611
2019 886,000 | 14,710,546,611 88.6 1,471,054.6611
2019 74,000 | 14,710,620,611 7.4 1,471,062.0611
2019 145,291 | 14,710,765,902 14.5291 | 1,471,076.5902
2019 10 6,024,754 | 14,716,790,656 602.4754 | 1,471,679.0656
2019 11 2,459,102 | 14,719,249,758 245.9102 | 1,471,924.9758
2019 12 1,500,000 | 14,720,749,758 150 1,472,074.9758
1PO 40
2019 12 31
3,473,820,000 23.60
3,473,820,000 23.60
2020 24 2019 12 31
0.265 2018 0.15 2019 10
0.05 2019 12 31
0.315 2018 0.20 4,638 595
2018 2,940 375 2020
2020 2020
2019 12 31 4,703

39/315



EDINETOOOO
O00DOo00oOo0ooo00oOo0ooOO(E30533)
oOoOooodn

14

10

2019 31
1,899,000

Luohe Jiaxin Investment Co., Ltd. 100 Guo Jiaxing
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5/5 N/A N/A 1/1 N/A 2/2 1/1 1/1 N/A
5/5 N/A N/A N/A 2/2 2/2 N/A 1/1 N/A
5/5 N/A N/A N/A 2/2 N/A 1/1 1/1 N/A
5/5 N/A N/A N/A 2/2 2/2 1/1 0/1 N/A
5/5 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 1/1 0/1 N/A
5/5 N/A 1/1 N/A N/A N/A N/A 0/1 N/A
5/5 3/3 1/1 1/1 N/A N/A N/A 0/1 N/A
5/5 3/3 1/1 N/A N/A 1/2 0/1 1/1 N/A
5/5 3/3 N/A 1/1 2/2 N/A N/A 1/1 N/A
N/A
CPD

CPD
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3,000,001 3,500,000 1
3,500,001 4,000,000 1
4,500,001 5,000,000 1
7,000,001 7,500,000 1
45,000,001 50,000,000 1
60,000,001 65,000,000 1

2014 17

()
D) (i)
(iv)
()
(vi)
(vii)
3.13

3.13
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(i) ESG
(i) ESG
(iv)

(H

(i)

1))

(i)

@iv)
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ERM
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12.3 10
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www .wh-group.com
Wan Long
Wan Long 79 2007 10 16 2010 11 26
2013 12 31
2013 10 2012
20 000895
1968 Henan Luohe Meat Products
Processing United Factory 1984
50 1998 2003 2008 2013
12 China’ s National People’ s Congress 2001
China Meat Association 2006 12 2011 12
China Meat Association 1991
Henan University of Animal Husbandry and Economy The Henan Business
College 1999
Henan Province Advanced Professional Titles Adjudication Committee (Economic Disciplines )
Wan Hongjian
Wan Hongjian 51 2018 26 2018
2018 14 2016
1990 10
1991 12 Henan Luche Meat Products Processing United Factory
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1992 1993 10
1993 11 2010

1990

Radio and Television University

Guo Lijun

Guo Lijun 49 2013 12 31
2013 10 2014
1993 1996

Meat Products Processing United Factory
1996 2001
Industry Co., Ltd.
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2012 2013 10
2015 11 2016
Henan
2016
2014 2016
20

Henan Luohe

Luohe Chinachem Shuanghui Packaging

Luohe Chinachem Shuanghui Plastic Processing

Co., Ltd. 2001 2012
2012
2013 10
000895
1994 Henan Radio and Television University
2004 12 Graduate School of Renmin
University 1994 10

PRC Ministry of Personnel
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56 2016 22 2015 12
2016
2003
2003 2007
2007 2010 2012
2013 2013 10 2015 10 2015
10 2015 12
12
1993 1988
Ma Xiangjie
Ma Xiangjie 48 2018 26 2018
000895 2018 22 2017 12 26
2012 25 2017 12 25
24 2008 2010
2010 2012
2001 Shuanghui Development Ingredients Factory 2003
Luohe Shineway Haiying Seasoning Food Co., Ltd.
2004 Luohe Tianrui Biochemicals Co., Ltd.
2012 10 26 Luohe Shuanghui Food Sales Co., Ltd.

2013 22 Fuxin Shuanghui Meat Processing Co., Ltd.

2013 22 Heilongjiang Baoquanling Shuanghui
Beidahuang Food Co., Ltd. 2013 11 19 Shaanxi Shuanghui
Food Co., Ltd.

1996 Henan Agricultural University
2005 Graduate School of Renmin University
2010 Northwest A&F University
2003 2019

Jiao Shuge
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Jiao Shuge 54 2006 28 2010 11 26
2018 14
2013 12 31 2012 20
000895
CDH
1989 1995 710 China Aerospace Service and
Technology Corporation 1995 12 2002
China International Capital Corporation Ltd.
China Mengniu Dairy Co., Ltd. 02319
2004 18 2012 12 2012 12
2005 13
2012 22 China Yurun Food Group Limited
01068 2005 11 30 2014 16
China Shanshui Cement Group Co., Ltd. 00691
2007 12 38 Joyoung Company Limited
002242 2015 China Southern Airlines
Company Limited 1055
1986 Shandong University 1989 10
No. 2 Research Institute of Ministry of Aeronautics and Astronautics of
China
Huang Ming
Huang Ming 56 2014 16
1996 1998
1998 2001 2001 2005
Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business 2004 2005
2008 2010 2010
2019 China Europe International Business School
2006 2009 Shanghai University of Finance and
Economics 2005
2014 JD.com, Inc.
JD 2018 360
360 Security Technology Inc. 601360
SJEC Corporation 601313
2011 2014 Tebon

Securities Co., Ltd. 2011 2016 360
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Qihoo 360 Technology Co. Ltd. QIHU 2016
18 2011 2017 12 Guosen
Securities Co. Ltd. 2013 10 2017 12
00867 2009 10 2019
01777 2018 2019 H
China Shenhua Energy Company Limited H
1088 A 601088
2008 2020
Yingli Green Energy Holding Company Limited 2018
17 YGE
1985 1991
1996
Lee Conway Kong Wai
Lee Conway Kong Wai 65 2014 16
.y 00051 Fhaowel Pow?r- Holdings 2010
02233 West China Cement Limited 2010
01117 2010 12
) o Gome Electrical Appliances 2011
Holding Limited 00493 o )
Limited 02222 NVC-nghtlng Hofdlng 2012 11
Holdings Ltd. Ol;;?hlll Internatlfnal 2013 11
Limited 0451 GCF New Energy Holdings 2014
Limited 168 China Rundong Auto Group 2014
Guotai Junan Securities 2017
Co., Ltd. GTJA 02611
2017 GTJA 601211
2014 2015 Merry Garden Holdings
Limited 01237 2009 10 2013
China Taiping Insurance Holdings Company Limited
00966 2009 10 2011 12
SVX 2011 11 2016 CITIC
Securities Company Limited 06030 2011 2020 5100
Tibet 5100 Water Resources Holdings Ltd. 01115
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1980 2009
2008 2017 1980
1988
Lau, Jin Tin Don
Lau, Jin Tin Don 63 2014 16
2013 2017 Spring Real Estate
Investment Trust 01426
Spring Asset Management Limited
2013 Yuexiu
Property Company Limited 00123
2005 2010 Yuexiu Real Estate Investment Trust
00405 Yuexiu

REIT Asset Management Limited
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Qiao Haili
Qiao Haili 55 2019
000895
2014 11 2019
2016 11 2012 2014 10
2009 2012
1986 1995
1995 1998
1998 2004 10 Luohe
Shuanghui Canned Foods Company Limited 2001 11 2004 10
2004 11 2009 Shuanghui Development Meat
Processing Division Factory
1986 Zhengzhou Junior College of Animal Husbandry and
Veterinary Medicine 2005 3 Graduate
School of Renmin University 1998 12
Wang Yufen
Wang Yufen 52 2012
000895 1998 21
28 1987 10 1991
Henan Luohe Meat Products Processing United Factory Meat Product Branch 1991
1992 Henan Luohe Meat Products Processing United Factory
Meat Product Branch 1992 1993 Henan Luohe
Meat Products Processing United Factory Meat Product Branch 1993 1998
Henan Luohe Meat Products Processing United Factory Food
Institute 1998 2001 11
1997 Zhengzhou University of Light Industry
2002 2005

Graduate School of Renmin University

Liu Songtao
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Liu Songtao 43 2017 12 26
000895
2012 25 2017 12 25

2012
Shuanghui Development Luohe Slaughter Factory
Luohe Huayi Food Co., Ltd.

Henan University

64 1995
2008
1978
1983
46 2015 10
19
2000
1995
Chau Ho
Chau Ho 54 2014
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China Rongsheng Heavy Industries Group Holdings Limited

01101

20

oOoOooodn
2003
2003
2002 2003
2000
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00845
1994 10 2010
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( )
2019 12 31 ( )
( 38 59 ) 131
107.89 UFJ 2020 20
( ( 23 103 )
) (

23 25 ) 193
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@
12 31
2019 2018
5 24,103 24,103 22,605 22,605
(19,209) 338 (18,871) (18,103) 196 (17,907)
4,894 338 5,232 4,502 196 4,698
(2,059) - (2,059) (2,139) (2,139)
(811) - (811) (732) (732)
(208) (208) (209) (209)
22) 22) (130) (130)
6 59 59 98 98
7 53 53 (1) (21)
8 (63) (63) (74) )
9 (144) (144) (115) (115)
4 4 8 8
13 () 11 23 4 27
10 1,946 106 2,052 1,550 (139) 1,411
12 (336) (21) (357) (293) 35 (258)
1,610 85 1,695 1,257 (104) 1,153
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12 31
2019 2018

5 2,600,473 - 2,600,473 2,438,854 - 2,438,854
(2,072, 459) 36,467  (2,035,992)  (1,953,132) 21,146 (1,931,986)

528,014 36,467 564,481 485,722 21,146 506,868
(222,146) - (222,146) (230,777) - (230,777)
(87,499) - (87,499) (78,975) - (78,975)
- (22,441) (22,441) - (22,549) (22,549)
- (2.374) (2,374) - (14,027) (14,027)

6 6,366 - 6,366 10,574 - 10,574
7 5,718 - 5,718 (2,266) - (2,266)
8 (6,797) - (6,797) (7,984) - (7,984)
9 (15,536) - (15,536) (12,407) - (12,407)

432 - 432 863 - 863

1,403 (216) 1,187 2,481 432 2,913

10 209,955 11,436 221,391 167,231 (14,998) 152,233
12 (36,251) (2,266) (38,517) (31,612) 3,776 (27,836)

173,704 9,170 182,874 135,619 (11,222) 124,397

63/315



47

14

EDINETOOOO
O00DOo00oOo0ooo00oOo0ooOO(E30533)

oOoOooodn

12 31
2019 2018
(143) (6)
(143) (6)
(51) (198)
15 6
(36) (192)
(179) (198)
1,516 955
1,465 943
230 210
1,695 1,153
1,305 783
211 172
1,516 955
9.96 6.43
9.90 6.40
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47

14

Ooooooog
12 31
2019 2018
(15,429) (647)
(15,429) (647)
(5,502) (21,362)
1,618 647
_ G.884) _(20.715)
(19,313) (21,362)
163,561 103,035
158,059 101,740
24,815 22,657
182,874 124,397
140,796 84,478
22,765 18,557
163,561 103,035
10.75 6.94
10.68 6.90
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Ooooooog
@
12 31
2019 2018

15 5,406 583,253 5,300 571,817

17(b) 646 69,697
17(a) 175 18,881
18 137 14,781 147 15,860
19 1,955 210,925 1,847 199,273
20 1,712 184,708 1,734 187,081
21 42 4,531 150 16,185
22 305 32,906 202 21,794
25 54 5,826 40 4,316
26 10 1,079 7 755
28 4 432 4 432
33 66 7,120 57 6,146
238 25,678 175 18,881
10,575 1,140,936 9,838 1,061,421
16 102 11,005 30 3,238
17(a) 5 539
18 1,107 119,434 947 102,172
23 2,903 313,205 2,022 218,154
24 1,047 112,961 1,135 122,455
25 508 54,808 358 38,625
67 7,229
26 447 48,227 317 34,201
/ 28 2 4,423 54 5,826
28 552 59,555 525 56,642
6,707 723,618 5,460 589,081
29 1,074 115,874 977 105,409
30 1,686 181,903 1,428 154,067
17(c)/31 108 11,652 2 216
% 10,357 61 6,581
32 905 97,640 819 88,362
32 1 4,423
3,869 417,426 3,328 359,058
2,838 306,192 2,132 230,023
13,413 1,447,128 11,970 1,291,444
30 189 20,391 214 23,088
17(c)/31 357 38,517 23 2,481
32 2,187 235,955 2,259 243,724
33 660 71,207 598 64,518
34 10 1,079 10 1,080
35 558 60,203 448 48,335
3,961 427,352 3,552 383,226
9,452 1,019,776 8,418 908,218
38 1 108 1 108
8,683 936,809 7,745 835,608
8,684 936,917 7,746 835,716
768 82,859 672 72,502
9,452 1,019,776 8,418 908,218

63 193 2020 24

Mr. Wang Long Mr. Guo Lijun
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2018
« )
13
2018 12 31
2018 12 31
IFRIC 23
2019
« )
13
40
2019 12 31
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ooooooo
C @) 4 (b))
1 2,921 (69) (30) 904 238 3,480 7,445 777 8,222
943 943 210 1,153
(160) (160) (38) (198)
6) ®) )
6 6 6
(160) + 943 783 172 955
) ®3) * (©)
(©)] ®) 3
(281) (281)
(505) (505) (505)
20 20 1 21
¥ 13 0 9 9
1 4 30 (35)
¥ 13 ) 20 30 (540) (482) Q@77) (759)
1 2,934 74) (190) 924 268 3,883 7,746 672 8,418
1 2,934 4 (190) 924 268 3,883 7,746 672 8,418
(10) (10) (10)
1 2,934 (74) (190) 924 268 3,873 7,736 672 8,408
1,465 1,465 230 1,695
(32) (32) 19) (1)
(143) (143) (143)
15 15 15
(32) (128) 1,465 1,305 211 1,516
(20) 20) (30) (50)
3 3
(89) (89)
375) @375) 375)
7 7 1 8
973) 973
¥ 48 an 31 31
+ 48 (20) (983) 598 (357) (115) 472)
1 2,982 94 (222) (187) 268 5,936 8,684 768 9,452
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2018 12 31

2018 12 31

IFRIC 23
2019

2019 12 31

13

13

40
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C @ C 0 oy

108 315,147  (7,444) (3,237) 97,533 25,678 375,457 803,242 83,830 887,072
101,740 101,740 22,657 124,397
(17,262) (17,262)  (4,100)  (21,362)
(647) (647) (647)
647 647 647
(17,262) * 101,740 84,478 18,557 103,035
(324) (324) * (324)

(324) (324) 324
(30,317)  (30,317)
(54,484)  (54,484) (54,484)
2,158 2,158 108 2,266
* 1,402 (431) 970 970

108 431 3,237 (3,776)

* 1,402 (540) 2,158 3,237 (58,260) (52,004) (29,885)  (81,889)
108 316,549  (7,984) (20,499) 99,690 28,915 418,937 835,716 72,502 908,218
108 316,549  (7,984) (20,499) 99,690 28,915 418,937 835,716 72,502 908,218

(1,079)  (1,079) (1,079)
108 316,549  (7,984) (20,499) 99,690 28,915 417,858 834,637 72,502 907,139
158,059 158,059 24,815 182,874
(3,452) (3,452)  (2,050)  (5,502)
(15,429) (15,429) (15,429)
1,618 1,618 1,618
(3.452)  (13,811) 158,059 140,796 22,765 163,561
(2,158) (2,158)  (3,237)  (5,395)
323 323
(9,602)  (9,602)
(40,458)  (40,458) (40, 458)
755 755 108 863
* (104,976) 104,976
5,179 (1,834) 3,345 3,345

* 5,179  (2,158) (106,055) - 64,518  (38,516) (12,408)  (50,924)

108 321,728 (10,142) (23,951) (20,176) 28,915 640,435 936,917 82,859 1,019,776

68/315



50

69/315

10

25

EDINETOOOO
O00DOo00oOo0ooo00oOo0ooOO(E30533)
oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO
O00DOo00oOo0ooo00oOo0ooOO(E30533)

Ooooooog
®
12 31
2019 2018
2,052 221,391 1,411 152,233
14) (1,510) 12) (1,295)
144 15,536 115 12,407
(O] (432) ® (863)
1) (1,187) @n (2,913)
442 47,687 428 46,177
@ (108) 2 216
9 971 9 971
24) (2,589) (15) (1,618)
/ 130 14,026 4 432
53 5,718 106 11,436
22 2,374 130 14,026
18 1,942 4 432
8 863
5 539
@ (108) 2 216
12 1,295
8 863 21 2,266
42) (4,531)
(15) (1,618)
(10) (1,079) ) (432)
2,769 298,748 2,178 234,986
am (19,097) (66) (7,121)
(941) (101,524) (258) (27,836)
®) (324) 47) (26,649)
72) (7,768) (25) (2,697)
263 28,375 26 2,805
1,839 198,410 1,608 173,488
(233) (25,138) (234) (25,246)
(143) (15,428) (119) (12,839)
1,463 157,844 1,255 135,403
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12 31
2019 2018
(680) (73,365) (811) (87,499)
(23) (2,481)
810 87,3901 626 67,539
(920) (99,259) (951) (102,603)
(38) (4,100) (56) (6,042)
49 5,287 70 7,553
113 12,192 20 2,158
6 647 6 647
* * 4 432
1 108
(115) (12,407) (59) (6,366)
25) (2,697) (15) (1,618)
38 4,100
@ (216) @) (755)
7 755 3 324
(33) (3,560) ) (2,266)
47 5,071
(30) (3,237) [ (2,913)
(796) (85,879) (1,217) (131,301)
2,457 265,086 8,658 934,112
(2,454) (264,762) (8.654) (933,680)
(89) (9,602) (290) (31,289)
(375) (40, 459) (505) (54,484)
(50) (5,395) ®) (324)
31 3,345 9 971
3 324
(116) (12,515) (5) (539)
(593) (63,978) (790) (85,233)
74 7,987 (752) (81,131)
(6) (651) 43) (4,641)
484 52,219 1,279 137,991
552 59,555 484 52,219
552 59,555 525 56,642
(41) (4,423)
552 59,555 484 52,219
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WH ( )
2014

2019 12 31

49

2.1

1ASB IFRS

2.2

2019
12 31

(a
(b
(c

(a
(b
(c
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)

IFRS 9

2.3
IFRS

IFRS

IFRS 16
IAS 19
IAS 28
IFRIC 23

2015-2017 IFRS IFRS 11 IAS 12 IAS 23

IFRS 16 IFRIC 23

IFRS 16
IFRS 16 IAS 17 IFRIC SIC 15
SIC 27

IFRS 16 IAS 17
IAS 17

IFRS 16 2019
IFRS 16 2019

2018 IAS 17
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IFRS 16
IAS 17 IFRIC
IFRS 16 IAS 17 IFRIC
IFRS 16
2019
IFRS 16
IFRS 16 12
2019
2019 2019
IFRS 16 2019
2019 344
19 2019
180
25 2019
IAS 36
2019 IFRS 16
12
2019

IAS 17
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OooooOodd
2019
2019 IFRS 16
568
(180)
(25)
@)
359
361
(2
359
2019 2018 12 31
2018 12 31 (  41) 394
2019 4.0%
2019 361
17 ¢ 25
2019 386
IFRIC 23
IFRIC 23 IAS 12
IAS 12
)
) )
)
2019
2019 IFRIC 23 10
2.4
IFRS
IFRS 1
IFRS 9  IAS 39 IFRS 7 1

IFRS 10 IAS 28
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IFRS 17 2
I1AS 1AS 1
1 2020
2 2021
3
IFRS
IFRS
IFRS
2020
IFRS 9 IAS 39 IFRS 7
IFRS 9 IAS 39 IFRS 7
2020
IFRS 10 IAS 28
IFRS 10 IAS 28
IFRS 10 IAS 28
1AS 1AS
1AS 1AS

2020
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CGU
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)

IAS 36
IAS 36
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©
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(a

¢

(c

2019

47
24

15
15
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12

2019
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10 40
10
25

2019

I1AS
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CGU
CGU
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CGU CGU
CGU
CGU
FVPL
FVPL
FVOCI
FVPL
IFRS 15
SPP1
SPPI
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MPF
MPF
2019 12 31 1,101 2018
942 18
el
CoU
2019 12 31 1,955 2018 1,847

19
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CGU
CGU
CGU
2019 12 31 1,712 2018 1,734 20
2019 12 31
2,903 2018 2,022 23
2019 12 31 143
2018 2019 12 31

566 2018 446 35
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oOoOooodn
2019 2018
12,331 12,147
10,078 9,136
937 688
757 634
24,103 22,605
99
2019 2018
148 98
2019 12 31 2018 12
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2019 12 31
3,615 5,671 20 756 10,062
(946) (18) (342)  (1,306)
3,615 4,725 2 414 8,756
673 262 @13) 35 957
7,817 7,567 3,282 1 18,667
®) (3.100) (2.405) (5.508)
7,814 4,467 877 1 13,159
847 150 83 (148) 932
943 1,339 723 415 3,420
1) (453) (665) @3)  (1,232)
902 886 58 342 2,188
54 ©) 97 142
12,375 14,577 4,025 1,172 32,149
(44) (4,499) (3.088) (415)  (8,046)
12,331 10,078 937 757 24,103
1,574 403 167 (113) 2,031
42
106
(144)
4
13

96/315
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2018 12 31
3,458 4,355 59 545 8,417
@771) (51) (267) (1,089)
3,458 3,584 8 278 7,328
712 179 5 26 922
7,777 7,333 2,761 + 17,871
) (2,543) (2,142) (4,689)
7,773 4,790 619 + 13,182
785 48 147) 1) 615
957 1,273 686 461 3,377
(41) (511) (625) (105) (1,282)
916 762 61 356 2,095
50 19 29 15 113
12,192 12,961 3,506 1,006 29,665
(45) (3,825) (2,818) (372) (7.,060)
12,147 9,136 688 634 22,605
1,547 246 (113) (30) 1,650
(16)
(139)
(115)
8
23
1,411
2019 2018
2,347 2,421
6,110 5,649
1,843 1,539
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ooOooooo
2019 2018
28 43
14 12
10 8
7 35
59 98
2019 2018
14 (6)
24 15
1 (@)
42
15
12
@18 ©)
©)
®
©) (15)
10 4
(12) (1)
53 (1)
2019 2018
® (21)
(55) (53)
(63) (74)
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2019 2018
®) ®)
(76) (61)
@®
(48) (55)
(18)
3 10
(1449 (115)
2019 2018
4 4
1 .
442 428
130
4
9 9
53 106
@ 2
223
87
134 131
3,628 3,501
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ooooOoog
11.
2019
C)
A
Wan Long 2 * 2 * 4
Wan Hongjian + + +
Guo Lijun 1 * 1 * 2
Sullivan Kenneth Marc 1 13 * * 14
Ma Xiangjie 1 * * * 1
5 14 3 * 22
B)
Jiao Shuge
0
Huang Ming + +
Lee Conway Kong Wai + +
Lau Jin Tin Don * +
+ +
2019 12 31 22
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2018
)
A)
Wan Long 2 6 * 8
Wan Hongjian * * *
Guo Lijun 1 2 * 3
Sullivan Kenneth Marc 1 2 1 * 4
Ma Xiangjie * * * 1
Zhang Taixi * 1 * 1
You Mu * * * *
5 2 10 * 17
B)
Jiao Shuge
0)
Huang Ming * *
Lee Conway Kong Wai * *
Lau Jin Tin Don * *
2018 12 31 17
)
) 2019 12 31 2018 12 31
) 2019 12 31 2018 12 31 Wan Long
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2019 12 31 2018
2018
2019 2018
3
15 4
+ +
+ +
18 7
2019 2018
21,500,001 22,000,000 1
28,500,001 29,000,000 1
32,500,001 33,000,000 1
49,500,001 50,000,000
63,500,001 64,000,000
2018
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2019 2018
(176) (196)
(56) (5D
(35) (16)
13) 33
an 38
(357) (258)
EIT EIT
25
( ) EIT
2008 149 EIT
EIT 86
EIT
( EIT
EIT
(
2012 58
15
( EIT
2009 203 15
15
EIT 27 91
10  EIT
2018 12 31
% 10 2019 12 31

2018 12 31 2019 12 31 21%
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105/315

2019 2018
2,052 1,411
(49%) (24.1) (353) (25.0)
3 0.1 7 0.5
23 1.1 9 0.6
1) .0 a4 (1.0)
()] 0.2) (G
¥ 1 0.
82 4.0 54 3.
39 1.9 12 0.9
13) 0.9)
(35) @.n (10) 0.7
9 0.4
6 0.3 15 1.1
35 1.7 34 2.4
(357) (17.4) (258) (18.3)
33
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2018
2017 0.22
2019
2018 0.05
2019 12 31
14

0.15

0.05
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2019 2018
282 411
93 94
375 505

0.265
2019 2018

1,465 943
14,702.71 14,674.83
88.51 65.06
14,791.22 14,739.89
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15

2018

2018
IFRS
2019

2019

2018

2018

IFRS
2019

2019

2019
2018
2019

36

12 31
16

36

12 31

12 31
16

12 31

12 31
12 31

2019 12 31

2019 12 31

2018 12 31

25
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539 2,389 145 3,409 443 6,925
(O] (76) ® (98) O] (191)
+ 14 16 788 818
1 20 4 10 1 36
8 190 5 463 (666)
(O] (©) (16) (38) (62)
540 2,519 143 3,762 562 7,526
(25) (O] (1) (30)
540 2,494 139 3,761 562 7,496
®) @4 @ (€3)) (35) ©5
4 4 25 636 669
3 49 + 52 4 108
17 281 6 517 (821)
(15) (83) O) (55) * (162)
542 2,721 139 4,269 346 8,017
534 80 1,274 1,888
(18) @ (35) (54)
110 13 305 428
1 ’ 3 4
3) (13) (24) (40)
624 79 1,523 2,226
) 1) - (5)
620 78 1,523 2,221
(©) * @4 (20)
113 11 318 442
6 + 12 18
O) (8) (38) (50)
729 81 1,801 2,611
542 1,992 58 2,468 346 5,406
540 1,895 64 2,239 562 5,300
540 1,874 61 2,238 562 5,275
856 2018 902
187 2018 169
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2019 12 31 18 2018 4

16

2019 2018

102 30

2019 2018

19
83 30
102 30

17
) 2019

2018

248
12)

®)
®)
12 31 228

46
@

12 31 48

12 31 180

175
180

2018 12 31 10 48
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(b)

2019 1 1

2019 12 31

©

36

12 31

2018

©)

2019 12 31

O]
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O00DOo00oOo0ooo00oOo0ooOO(E30533)
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170 198 16 52 132 568
() () () () 9 ()
81 23 21 23 65 213
(36) 10 ® 23 (52) (130)
(5) (5)
210 211 28 52 145 646
2019 2018

386 28

180

18

3
(116) ®)
®) 2
465 25
108 2
357 23
465 25

39
2019

18
130
75
12
()
5
240

37

109/315




Q)
2019
@
2019 27
2019
20
10
2019

47

h
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81

20

23
15

37 39 41
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18

45

13

2019 2018

1,826 1,757

2,136 2,122

8,296 8,010

12,258 11,889

1,084 1,120

13,342 13,009

4,860 3,990

625 525

5,485 4,515

114
19 23 132
21
38 42

2.1
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()
(
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
942 985 145 177 5 5 2 4 1,004 1,171
®) (11) @ (©) Q) ’ (G * ® 14)
7,662 7,141 179 124 144 140 9 9 7,994 7,414
40 (7D (CD)) (55) D) @ () (©) (22 (130)
(7.346) (6,912)  (93)  (64) (119) (116) 0 (6) (7,562) (7,098)
@9) (90) @7 (34 (23) (3) @ @ (52 (249
12 31 1,101 942 135 145 6 5 2 2 1,244 1,094
2019 2018
1,107 947
137 147
1,244 1,094
2019 2018
- 1,101 942
- 135 145
- 6 5
- 2 2
1,244 1,094
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@
@
®)

(€5}
®

@
@
@
®

JLL
2019 2018
1,901 2,127
139 86
3,332 1,260
® 85 68
25 25
19 19
@ 18 16
2019 2018
125 127
46 56
32 32
153 131
(O] 5.7 5.7
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36
12 31
12 31
12 31
CGU

CGU
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oOoOooodn
2019 2018
1,847 1,838
111 28
® (19)
1,955 1,847
1,955 1,847
CGU
2019 2018
48 48
137 138
31 31
1,510 1,510
229 120
1,955 1,847
CGU
2019 12 31 2018 12 31 CGU
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CGU

2019 2018 2019 2018
(23.8)—46.6 6.0-22.2 2.0-12.6 2.0-8.8
2 2 2 2
11 13 7 8

2019 2018 2019 2018
7.2-14.1 10.9-15.4 2.1-4.7 2.1-3.1
2 2 2 2
11 13 7 8

2019 2018
3.0-7.4 2.0-3.0
3 3
8 9

CGU CGU
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2018

2018

2019

2018

2018

2019

2019
2018

12

12

12

12

12
12

31

31

31

31

31
31
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O00DOo00oOo0ooo00oOo0ooOO(E30533)
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1,666 55 40 1,773
36 25 1 26
@9 ) (25)
2019
1,667 55 40 1,774
®) M ®
1,662 55 40 1,769
22 8 31
6 2 9
2019
28 10 40
+ +
6 2 17
34 12 57
1,653 21 28 1,712
1,667 27 30 1,734
25
CGU
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CGU
2019 2018
47 48
282 286
234 243
983 983
112 112
1,658 1,672
CGU CGU
2019 12 31 2018 12 31 CGU
2019 2018 2019 2018
(23.8)-46.6 6.0-22.2 2.0-12.6 2.0-8.8
2 2 2 2
14 16 7 8
2019 2018 2019 2018
7.2-14.1 10.9-15.4 2.14.7 2.1-3.1
2 2 2 2
14 16 7 8
2019 2018
3.0-7.4 2.0-3.0
3 3
8 9

117/315



2018
21
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
22
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
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2019 12 31

oOoOooodn

2019 2018
42 150

2019 2018
4 8
+ 4

2019 2018
305 202

2019 2018
11 27
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23
2019 2018
904 733
97 99
1,902 1,190
2,903 2,022
24
2019 2018
1,049 1,137
an (12)
1,038 1,125
9 10
1,047 1,135
30
2019 2018
30 879 957
31 90 167 178
91 180 1 *
1,047 1,135
2019 2018
a2 (10)
1 @
+
12 31 Qv 12)
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2019 12 31
90 180

1.00% 0.25%-3.60% 5.30% 1.06%

1,049 * * 1,049

11 * * 11

2018 12 31
90 180

1.02% 3.00% 5.14% 1.02%

1,137 * * 1,137

12 * * 12

25
2019 2018

86 65
59 20
53 9
14 66
27 74 12
118 96
84 63
74 67
562 398
508 358
54 40
562 398
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27

2019 12 31

FVPL

2018

EDINETOOOO
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2019 2018
447 317
10 7
457 324
447 317
10 7
457 324
12 31
2019 2018
1 * 1
2 1
1 2
* 22 2 12
78 6 10 2
82 30 14 14
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2019 12 31
+
— 10,000 525,000 2020 11
- 1,465,000 5,820,000 2021
63,000,000 128,920,000 2020 12 7
2018 12 31
4
- 415,000 2019 11
- 1,615,000 56,460,000 2019 12
90,440,000 2020 12 2
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
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2019 12 31
133,040,000 1,987,320,000 2021 469
2
- 110,857,129 178,230,000 2021 12
- 665,600 1,170,600 2021
63,000 61,022,670 2020 12 *
+
2018 12 31
39,840,000 902,160,000 2019 12 130
€)
- 157,900,000 216,485,000 2021
- 1,067,600 1,634,800 2021
18,486,729 21,057,065 2019 11 ¥
10,361,996 52,624,265 2019 ¥
+
/
2019 12 31
466 445 3 32 469
(€D (25) @ @n (2
2018 12 31
125 115 5 11 130
®) €3) 2 (1) 6]
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
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2019 2018
+ + 2 +
5 9 ! 1
1 1 + +
2 11 2
8 21 5
2019 12 31
165,000 1,905,000 2020
1,400 49,900 2020
10,920,000 82,160,000 2020 12
2,702,871 21,047,468 2021 12
30,000 3,915,000 2021
160,000 2020
10,760,000 17,000,000 BTU 2021 12
3,300,615 2032
17,136,000 21,168,000 2021 12
2,510,541 289,679,130 2020
2018 12 31
65,000 1,805,000 2020
6,900 2019
480,000 291,160,000 2019 11
13,535,000 32,515,000 2020
10,000 8,040,000 2019 11
14,660,000 18,660,000 BTU 2021 12
1,680,000 2019
2,100,000 18,186,000 2020 12
4,849,775 215,246,768 2019
2018
73 2018 11 2018

27 2018
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28

2019 12 31 0.01 4.50 2018 0.01 4.80

0.01 3.91 2018 0.01 3.58
2019 12 31
13 2018
2018
2019 12 31 2018
2019 12 31
29 2018 40

2018 12 31 10

29
30
2019 2018
1,074 977
2019 2018

30 1,045 923
31 90 26 40
91 180 2 7
181 365 1 7

1,074 977
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30

35

98

27

(Note 44(b))
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2019 2018

491 373

91 104

191 238

89 110

135 135

24 25

10 11

43 a1

18 14

15 31

35 14

23 64

28 32

18 10

234 161

233 172

197 107

1,875 1,642

1,686 1,428

189 214

1,875 1,642

2019

2018
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IFRS 16

2018 12 31

2.6

EDINETOOOO
O00DOo00oOo0ooo00oOo0ooOO(E30533)
oOoOooodn

2019
22
2018 12 31

19 16

31 25

®)

25
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32
2019 2018
2020 2.700 399
2021 10 2.650 399 397
2022 3.350 398 397
2027 4.250 595 595
2029 5.200 395
1,787 1,788
() 125 236
)
38 374
1,139 677
)
1 1
2 2
3,092 3,078
() 41
)
905 819
421 451
773 1,211
993 597
3,092 3,078
(905) (819)
2,187 2,259
2,385 2,370
707 708
3,092 3,078
2,273 2,458
582 464
144 76
41 60
50 18
2 2
3,092 3,078
( ) 2018
397
1,750
() 2019 12 31 2.25 5.80 2018  2.25 5.70
WIBOR 0.50 0.375 2018 WIBOR 0.5
0.375
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() 2018 12 31

)

2018 12 31
33

2018

2018 12 31
2019 12 31

2019

36

EDINETOOOO

O00DOo00oOo0ooo00oOo0ooOO(E30533)

ooooooo
2019 12 31 0.90 2018 0.90
3.92
2019 12 31
42
2019 2018
66 57
(660) (598)
(594) (541)
¥ 6 13 ¥ 74 112 60 265
* * * * @ (€] (©)
* @ 2 * Q@ 13 33 12 58
1 (@) @
* 5 15 * 71 126 33 69 319
+ + + + + + +
+ 1 1
* + 10 3 ©) 12) 1) 6 (23)
49 * 49
* 5 25 3 62 163 12 76 346
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ooooooo
2018 (384) @7 427) ) (©)) (846)
6 5 * 2 13
36 ®3) O] O]
42) 17 5 2 (&) (20
2018 12 31 2019 (423) (10) (421) [©) [©) (860)
2 * * 2 4
36 (16) (16)
(26) (22) ®) (G 2 (€2))
() () * (14) (14)
2019 12 31 (463) 32) (429) @) (13) (940)
2019 12 31 263 2018
315 207 2018 271
56 2018 44
2019 12 31
2018 2038
+
2038
2019 2018
2019 6
2020 7 4
2021 3 2
2022 12 12
2023 34 20
56 44
3,021 2018 2,730
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35

)

65
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2019 2018

30 + +
10 10
10 10

40 45
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2019 12 31

33
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O00DOo00oOo0ooo00oOo0ooOO(E30533)
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12 31
2019

2018

3.50

4.50

1,812 2018 1,625

2019

2018

69
18

72
14

87

86

2019

2018

141
(333)

(143)
136

(192)
49

Q)

(143)

(©)

132/315



12 31

12 31

30

133/315

EDINETOOOO

O00DOo00oOo0ooo00oOo0ooOO(E30533)

oOoOooodn

2019 2018
2,378 2,071
(1,812) (1,625)
566 446
10 10
576 456
18 14
558 448
- (6)
576 456
2019 2018
2,071 2,139
69 72
90 82
(185) (86)
333 (136)
2,378 2,071
2019 2018
1,625 1,777
72 68
159 9
(185) (86)
141 (143)
1,812 1,625
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12 31
2019 2018

142 219
616 426
877 942
78 87
179 127

1,892 1,801
(80) (176)

1,812 1,625

2019 12 31
757 956 179 2018 691 983 127
5.55 2018  5.07
50 183

2018 142

134/315



EDINETOOOO
O00DOo00oOo0ooo00oOo0ooOO(E30533)
oOoOooodn

2019 12 31 2018 12 31
62 - 43 -
616 30-50 426 30-50
877 35-55 942 35-55
257 -20 214 -20
1,812 1,625

217
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MPF MPF
MPF
30,000
401(k)

2019 12 31 96 2018 98
36
2019 12 31
Pini Polonia sp. z o.o.

2019 28 Pini Polonia sp. z 0.0. ( Pini Polonia ) 66.5

2017 7 28 33.5 Pini

Polonia Pini Polonia

2019 28

Pini Polonia

Pini Polonia

136/315



Pini Polonia

137/315

EDINETOOOO
O00DOo00oOo0ooo00oOo0ooOO(E30533)
oOoOooodn

84
(84)

105

72

44
(65)

€3]
13

®
1%
(48)

85
111
196

112
84
196
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112)
1
111)
(&)
(113)
2019 12 31 Pini Polonia
167 6
Pini Polonia
24,307 2,048
2018 12 31
Elit S.R.L. Vericom 2001 S.R.L.
2018 Elit S.R.L.
Vericom 2001 S.R.L. Elit Vericom )
36
26
.
©)
©)
©)
(13)
56
28
84

138/315



2018 12 31
117
Elit Vericom
37
(a
2019 12 30
42
(b
2018
2018 12 31
IFRS 16
2019 (
36
2019 12 31

2018

EDINETOOOO
O00DOo00oOo0ooo00oOo0ooOO(E30533)
oOoOooodn

(84)
7
18
(59)
(1)
(60)
Elit Vericom
2018 12 31
190 180
Align RNG, LLC ( Align )
Align
13 28 3,106
(795) ©) 4
5
786
6 2 (37)
10 25 3,078
361
10 386 3,078
(464) (116) 3
180
18 +
3 13
472
SRR S0 SO ® @..
18 465 3,092
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ooooooo
(c
2019
87
24
116
179
38
0.0001
2018 2018 12 31 2019 2019 12 31 50,000.00 5
2018 14,664.23 1
11.25 *
2018 12 31 2019 14,675.48 1
45.27 *
2019 12 31 14,720.75 1
1PO
39

32

2019 12 31 D/E 26.9 2018 30.8
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2019 12 31
10 10
447 447
74 74
145 145
15 1,202 1,217
/ 45 45
552 552
691 1,799 2,490
2018 12 31
7 7
317 317
19 19
121 121
1,268 1,268
/ 58 58
525 525
464 1,851 2,315

* FVPL
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2019 2018

1,462 1,329

465 25

3,092 3,078

41

5,019 4,473

35 21

FVPL
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2019

2018

36 2
19 5

3

32
101 1
60 31
39 *
1 97
26 4
2 2
50 18

15
24




FVPL

28

25

25

2018
2018

FVPL
17 26 31

32

EDINETOOOO

O00DOo00oOo0ooo00oOo0ooOO(E30533)

2018

oOoOooodn

2019

2018

®

32

25

2019

2018
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24 2019 12 31 2018 12 31 /
12 31
2019 12 31
12
9 1,038 1,047
155 155
45 45
552 552
761 1,038 1,799
2018 12 31

12
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10 1,125 1,135
133 133
58 58
525 525
726 1,125 1,851
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2019 12 31 2,874 2018 2,893

-12 - -
2019 12 31

1,072 2 1,074

329 59 388

63 61 145 80 210 559

610 38 477 496 1,188 2,809

244 75 30 359 708

2,312 176 711 935 1,398 5,538

27 8 35
2018 12 31

970 7 977

302 50 352

1 2 3 6 19 31

41 41

162 451 457 883 706 2,659

236 42 46 408 732

1,712 502 556 1,297 725 4,792
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2019 12 31 2018
12 31

2019
10 447 457
71 17 2 90
31 88 26 145
15 15
102 130 475 707
18 26 7 51
2018
7 317 324
12 6 1 19
29 70 22 121
41 83 340 464
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@
()
3.7 4.1 2018 12 31 4.0 5.3
2019 12 31
LIBOR
2018 1 1 23
« ) 15 (€) @
951
(626)
(23)
2018 12 31 317 @) 22
« ) 24 @ 4
Q)
920
(810) +
O)

2019 12 31 447 ®) 26
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2019 12 31

71 (16) 55 53 108

16 (16)
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2018 12 31
12 (©) 5 9 14
7 (@)
40
(a) 2010
2010 2010 11 26
2013 12 26
2010
631,580,000
2010
Tricor Services Limited 2010
Teeroy Limited
2010 2010
2010
2010
2010
2010 2012

2012 2014
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2010

631,580,000

2012 12 26

2012 2014

128
JLL
2010 2019 12 31
2010 2019 12 23
(b) 2013
2013 10
2013
2013 3.0
2013
2013 2013
2013
2013
2013
2013 10 23 2013 0.0001 350,877,333
2013 Mr. Wan
Long 2017 28 350,877,333
2017
278 2017 12 31
JLL

2013 2019 12 31 Mr. Wan Long

2013 2019 6 28
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ooo0000
(c) IPO
2014 21 1PO 2014
2014 1PO 584,795,555
1 6.20
1PO
1PO 1,883
243 JLL
6.66
6.20
10
42
2.06
1PO
2018 2018 12 31 2019 12
31
150 2014
10 530,605,576 11,255,000 405,183 268,507 518,676,886 45,265,647 4,867,646 5,638,324 462,905,269
355,831,075 462,905,269
7.60 2018 7.23
2019 12 31 1PO
2018 21
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(b) 2018 12 31

50
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2019 2018
165 125
66 94

14

96
164
134
394
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42
2019 2018
45 58

2019 12 31 2018 12 31

2021 11
SPV SPV
SPV SPV
2019 12 31 SPV 651 2018 835
83 2018 237 2019 12 31
2018 12 31 SPV

43

2014 10

515
25
2017 12 31 26 511
14 75 26
2017 12 2018
26
82
2018 26 10
75,000
250,000
250,000 10
3.25 4
2018 29
65,000 12.5
250,000

630,000 4
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2018
3.9
94
2018 12 13
102,400
1,000

75,000

2019

33,000
20,000
2019
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75
11.75
100
25,000
10
67,000 10,000
3,000 7,000

2020 31
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(a

(b

(c

157/315

EDINETOOOO
O00DOo00oOo0ooo00oOo0ooOO(E30533)
oOoOooodn

2019 2018
6 6
15 12
40 61
20 22
2019 2018
* 1
18
* 1
15 31
LIBOR
12 31
2019 2018
+ +
9 9
26 4
+
4 11
39 24
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45
2019 2018

5,145 5,141
127 122
+ 1
2 +
129 123
337 364
2 2
339 366
(210) (243)
4,935 4,898
4,935 4,898
38 1 1
2,982 2,934
61 61
231 1,213
1,660 689
4,935 4,898
2018 1 2,921 61 1,196 702 4,881
492 492
13 (505) (505)
21 21
+ 13 0 9
+ 13 17 13) 17
2018 12 31 2019 1 2,934 61 1,213 689 4,898
373 373
13 (375) (375)
8 8

(973) 973
+ 48 an 31
+ 48 (982) 971 37

2019 12 31 1 2,982 61 231 1,660 4,935
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2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Henan Shuanghui Investment &
Development Co., Ltd.
26.59 26.75 220 209 755 654
10 1 13 18
230 210 768 672
12 31
2019 2018
1,774 1,833
2,342 1,424
(1,619) (1,186)
(46) (32)
(2,365) (1,889)
86 150
669 504
755 654
12 31
2019 2018
8,693 7,390
(7.879) (6,623)
814 767
+ +
814 767
594 558
5 10
215 199
814 767
18 17
631 785
(198) (340)
(337) (960)
96 (515)
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47
2019 2018
(192) @)
49 1
143 ®)
() (198)
29 8
a4 @
@7 (192)
(179) (198)
48
COVID-19
COVID-19
COVID-19
49
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
2019 2018
—33,883,520,411 100 100
Rotary Vortex Limited (2018
33,883,520,411 )
- 73.41 73.25
3,319,282,190 (2018
3,299,558,284 )
100 100

Smithfield
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Fair

4,804

B11}

Biokogical
fair value
adjustments
UES millon

(208)

(a2}

#1101
o]

{21}

Todad
BEE million

24,103
{18871}

5232
(2.0%5)
311

(208)

CETH
54
53

(53}

{144)

2,082
{35T)

1,695

2 B0
[R8,1503) 1
a4 By
133
73
- |
[a1=] -
21
1%
-3 —
5 4

1 EES
] = 1]
125 ]

L B 0

g

{143}

{143}

(51}

(38}
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sonsolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income (Continued)

UESmilllion

(17e}

i

1,518

1.48%5 543
nan-caniioikng inlenedd 230 10

1,665 1,153

non-oonlfoing interests 1 172

1,518

B3 6,66 643
Duluted (LIS onls 8,680 L4

[ WHGROUP LMITED ~HMLIAL REFORT 2005
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2038

UsS million

NOH-CURRENT ASSETS

Propety, plant and equipment 15 5,406 5,300
Right-of -use assets 1A GG =
Prepaid lease paymients 17 = 175
Biological assels 18 137 147
Ganochwill 19 1,955 1,847
Intangible assels 20 17112 1,734
Interests in associales 21 42 150
Inlerests in jomnt ventures 22 305 A2
Other recelvables 25 54 an
Financial assets at fai walve through profit or loss 26 10 T
Pleciged bank deposits 25 4 4
Deferred tix assets 3 86 ai
Olher non-current assels 238 Ifa
Tolal non-cureent assets 10,575 9,538
CURRENT ASSETS
Propeities under developrent 16 102 30
Prepakd lease payiments 17ia) — 5
Biological assels 18 1107 a7
Inventories 23 2,003 2,022
Trade and bills receirables 24 1.047 1,135
Prepayments, other receivables and other assots 25 508 368
Tamation recoverable - 67
Financial assets al fair walue through profil or loss 26 447 317
Pledgedirestiicted bank deposits 8 a1 Hal
Bank balances and cash 25 552 525
Total cumrent assets 6,707 5,460
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade payables e 1.074 ar?
Accned expenses and olher payables 20 1,686 1,428
Lease lmbiliiesfoblipations under finanoe |sases 17 w3l 108 2
Taxation payable e 6l
Borrowings a2 201 219
Bank overdialis 32 — 41
Total curent fiabilties 3869 3,328
MET CURRENT ASSETS 2,838 2132
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 13413 11,970

AN REPORT 2019 'WH GROUF LIMITED 65
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

2018

UES millsan

HON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Cther payables an 189 214
Lease llabilitiestobligations under linance leases 1Tew3l 357 23
Borowings 32 2,187 2,250
Deferred tax liabilities 33 GGO Ha8
Chaferred revenuse 34 10 10
Pension liability and other retirement benefits Eh 558 A48
Total non-current labilites 3,861 3.552
HET ASSETS 9,452 8418

CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Shane capital 38 1 1

Reserves 8,883 1745
Equity atfribolable lo owners of the Company 8,684 1.746
Hon-controlling interests 768 672
TOTAL EQUITY 9,452 8418

The consolidated financial statements on pages 63 to 193 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Lhrecloss on March 24, 2020 and are signed on ils behall by

Mr, Wan Long Mr. Guo Lijun
Direcior Director

] WHGROUF LIMITED AL REPCRT 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

2019

UsS'million

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Prodit before tax 2,052 1411
Adjustments for:
Interest moomse 14 (12)
Finance costs 144 15
Share of profits of associbes 4 (8
Share ol profits ol joinl wentures {11} (A7)
Depreciation of properly, planl and equipmient ELF 428
(Gain) loss on disposal of progerty, planl and equipoe:nt )] z
Amorlisation of ntangble assels ] 9
Fair valse gam on financial assels atb far value
through profit or loss {24} {15}
Depreciation of right-of-use assetsfrelease of
prepaid lease payments 130 k|
Write-down of inventonss 53 106
Loss agising from changes in {gir walue less costs
1o sedl of biological assels 22 130
Impaimment loss on progety, plant and equipment 18 A
Impaimment loss on intangible assets B
Impaiment loss on right-of-use assels L] —
(Raversal of) allowances on ade receiables (1 2
Impaimment loss on other non-current assels — 12
Share-based payments -] 21
Gain on comribution of assets to a point venlue {42y —
Gadn on disposs| of an associbe {15)
Gain on insurance recovery {10} {43}
2,769 2,178
Increase in biological assels 177 (1]
Increase in inventoies (841} (258}
Increase in trade, bills and olher receivables (3) (247)
increase in properties under development 73 (25)
Increase in trade and other payabhes 263 26
CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIOMS 1,838 1,608
Taxation paid {233 (234)
Interest paid {143) (119)
Net cash flows from opemating activilies 1,463 1,255

] WHGROUF LIMITED  AHUAL REPORT 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

2019

LSS million

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of propedy, plant and equapment (680) {8113
Additions of nghf-ol-use assets 23 —
Proceeds from disposal ol linancial assels at laie value theough
profit of boss 810 626
Purchase ol hnancial assets at fain value thiough prolit o loss (920} (9l
Placement of pledgediestticted bank deposits (38) 156)
Withdrawal of pledged/resincted bank deposits 45 £
Proceeds from disposal o progedy, plant and equipment 113 20
Inlerest recaived B [
Dividends recelved from associales =4 4
Dividends received from joint ventures = 1
Hel cash outiknw on acquisition of subsidiaries {115} {59)
Acquisiion of equity interesks in joint ventures (25) {15)
Proceeds from disposal of an associate 8
Seftlement of contingent consideration in respect of acquisition of
a subsidiary {2 i
Insurance claims on property, plant and equipment 7 3
Purchase of olher non-current assels {33 {21)
Proceeds from sales and lesseback of assels 47 -
Condtiuction of assels lo be sold (30 {27
Met cash Nows used in mvesting activilies (T2E) (1,217

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Procesds from borrowings, net of transaction costs 2,457 8658
Repayment of borrowings {2.454) (8,654)
Dividend paid o nom-controllng interests (B3) (290
Dividend paid (375) {505)
Met cash oullknd on aoquisition of additonal interests in subsidianies (50) (3
Proceeds from issue of shares n 9
Capatal conlributed by non-controfling inlesests 3 i
Lease payments/irepayment of obligation under finance leasas {116} ]
Met cash fows used in linancing activities (503) (e
Mel increase (decreased in cash and cash equivalents T4 (758
Effect of foreipn exchange rale changes {6} {43}
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year AB4 1,279
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 552 454

ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Bank balances and cash 52 h2b
Bank overdiaits == {413
552 a4

Lezs han UFEE1 milion

AMNRL REPORT 2019 'WH GROUF LIMITED [
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. CORPORATE AND GROUF INFORMATION
WH Group Limsded {the “Company™) was incorposated and registered as an exempled company with linited
liatdlity i the Cayman lslands under fhe Companies Law of the Cayman lslands. The Company's shares were
listed on the Main Boand of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Steck Exchange™) on August 5,
2084,

The address of the regstered office of the Company and e address ol s principal place of business ae
disclosed in the section headed “Corporate Informeation”™ in the annual report,

The Company acts as an investment bolding company. The cosolidated financal statements of the Company
for the year ended December 31, 2019 comprise he Company and s entities (incloding structured entities,
controlled by the Group) (collectively refered 1o as the "Group™ and the Group's interests i assocites and
imterests in joint ventures. The Group s primarily involved in the production and sales of packaged meats
and fresh pork as well s hog production. The principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in
mode 49 to the fmanclal statements,

Tihe functional currency of the Company B the United States Dolta (*USE")

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION
The consolidated finamcial statements have been prepared in accordance with International  Financial
Reporting Standards {‘IFRSs™) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (the “I1ASB™) and the
disclosyre requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance

The consoldated financial statements hasve been prepared under the hislorical cosl convention, axcepl Tor
béological assets, Tinancial assets a1 tair walue through profit of kess, certain non-current assels and dervative
linancial assels and liabilties which have been measured at fair value. These financial statements ae
presenbed in USS, and ol values aie sunded to he nesdest million (CUSEmilllon™) except when olherme
indicated.

2.2 BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION
The consolidaled financal statements comprise the financal statements of the Company and s enlilies
{mcluding strectiened entities, controlled by the Groupk dunng the year ended December 31, 2019, Conlrdd s
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has nghts, te varable retums from its mvolvement with the investes
and has the abiity o allect those refums through ils power over the mvestes. Specifically, the Group controls
an investee if, and only i, the Group has;

(a)  powwver over the investeo (b exestimg rights Bhat give iF the cunent ability 1o direct the relevant aclivities
o the investes);

(b} exposure, or nights, o variable relums from its involvement with the investes; and

(e} the ability to use s power over the investes Lo alfect #5 reluins,

T WHGROUF LIMITED  AHMUAL REPCAT 2019
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2.2 BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (Continued)
Generally, there s a presumption that a mapty of wding rights results in control, To support ihis
presumption and when the Group hes less than a majority of the voling of similar rights ol an invesles, the
Group conseders all relevant Bcls and ciroumstances in assessing whether I has power oved an inveshes,
inchuding:

{a)  the contradusl sangementish with the other vate holders of the mvestes;
(b} rights anising from olher contrachuml anangements: and
{c}  the Group's voling rights and potential voling reghts.

The Groap re-assesses whether of not it controls an investes if facts and circumstances indicate that there
aie changes o one of more of the thice elements of contiol. Consolidation ol & subsidiary beging when the
Group obtains control over the subsideary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets,
liabilities, mocome and expenses of 8 subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are mcluded in the
consolidated financial statements Trome the date that e Group gans control until the date the Group ceases
to confrad the subsideary.

Prodit or loss and each component of olher comprehensive mcome (“0C1") are attributed 1o the owners of the
Company and to the non-conlrolling  mlerests, even # this resulls in the non-controlling inberests having a
deficil balance, When necessary, adjustments are made o the financial statements of subsidiagies to bring
thesr accounting policies into lme with the Gioup's accounting policies. All infra-group assets and liabilities,
equity, income, expenses and cash flows melabing to ansaclions between members ol the Group are
eliminated in full en consolidation,

Changes i the Group's ownership Interests in exisling subsidanes that do nol sesull i the Gioup bosing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted lor as equity bransactions. The carrying amounis o the Group's
relevant components of equity incheding reserves and the non-contrelling interests are adjusted lo eflect the
changes m thele ieltive nferests in the subskdianes, Any diffeience between the amount by which the non-
controlling inerests are adjusted after re-atiribution of the relevant equily componenl, and the fair value o
the consideation paid o received B recognsed deectly in equity and atteibuled te owners of e Company.

When the Group loses confrol of a subsidisy, @ gain o loss 5 recognsed in ot of loss and & calculated
as the difference bebween (1) the ageregate of the faer valoe of the consderation recenved and the fair value
of any retained interest and {ii} the camying amounts of the assets (including goodwill} and Rabiliies of the
subsidiary  attribatable to e owners of the Comipany. Al amounis previously  recogmised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary ste accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the elated assels or Rabililbes of the subsidiary (Le, reclassilied to peodit o0 loss or transfened directly 1o
retasned eamings). The fair value of any investment retained i the former subseliary ot the date when
control is st i regarded as the fag walue on initial recognition for subsequent accounling under |FRS 9
Fingneal insiruments or, when applicable, the cost on mitlal secognition of an investrment in an assocale o
@ joant wenlure,

AN REFCRT 2019 'WH GROUP LMITED n
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
The Group has applied fhe folowing new and revised IFRSs for the fiest broe Tor the current year’s Tinancial

statemernts,

Amendments to IFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Megafive Compensation
IFRS 16 Leases

Amendments to 1AS 19 Flan Amendment, Curfaiment o Seffiermen
Amendments to 1AS 28 Long-ferm fnferests i Associales and foint Venlures
IFRIC 23 Uneertairdy over lncome Tax Treatments

Anneal improverments o Amendments o IFRS 3, IFRS 11, 1AS 12 and A5 23

IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

Cdtver than as explained below regarding the impact of IFRS 16 and IFRIC 23, the adoption of the above
amendments has had ne significant linancal eifect on these linancial statements

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 replaces 1AS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Defermenng whether an Arrangement contans @ dease, SIC-15
Opetaling Leases-lncentives and SIC-27 Fvafuating the Subsfance of Transsclions fnvolving the Legal Farm of
a fedase, The standand sels oul the principles for the recognition, measuremaent, presentation and disclosorne
of leases and requires lessees o account lod all leases under a single on-balance sheet model o 1ecognise
and measwre right-ol-use assels and lease liabililies, excepl for cerfain recognition csemplions. Lessor
accounting under IFRS 16 5 substantially unchanged under [AS 17, Lessors will continue to classly leases
as either operating or finance leases using similar principles as in IAS 17

The Group adopted IFRS 16 wusing the modified relrospective method of adoplion with the date of initiasl
application of fanuary 1, 2019 Under this method, the standasd is applied retrospectively with the
cumalative effect of milial adopbion recognied as an adjustment to the opening balances atl Jansary |,
2009, and the comparative information for 2018 was nol restated and continused to be eporfed under 1AS
17 and velated intergrelations,

Hew definition of a lease

Under IFRS 16, a contract is, of containg, a lease il the contract conveys a right (o control the use of an
identilied asset for a pesied of time in exchange 1o consideration, Controd 15 conveyed where the customer
has bolh the right to oblain substantzally all of s economic benedits from use of the idenlified assel and the
rizht to direct the use of the identified assel. The Group elected to use the ransition practcal expedient
allowing the siandard 1o be appled only W contracts that wene previously identified as leases applying 1AS 17
and IFRIC 4 at the date of ioitial application. Contracts that were nol identilied a5 leases under 1AS 17 and
IFRIC 4 were not reassessed. Therefore, the definition of 8 lease under IFRS 16 has been applied only to
contracts entered ke or changed on o alter January 1, 2019

T WHGROUP LIMITED ~HMUIAL REPORT 2018
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES (Continued)
IFRS 16 Leases {Conlinued}
s a lesses — Leases previowsly classified as operating leases
Nature of the effect of adoption of IFRS 16
The Growp has lease contiacts for various items of land, buildings, machinery, moles vehicles and conbiact
farms, As a lessee, the Group presously classibed leases as either finance leases or operating leases based
on the atsessmenl of whether the lease bansferred substantially all the rewads and risks of ownership of
assels to the Group, Undes IFRS 6, the Group applies a single approach to recognise and measure right-of-
use assels and lease Rhabilibes for all leases, excepl for exemplion bor leases with a lease term of 12 months
of less (“short-term leses”y (ekecled by class of underlying asset), Inslead of recopnising renlal expenses
under operating leases on a straight-line basis over the lease leom commencing from January 1, 2019, the
Group recogmises depreciation (and impairment, i anyd of the nght-of-use assets and interest accrued on the
oulstanding lease liabilities (as finance costs)

fmpacts on Transifion

Lease |mbilities at January 1, 2019 were recognised based on the presend walue of the remaining lease
payrmients, discounted using the mcremental borrowang rate at Jamesy 1, 2019 and were separately disclosed
in the consclidated statement of fisancial position,

The nght-of-use assets amounting to USE344 millen wee recognised on January 1, 2019 tased on the
camying amount as il the standard had abways bean applied, except for the incremental bormowing rate where
iz Growp applied the morementsl bonowing rate at Janesy 1, 2019,

The remaining tight-ol-use assets amounting o USEE9 million were recognised and measured al the amount
of the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid of accrued lease payments relating o the lease
recognised in the statement of financial position immediately before fanuary 1, 2015,

Prepasd lease payments of USE180 million previcusly identilied as opesating leases and certain property, plant
and equipment of US$E25 millen recognised previously under finance leases were reclassiicd to nght-ol-use
assets at January 1, 2009, All these assels were assessed for any impament based on 1A% 36 on that date
and presented under “Right-ol-use assels” in the consolidated slatement ol financial position.

The Group has used the following elective practical expedients when applying IFRS 16 @ January 1, 2015
- Lised & simgle discount rate to & portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics

. Applied the shof-lerm leases ecemplions o leases with lease term thal ends within 12 moaths al the
date of initial application

. Eacluded the initial disect costs from the measwement of the rght-ol-use asset al the date of mitial
applicalion

. Lised hindsight in determining the lease term where the confract contains options 1o extend or temminate
e lease

AMNUAL REFCRT 2019 'WH GROUP LMITED 13

171/315



™

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES (Continuad)
IFRS 16 Leases (Conlinuad)
Az & lessee — Leases previously classified as finance leases
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The Group did nol change the i@l carying amounts ol ecognised assels and liabilises at the date of inital
application for leases prestously classified as finance Bases. Accordingly, the camying amounts of Hhe right
ol-use asséls and the lease labilibes al January 1. 2019 were the carrying amounts ol the recognised assels

and liabalities (e, inance lease payables) measured under 1AS 17

Financial impact s January 1, 2019
The effect of adoplion IFRS 16 as &l January 1, 2009 is as follows:

Assels

Right-of-use assels SR8
Prepaid bease paymaenis (180}
Property, planl and equipment {25)
Prepayment, other receivables and other assols {4}
Fotal assets i)
Liabilities

Lease labilites/obligations under fmance leases 361

Acciued expenses and other payalles {2
Tolal liabilities 359

The lesse lmbilities as al Januay 1. 2019 reconciled o the opeating kease commitments as at December

31, 2018 are as lollows:

Operating lease commitments as al December 31, 2018 {Mote 41{b1)
‘Weighted average incremental borrowing rate as sl lanuary 1, 2019
Discoumted operahing lease commitments al lanuary 1, 2019

Audd:

Fresent valpe of beases payments mefating 1o leasas |JIl:":'.rr\l:adlr.l:.l
classilied as finance leases (Mote 17(c))

Lease kabiiives as &t Januany 1, 2009

ek
A.0%
361

WHGROUF LIMITED  AHMUAL REPCAT 2019
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES (Continued)

IFRIC 23 Uncerdainly over lncome Tax Treatnrents

IFRIC 23 addiesses the accounting Tor income lames (current and deferred) when lax treatments involve
uncertainty that affects the application of IAS 12 {often refered o as “uncertan lax positons”), The
interpretation does not apply to taxes o lesies oulside the scope of 1AS 12, nor does it specifically include
requirements relaling to interest and penalties associated with uncestain tax treatments. The interprefation
specilically addresses {i} whelher an entity considers uncertain tax treatmends separately; (i) the assumplions
an entity makes abtout the examination of tad treatments by tasation authorities; (G how an enfity determines
taxable profits o lax losses, lax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax crodils and tax rates: and (ivl how an
enfily considers changes in facts and circumstances, The Group adopbed the interpretation from January 1,
2019 retrospectively. Upon adoption of IFRIC 23, the Group has recopnised lax payables of US$L0 million
with a comesponding decrease in retained profits as at January 1, 2019

2.4 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIOMAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
The Group has not applied the following new and revsed IFRSs. ihatl have been bsued bul ae not yel
effeclive, in these financial statements,

Amendments o IFRS 3 Defintion of 8 Business'

Amendments o [FRS 9, 1AS 29 Interest Rate Benctimark Reformt
and IFRS S

Amendments o IFRS 10 and Safe or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
IAS 28 i Associate o ot Venture?

IFRS 17 Insirance Confracts?

Amendments o IAS 1 and IAS B Lhefinition of Materal

! Effescaret oo ananunl iy Dagening on of aitar Jenuary 1, 3020
= Effeciive for annusl pecicds beginning on of after dsnuary 1, 2021
4 No mandatory etectivee date delgrmaned Sl susiable for sarly sdoplion

Further infeemation about those IFRSs that ae expected o have an impact on the Group upon adoption is
diseribed  bedow, Whilst management has  performed an assessment of the estmated impacts of these
standards, that assessment 15 based on the information cuirently availabde 1o the Group, The actual impacts
upon adoplion could be different to those below, depending on additional reasonabde and supportable
information being made awilable o the Group al the time of applying the standards.

AMNUAL REFCRT 2019 'WH GROUP LMITED L]

173/315



EDINETOOOO
O0OO00O000000000000n0dnoOonod(e3osss)
Oooooooa

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2.4 ISSUED BUT MOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL FINANGIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Conlinued)
Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business
Amendments o IFRS 3 clwily and provide additional guidance on the deliniion of a business. The
amendments claify that for an integrated sel of actiities and assels to be considered a business, it must
mclude, at a minimum, an inpul and a substantive process that together significantly conlribuite to the ability
fo creale outpul. A business can exisl withoul including all of the mpuls and processes needed bo create
outpils, The amendments remdve the assessment of whether markel participants are capable of acquining
the business and continue bo produce oulputs. Instead, the focus s on whelher acquired mputs and acquired
substantve processes together sindicantly contribute to the abilty 1o create outputs, The amendments have
also namewed the definilion of oulpuls lo foous on goods or serdices provided bo customers, mvestment
icome or olber income from ordinary activiies. Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance o assess
whether an acquited process & substantive and introdece an oplional fain value concentration test o permit
a sanpliied assessment of whether an acquired el of activilies and assels 5 nol 8 business. The Group
expechs o adopt the amendments prospectively from January 1, 2020, Since the amendments apply
prespectively to transactions of other events thal ocour on of after the date of first application, the Group will
nad be affected by these amendments on the date of transition,

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 /nterest Rate Benchmark Reform

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 3% and IFRS 7 addiess the effects of interbank offered rate reform on financial
repotting, The amendments provide temporary refiefs which enabide hedge accounting to confinue during the
period of unceranty belore the replacement ol an ewsting inferest rate benchmark, In addition, the
amendments  require companies o provide  additional informateen  to Investors aboul  their  hedging
relationships which are directly affected by these uncerainfies. The amendments are effective for annuad
periods beginning on o alter January 1, 2020, Early apphcation bs permitted. The amendments are nol
papected o have any significant impact on the Group's financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and 145 28 Safe or Confribution of Assets hetween an fnvestor and its
Associale

Amendments to IFRS 10 and 1AS 28 addiess an inconsistency between the requisements in IFRS 10 and in
IAS 28 in dealing with the sale o contribution of assels between an investor and ®s associabe of joint
vendure. The amendments require a full recognition ol & gain or loss when the sale or contribution of assels
between an investor and its associate of jeint venture constitutes a business, For a transaction involing
asséls thal do not conslilube a business, a gain of boss resulling rom the ransaction i recognised in the
investor's profit o loss only to the extent of the unelated investor's interest m that associate of joinl ventire
The amendments ane o be applied prospecively,

Amendments to 145 1 and 1AS 8 Dedinition of Material

Amendments to 1AS 1 and I1AS 8 provide a new definition of material The pew definilion states that
information 15 matenial i cmitling, oesstating o obscuring it could reasonably be expected o influshce
decisions that the primary users of general putpose linancial slatements make on the basis of those financial
stalements. The amendments clarity that materality will depend on the nature or magnitude of informatien, A
misstatement of arlcomation is matenal iF 0 could reasonably be expected to mfluence decisions made by e
primary wsers, The Group expects to adopd the amendments prospectively frome lanuary 1, 2020, The
amendments are nol expected o have any sigmificant impact on the Group's financial silemaents.
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Business combinations and goodwill
Acquisitions of businesses are accounied for using the acquisition method. The cowsideratson transferred in
business combinateon s measured at T value, which s calcuied as e sum of the acquisition dabe Bir
values of the assets mansferred by the Group, habiliies incwrred by the Group to the former owners of the
aoquires and the equity inlerests ssued by the Groap in exchange lor conlrol of the acquiree. Acquisition-
telated cosls are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Al the acquisition date, the dentifiable assels acquired and the Iabilities assumed are necognised at their L
value, except that:

. deferred o assels o Bbilies, and assels or labidities elated o employes benell arrangements are
recognised and measured in sccordance with 1AS 12 Jncome Taees and 1AS 19 Employee Benefits
respsctively;

. labdities or equity instruments related to share-basod payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-
based payment arangements of the Group entered info bo replace share-based payment arrangements
ol the acquires are measwied in sccordance with IFRS 2 Sheve-based Payment at the acquisition date
{see the accounting policy below), and

. assols (or disposal groups) thal are classified as held for sale in accordance with IFRS & Aan-covrent
Aszars Helg for Safe angd Disconfineed Jperations are measured In accordance with that standard,

Goodwill s measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling sterests i the acquires, and the fir value of the acquiter’s previogsly held equity mterest an the
acquites (i any) over the nel amount of the identifiable assets acquired and the labilites assumed as al
acquistion date I, alles re-assessment, the net amount of the idenblable assets acquiied and labalities
assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquires and the fain valee of the acquirgs prevowsly held interest in the acquiree (0 amy), e escess i
recogmised ammediately in profit or loss as a basgan purchase gain

Mon-contrelling nlerests that are present owiership interests and entille their holders 1o 3 propotionate share
of the relevant subsidiany's net assets in the event of liquidation are initially measured edher at tair value or
al the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets, The choice of messuement basis is made on @ ransaction-by-transaction basis,

Goodwill arksing. on an acquisition of a business ks carfed al cosl as established al the dale of acquisition of
the business {see the accounting policy above) less any accumulated impairment kases, 8 any

For the purposes of imgairment testing, goodwill i allocated to each ol the Group's cash-generating units
{"CGUs") {or group of CGUs), thal i espected to benefit from the synergies of the combination, which

represent the fowest level al which the goodwill is moniborsd for intemal management porposes and  not
larger than an sperating segment,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Conlinued)

Business combinations and goodwill {(Continged)

A CGU (or group of CGLE) to which poodwill has been allocated is tested for impainmend annually, of moe
frequently when there s indication that the unil may be impaied. For goodwill anising on an acquisitien in a
reporting, period, the CGLU {or group of CGLUSs) o which goodwill has been allocated is tested o impairment
belore the end of thatl roporting pedod. | the recoverble amount @5 less than its canying amount, the
imparment loss s allocated fwst to reduce the canying amount of any goodwill and then 10 the other assets
on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or group of CGLIS),

O disposal of the relevant CGL, the attributable amount of goodwill is incleded in the determination of the
amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price thal would be received fo sell an asset or paid to tansfer a lability in an cederly
transaction between markel participants al the messurement date, The 1ad wlie measurement & based on
the presumplion thal the bansaclion to séll the assel or transfer the liabidily takes plbce either i the
princepal markel (o the asset o lability, o in the absence of a princpal madkel, in the most advantageors
market for the asset or liability. The principal o the most advantageous market must be accessible by the
Group. The Tair value of an assel or a Rability 5 measured using the assumplions that markel parbcipanis
would use when paicing the asset o labilly, assueming thal markel parlicipants act in their economic best
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a8 markel paicipant’s ability o generale
coomwomic benelits by using the asset in s highest and best use or by selling i o another markel. participant
that woubd use the assel in its highest and best use,

The Group wses waluation techmigues that are apgeopeiaie in ihe arcumstances and Tor which sufficient data
are available to measue fain value, mazimising the use of relevant observable inpuls and menimising the use
ol unobservabla inputs.

All assets amd Rabilities for which fanr value B measwed o disclesed in the financial statements are
categorised within e fair value hieachy, described as Tollows, based on the lowest level inpol thal s
significant to the fair value measurement as @ whole:

Level 1 = based on quoted prices (unadjusted) i active markels lon identical assets of habilities;

Lavel 2 — bused on valuation echniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the Tai
value measurement is obsesvable, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level inpul that & significant o the fai

walug measuement is uncbserable.

For assels and Imbilities thal are recognised i the financial statemends on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transiers have occumed betwesn levels In the hlerarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input thal is significant 1o the fair walee measurement as a whole} al the end of
each reporting pericd,
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties

A party & considered to be related to the Group if:

{a} the parly = a person or 8 close member of that persen's family and that person
1 has controd oo joint conteol over e Group;

{il}  has significant inlluence over the Group; o

{i)  is a mamber of the key managemant personnel of the Group or of a parent of the Groug;

(b} the party & an enfity where any of the following conditions apples:
{i}  the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

{i}  one enlity is an associate on penl venture of the other entity {or of a parent, subsidiary o Tellow
subsidiary of the ather antityl;

{ii}  the entity and the Gioup are point ventuses of the same third party;
{iv)  one enlily s 2 pand ventoie of a third enlity and the othes enlily 15 an associste of the third entsty.

v} the enlity is a post-employment benelil plan for the benefit of emplyees of either the Group o
an entity related to the Group;

i) the entity is conliolled o jeintly controlled by a persen identilied In (a);

(vil) o person dentified in (@Xi} has significant infheence ovwer the enlily of 5 a member of the key
ranagement personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entityl; ard

(i} the enbity, o any member of a gloap of which it 5 a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group o to the parend ol the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Conlinued)
Interests in associates and joint ventures
An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant infleence. Significant influence is the power to
partcipate m U fnancal and operating policy decisions of the imvestes bul 5 not contrel o joint contiol
over those polichs,

A joinl ventme is a jeint arangement whereby the parties thal have joinl control ol he amangement have
rights 1o the net assets of the jeint arangement. Joint contred is the contracually agreed sharmg of control of
an arangement, which exasts only when decisions about the relevant actiabies requine the unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control,

The resulls and assels and Eabiliies o associates and jonl ventures are incorporated m the oconsoldated
financial statements using the equity methed of accounting, Adpestments: are made to bring info line any
dissimilar accounting policies that may cxisl The fmancial statements of associales or joint venlures used Tor
edquily methed accounting puiposes are prepared Using uniloim accounting policles as those of the Greup Tor
like transactions and evenis in similar circumstances. Under the eguity methed, an mvestment in an
associale of @ joint ventune o initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position 91 cost
and adjusted therealter to recognise the Group's share of the profit or bess and other comprehensive income
of the associate of oinl ventuie, When the Group's share of losses of an sssociate of jont venlure exceeds
the Group's interest i thatl asseciate o joinl venfure (which inchedes any long-term inleests that, in
substance, foom part of the Group's nel mvestment in the associate o joint venture), the Group discontinges
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised onby 1o the exent that the Group has
incurred legal o constructive oblgations of made payments on behall of that associate of joind venture;

An investment in an associate of 8 pEnt ventule s sccounted for using the equity methed from the date on
which the invesiee becomes an associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of the investiment in an associate
or & joint venture, any excess of the oosl of the investment over the Group's share of the net fair vadoe of the
idenlilizble assets and labdities of the imestes s recognised as goodwill, which & inchided within 1he
carrying amount o the investment.

Any excess of the Groups share ol the net fair value of the idenfifiable assets and liabilities and contingent
liadvil@ees over the cost of acquisition, aller reassessmant, is recognised mmediately in peofil o loss in the
peesiod inowhich the investment is acouired,

Thee Group assesses whether thene s an objective ewdence thal the interest in an assocate of @ joint ventue
may be impaired. When any objective evidenoe exists, the enlire canying amount of the investment
tincluding goodwll) is tested for anpaliment m accordance with 1AS 36 Impeiimment of Adssets o a single
assel by comparig its recoverable amount (higher of valee in use and fair walue less costs of deposal) wilh
s canying amount. Any impairment boss recognised forms pad of the carving amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impaioment loss s recognised in accordance with 145 36 to the edent ihal the
recoveratde amoant of the investment subsequently increases.

B0 WHGROUF LIMITED AL REPCAT 2015

178/315



EDINETOOOO
O0OO00O000000000000n0dnoOonod(e3osss)
Oooooooa

Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Interests in associates and joint ventures (Conbinued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence gver an associate o joint control over 8 joinl venture, it
15 accounted for as a disposal of the entirg interest in the investée with a resulling gam of kss being
recognised in profit or boss. IF an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint venlture o vice
wersa, the refained interest is nol remeasured. In olher cases, the Group messures and recognises any
tetained investment al s lair valee. The dilference between the camying amound of the associale o joinl
venfure and the fair valee of any retained inferest and any proceeds from disposing the relevant interest in
the associate or joint venture = included in the delermanation of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate
of joind ventuse, In addition, the Gioup accounts for all amosunts prevously recopnised i other
comgarehensive ncome in relation o thal associate or joint venlure on the same basis as would be required
il that asseciate or joint venture had directly dispesed of the related assets or habilibes. Theselore, d a gain
o boss previously tecognised in other comprehensive income by thal associate or joint venture would be
teclassified 1o profil or kss on the dsposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifes he gan
o loss fromy equily bo peolil or lods (a5 a8 reclassihcaton adjustment) when the equity method s
discantinued.

When a group enlily fransacts with an asscciate or joint ventute of the Group, profits and losses resulting
from the tansaclions with the assocate or joint venlure are recognised in the consoldaled financial
statements only fo the extent of interests in the associate that are not related o the Group.,

Revenue recognition

Revenue from conlracls with customers

Revenue rom contracts with customens is recognised when control of goods or serdoes is ansferred 1o the
cisstomes al an amount that rellects the conskdesation to which the Greup expects to be entithed in
exchange for those goods or services.

Control of the goods o sepvioes |5 transtened over time Il the Graip's performance:

L provides all of the benelits received and consumed simultaneously by the customer;

. créales of enhances an assel thal the customen contrals as the Group pedormes; o

. does not create an assel with an allermalive use o the Group and (e Group has an enforceable right
ter payment for performance completed to date,

It control of the assed translers over fime, revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by rederence
1o the progress towards complete satisfaction of that perfonrance obdigation. Olherwse, 1evenue s recognised
al a poant in time when the customer oblains controd of the assel

The progiess tewards complete salisiaclion of the performance obligation is measured based on the Group's
efforts o0 inputs to the salisfaction of the pedormance obligation relative to the tolal exgpected offots o
inpats,

Depending on the terms of the confrack and the laws that apply to the confract, the control of the goods or
services may be transfened over time or at a poinl in time.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Conlinued)
Revenue recognition {Conlinued)
Revenue from conteacts with customears (Continued)
When ke consideration in & confract includes a varable amount, the amoeunt of consideration is estamated to
which the Group will be entitled in exchange for transterring the goods o serdces to the customer. The
variable consideration s estimatisd at conbract inceplion and constrained unlil it s highly probable thal a
sgnificant wevenue reversal mo e amound ol cumalative revenue  recognised will not ocour when the
associated vncertainty with the vamable consideration & subsequently resolved,

When the contract containg a financing companent which peovides the customer with a significant benefit of
financing the transier of goods or services 1o the owstomer for more than one year, revenuoe s messured at
the present value of the amount recelable, discounted ssing the discount mate that would be reflected n a
separale financing ransaction bekween the Group amd the customer al contract incepbion. When the contract
contains a financing companent which provides the Group a signilicant fimancial benefit for more than ene
year, revenue recognised undes the contract inchedes the interest expense acoreted on the confract Bability
under the effective interest method. For 8 conbiact where the penicd between the payment by the customer
and the transter of the promsed goods o Seiviees is one year of kess, the ansaction price is ool adjusted
for the effects of a significant financing compoenent, using the practical expedient in IFRS 15,

Revenue from the sale of meat and relted prodects is recognised at the point in e when control of e
assel B transferred 1o the customer, generally on delivery of the meat and related products.

Payment is generally due within 30 to 50 days from delivery, except for new customers, whese payment in
advwance s normally required, Sorme conracts for the sabes of meat and related products provide customers
with a right of returm and rebales which give rise to varable corsideration subject 1o constraint,

Service income i recognised over lime when services are sendered because ihe customer simaslamecusly
receives and consumes the benelit provided by the Group,

Revenue lrom ofher sources

Interest income s recognised on an accnial basis using the effective interest method by applying the mte
that exactly discounts the estimated Tulure cash receipts over the expected life of the Tinancial stroment o
a shoiber perfod, when appropaiate, to the net camging amount of the Tinancial asset,

Drivicbensd Income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to receive payment has bean established, @t s
probable that the economic benefits associabed with the dividend will Tow o the Group and the amount of
the dividend can be measured reliably.
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Contract assets
A confract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods o services transferred to the customer. I
et Geroup performs by anslering goods o sevices o a cuslomer belore the cuslomern pays consideration
o before paymen is due, & conlract assel is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional
Contract assels are subject to impairment assessimend, delails of which are incleded o the accounting
policees for mnpairment of linancial assels.

Contract liabilities

A contiact lability & recognised when a payment is received of a payment i due (whichever & earliery from
& customer bofore the Group transfers the related goods or services. Conteact labdities are recognised as
fevenie when the Gioup perfoiins undes the contract (e, tansters conticl of the related goods of services
to the customern).

Contract costs

Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventones, propertes under development, properly, plant and
equipment and intangible assets, costs incurred fo Wl @ contract with & cuslomser ae capitaised as an
assal if all of the following criteria are met:

{ab  the costs relste diectly to g contract o to an anticipated contract that the entity can- specilecally sdentily.

(b} the costs generate of enhance resoarces of the entity thal will be used in satistyang {of in confimuing 1o
salisty) performance obligations in the fulure; and

{c)  the oosts are expected to be recovered

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and chaiged to profit of loss on a systenats bases thal is
consistent with the patlern ol the revenue to which the asset relted is recognised. Other contract costs are
expensed as inourned.

Right-ol-return assets

Aovight-cd-return asset is recognised lon e Aght to recoves the geods expected to be retumed by cushomess,
The asset s measured at the former canrying amount of the goods to be retummed, less any expected costs to
recowel e goods and any potential decreases in Ihe value of the retwmed goods. The Group updstes the
messurement of the assel for any revisions o the expected level of peturns and any additional decreases in
the value of the returned poods.

Retund liabilities

A retund hability 5 recognised for the obligation to elund some o all of the consideration receved {(or
receivablel from a customer and 5 measured at the amoun the Groop ultimately exgects i will have 1o
return to the customer. The Group updates its estimates of refund liabiliies (and the comesponding change
in the transaction prced at the end ol each reporfing period
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Conlinued)
Leases (applicable from January 1, 2019)
The Group assesses al contract inception whether a condract is, o conlains, a lease. A contracl is, o
contains, a lease o the contract oonveys the right 1o control the use ol an identified asset for a pened of lime
m exchange for consideration,

Group a3 a lessee

The Group applies a sngle recognition and measurement approach tor all leases, except for short-lemm
leases, The Group recognees lease labiiies o make lease payments and rghl-ol-use assels representing the
right 1o wse e underlying assels.

fa)  Right-ol-use assals

Right-of-use assets are recognised al the commencement date of the lease (that i the date the
underlying assel is avaibible for wse) Right-of-wse assels are measursd al cosl, bess any accumulated
depreciation and any mipaliment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurensent of lease Rabilibes, The
cost of righl-of-use assels includes the amount of lease labilties recognised, initial direct cosls
mourred, and lease payments made al or belore the commencement date less any lease incentives
received Right-of-use assels are depreciated on a straght-line basis over the shoter of the lease lerms
and the estimated useful Tives of the asses as follows:

Leasehold land maore than 1 year lo 47 years
Buikdings maore than 1 year o 24 years
Motor vehicles more than 1 year fo & years

Plamt, machmeny and equapment maore than 1 year 1o 15 years
Contract farms maore tham 1 year 1o 15 years

I ownership of the lesed asel ransles 1o the Gioup by the end of the lease teim ol the ot ieflects
the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the
el

When the nghl-ol-use assels relates 1o intéiests in leasehold land held as  propemties under
development, they ae subsequently measured al e lower of cost and nel realsable walue in
accordance with the Group's policy for “Properties under development”™.
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases {applicable from lanuary 1, 2018) {Conlinued)

Group a5 a lessee {Continued)

o Lease Babilties
Lease Rabilities are recognised al the commencenent dale of the lease at the present value ol |ease
paymanis o be made ovwr the lease berme The lease payments inchede fiosd payments {including n-
substance figed paynments) less any lease incentnves receivable, variable lease payments that depend on
an index of a rate, and amcgnts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees, The lease
payments also inchede the exercise price of a8 puchase oplion reasonably cedam 1o be exarcised by the
Growp and payments of penalties for termination «f a lesse, il the lease lerm reflects the Group
exercising the option to terminate. The variable kease payments that do not depend on an index or a
rale are recognised as an expense in the penod in which the event or condition that triggers the
paymen! occurs,

I cabeubating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses is incremental bormowing ate at the
lease commencement dalte because the interesl mate implicit in the lease s not readily determinablbe
Aller the commencement date, the amount of lease lobilies 5 inoeased o elect the acoetion of
interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities
i5 remeasured i there 5 & modification, a change In the lease lenm, a8 change in lease paymants (88,
a change fo luture |ease payments esufling from a change in an index of mie) or a change in
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying assel,

The Group's lease liabilties are separately disclosed in the consolidated statement of financal position.

fed  Short-tenm leases
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to s shoit-term leases of baikdings,
pland, machinery and equipment and molos vehicles, (that is thoese leases that have o lease term of 12
minths o less from the commencement date and do nol contaln a puichase option), Lease payments
on shorl-term keases are recognised as an expense on a shaight-lne basis over the kease lerm

Group as a lessor
‘When the Group acls as a lessor, il classifies al lease inceplion {or when there i a lease modification) each
of s leases a% aithes an operating lease of a (mance lease,

Leases in which the Group does nol transier substantially all the nsks and rewards incidental fo ownesship of
an asset ae classified as opesating leases. When a conlract contains lease and non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract Lo each compenent on a ielative stand-alone selling piece
bask, Rental income is accounted for on a straighl-line basi over the lease terms and i recognised in
“Other income” in profit or loss. Initial direct costs incured in negotiating and asranging an opedating kease
ae added o e camyeng amount of the leased assel and recognised over the lease term on the same basis
as rental income. Contingen! rents are recognised a5 revenue n the period in which they are sarned

Leases that transler substantially all the risks and rewards incidental fo cwnership of an underlying assel 1o
the lpssee are accounted for as linance leases
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Conlinued)
Leases (applicable before January 1, 2019)
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the lemms of the lease anster substantially all the nisks and
rewards of ownership o the lesses All other leases are classified as operating leases,

Group as a lessees

Assets held under finance leases are recognised a5 assets of the Group at their fair value at e inception of
the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding lEability to the
leszor 1% incleded m the consolidated stalement of linancial position as & linance lease obligation.

Lese payments aae apportioned between finance expenses and redection of the kase obligalion so as to
achieve a constanl rale of mleresl on the renamning balance of the liabilly, Fisnce charpes ame recognised
immediately in profit o boss as finance costs, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in
which case they are capialised in accordance with the Group’s general policy on bosrowing cosls (Sec the
accounting polley below),

Uperating lease payments ate recognised as an operabing expense on a shalghidine basis over the lease
term, except where another systematic basis s more representative of the time pattern in which econonmc
benedits from the leased assel are consumed.

Group as a lessor

Rental income from operating leases i recogmised in profit of loss on a staght-ine basis over the term of
the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incwrred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the lexsed assel and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental
o, Conlingend renls are recognised as revenue in the peiod in which they se esned.

BB WHGROUP LIMITED &AL REPCAT 2018

184/315



EDINETOOOO
O0OO00O000000000000n0dnoOonod(e3osss)
Oooooooa

Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment, including buildings held 1or use in the preduction o supply of goods or
semices, of lof administrative purposes other Than propeies under constructon, as described below, are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and subsequant accumubaled impairment lesses, 1 any.

Freehold land is not depreciated,

Depreciation s recognised so a5 o write off the cost ol iterns of property, plant and equipment other than
frechold land and propedies under construction less their residual values over e estimated oselul lives,
using the slaight-lne melhod. The estimated uselul lives, residual walues and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each repoing peniod, with the effect of any changes i estimate accounted for on the

Tollowing basis:

Buildings 1t 40 years
Mator vehicles 3to 10 years
Plant, machinery and equipment 5 to 25 years

Construction i progress or production, supply o adminstrative purposes are camied al cost, less any
recognised  impainment koss. Costs inclede professional tees and, lor qualilying assets, borowing cosls
capitalised i accordance with the Group's accounting policy. Such assets are classified to the approprate
calegories of property, plant and equipmeent when completed and ready for inlended wse. Depreciation o
these assets commences when the assels are regdy lor their intended use

Assets hokd ender finance leases (belore January 1, 20019) are depreciated over their expected useful lives on
the same base as the Group's own assets. However, when there s no ressonable certainty thal ownership
will be obtained by the end of the bease term, assels are depreciated over the shorter of the kease lenm and
thesi usedul ves,

An tem of property, planl and equipment is deecognised upon disposal o when no fulure econommc
benefits are expected to arse from the conlinued use of the assel Amy gam o loss arising on the

derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment determined as the difference bebween the sales
proceeds and the carrying amound of the assel is recogmised m prodit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Conlinued)
Froperties under development
Properties under development are stated al the lower of cost and net realisabde value and comprse land
costs, construction costs, borowing costs, professional lees and ofher costs directly attnbutabile 1o such
properties incured during the development period.

Properties under development are chassilied as current assels unbess the constiuction period of the relevant
property developanent project is expected o complete beyond the normal operating cycle. On completion, the
properties ae ransfened o completed properties held for sale

Borrowing costs

Bomrowing: costs direclly atiributable to the acquesition, construction of production of qualibying assels, which
are assets hal necessanily ke a substantial period of time fo gel ready for their intended use o sale, ae
added o the cost of those assels until such time as the assets are substantislly ready for thisir mtended wse
oF Sake

All other boreewing costs are lﬁﬂﬂﬂw i profit or bess in the penod in which they are incurred.

Binlogical assels

Biological assets represent five hogs and poultry, which fall inlo five categonies: suckling hogs, nuesery hogs,
finisher hogs, broidlers and breeding stock (hogs and poultry). They are measured on inflial recognition and at
the end of each reporing period at ther tair valoe less oosts o sell A gain or loss ansing on initial
recognition of biological asset at fair value less costs o sell and from a change in fair value less costs to sell
ol a bidlogical assel is included in profit or loss for the period n which & arises.

The agricultwral produce {ie carcass) harvested from the biclogical assets s messwed at is Tair valoe less
costs to sell at the pont of hafest Sech measurement 15 the cost al that date when apphang 1AS 2
Inveritovies upon initial recognition. A gain of loss arising from agriculiural preduce al the poind of harvest at
Fair walue less costs boosell i incleded i proll of ks for the period in which It arises,

Intangible assels

Intangible assels acquired in a besiness combination

Intangible assels acquired in a business combinglion and recognised separately from goodwil are itially
recognised al their fair value al the acquisstion date (which & regarded as their cost),

Subsequent to inital recognition, mtangible assels acquired in a business combination with finite uselul lives
are reporled al cost less accumulated amortisation amd any accumubsted impainment losses, on the same
basis as intangibée assets that are acquited separately. Altemnatively, mtangible assets acquited in a business
combination with indefinfe uselul lives are camied ol cost less accumulated impamment losses {seo the
scceunting policy in respect of Impanment losses on langibde and intangible assels below)

Intangible assels acquired separately

Intangible assats with finite usedul lives that are acquied separately are carmed al cost less accunmslaled
amtisalion and any accumulated impamment bosses. Amortisalion lor intangible assels with finite uselul lives
s recognised on a straight-line basis over Wheir estimated useful lives: The estimated useful Hie and
amortisation methed are reviewed at the end of sach reporling period, with the effect ol any changes in
estimate being accounted for on @ prospeclive basis,
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Intangible assets {(Conlinued)

Intermally-generated intangible acsets — Research and development expenditune

Expenditume on research activitics i recogmsed as an expense in the peiod in which it is imcurred,

An internally-generated intangible asset ansing from development aclivities (o Trom the development phase of
an indemal project) s recognised i, and only i, all ol the lollowing have been demonstrated:

. e technical feasitality of completing the intangible assel so that il will be available lor use or sale:
. ihe intention to complete and its ability and intention fo use o sell the assel;
. how the intangible assel will generate probable future economic benefits;

. the availabiity of adequate technical, financial and sther resources to compdele the developmen! and lo
use of sell the intangible asset; and

. the abiity to measure refably the sxpenditure atbibutable to the intangibde assef duning its development.

The amount initially ecopnised for infemnally-generated mtangible pssets is the sum of the expenditure
incurred from the date when the infangible asset first meels the recognition criteria listed abow. Whese no
internally-genemated mtangible assel can be recopmised, development expenditure i recogmised i profit o
loss i the peniod in which it is incurred.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no fulwre economic benalits are expected (rom use
of disposal, Gans and keses atising from derecognition of an imangible asset, messured a% e difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the camrying amount of the assel, e recognised in profil or loss
when the assal 15 derecognised.

Inventories
Inventoies ade staled at the bwer of cost of the deemed cost for agiculture prodiuce Bavested from
biological assets and net realisable value, Cost is calculated using the weighted-average meathod.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

Impairment on tangible and intangible assels other than goodwill (see the accounting policy n respect
of goodwill above)

Al the end of each reporting perdd, the Group reviews the carmying amounts of &5 langible and intangitle
assels with finite useful lives to determing whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
mpairmant ks, 11 any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the assel B estmaled in order to
determine the exlent of the mpairment boss, if any. When it s ol possible 1o eshimale the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU o which the asset
belongs, When a reasonable and consislent basis ol allocalion can be wentilied, corporate assels e ako
allocated o ndividisal CGUs, of otherwise fhey are allocated 1o the soallest group o CGUs for which a
reasonable and consislent alocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite vseful lives and intangibde assels not yet available for use are lested o
mpairmant at least annually, and whenever there i an indication that thoy may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and valee in use. In assessing value in
e, e estimated future cash fows are discounted (o their present walue wsing a pre-dax decount mate that
reflects current market assessments of the ime value of money and the nsks specilic o the asset for which
the estmeates of luture cash ows have nol been adjested.

Il the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGUY is estimated to be less than ils carmang amount, the
carrying amaount of the assel for a CGUY i reduced To its recoverable amount. In allocating the impakment
Ioss, the impaiment boss is aliocated fist to reduce the canying amount of any goodwill (il applicable) and
then to the other assels on a pro-ada basis based on the camying amount of each asset in the unit. The
carying amoent of an assel is nol reduced below the highest of Bs lair value less costs of disposal (i
measurable), s value in use (i determinable) and reto, The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allcated o the assel is allkcsled pro orala to the ofher assets of the onil. An
ingiment loss s lecognised inmamedately in profit o loss,

Where an impasrment loss subsequently reverses, The camying amound of the assel {or CGLD Is increased o
the revised estimale of ils recoverable amount, so that the increased carrying amount does nol exceed the

carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment bess been recognised for the asset (o
A COUY an prior years, A reversal of an impainment koss s recognised immediately in profit o boss,
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group entity becomes a parly to the
contraciual provisions of the instrament

Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acowisition or issue of linancial assels and financial
liabslities fother than financial assels o Ginancial [@talities at fai value through prolil or kess CCFYPLYY are
added 10 or deducted from the fair valee of the flinancial assets o financial liabifities, as appropeate, on
initial recognition. Transachon costs direclly altributable o the scquisition of fmancial sssels. or linancial
liabélities at FYPL are recognised immedistely in profit of loss,

Financial assels

Imvlial recogmition and rmessuremeant

Financial asselts are classied, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured a8t amolised cost, Tanr value
thiough other compiehensive Income (“FWOCI"), and FVPL,

The classificalion of linanceal assels al inital recognition depends on the financial assel's contracheal cash
o characlenstics and the Group's business medel for managing them. With the exception of frade
receivables thal do nol contain a significant financing componen! or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient of ool adjusting the effect of a signiicanl fmancing component, the Group intially
measures a financial asset at ids fair value, plus in the case of a linancial asset not at fair valee through
profit of boss, ansaction oosls. Trade recetvables that do nol contain 8 significant linancing componet o lo
which the Group has applied the pactical expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under
IFRS 15 in acomdance with the policies sel oul Tor "Revenue recognition” above:

In order for & financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cosl o lain value theough other
comprehensive income, it needs to give nse to cash flows that are solely payments of peincipal and inlerest
("5PP1"} on the prncipal amount outstanding. Financial assels with cash flows that are not SPPI are
classified and measmed at fan valee through prolit of loss, irespective of the busiess model

The Group's business model for managing linancial assets efers to how E manages its linancial assels in
oidar 1o gensiate cash llows. The business model determines whether cash Tows will resull Trom collecting
contiaciual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Fnancial assets classified and measured al
amoised cost ae held within a business model with the objective o hold financial assels in order lo collect
conlractual cash  flows, while linanceal assets classified and messured al far value through  ofher
comprehensive income are held within a business model with the obgective of both holding to collect
contiachual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which aie not held within the atorementioned business
medels are classified and messured of Gir alue through probt or kes.

All regular way purchases and sales of tmancial assels are ecognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commils to purchase o sell the assel. Regular way purchases o sales are purchases or sales

of financial assets thal require delivery of @ssets within e penod gendally established by reguistion o
convention n the markelplace,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Confinued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assats (Confinued)
Subseqient medsyrement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as Tollows:

Firgncial a: of fa i 3

The Group’s financial assets at amotsed cost incledes wade, bills and other receivables, pledgediesinicled
bank deposits and bank balances and cash ae subsequenty messured using the ellective interest method
and are subject to impaimment. Gains and losses are recognised noprofit or loss when the assel s
derecognised, modified o impaired.

& AARELS d frrariise

finencial assels ol FYEL
Financial assels ol FVPL are camied in the statement of linancial position at fair value with nel changes in
talr value recognised in profit of loss,

This category includes derivative and ungusted equity instruments which the Group had not imevocably
elected to classity at FVOCL Dividends on equity investiients classified as financial assets at FWPL are abso
recognised as other income in profit o loss when the right of payment has been established, @ is probable
that the economic benelits - assoclated with the divedend will flow o e Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably,
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Confinued)
Financial assets {Continued)
Subsequent measurement (Contimued)
fmpairment | Assers
The Group recognises an allowance lor expected credit losses ("ECELs") Tor all debd instrumants nol held 2t
FYPL. ECLS ave based on the diffetence between the conlraclual cash lows due in accodance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Group espects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the
onginal efective mlerest eie. The expecled cash fows will inclede cash flows liom the sale of collatesad held
of other credit enlancerments that are integral o the coliractual terms

SEner ickach

ECLs are recognised in two slages, For credit exposures for which there has nol been a significant increase
in eredit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from defaull events that
are possible within fhe next 12 months (a 12-month ECLY For those credit expesures for which there has
been a signifcant increase in ocredit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining e of the esposure, imespective of he Gming of the detault (a Wetame ECLY

Al each eporling date. the Group assesses whether the creddl sk on a tmancial instrument has icressed
signicantly since inilial recognition. When making the assessment, the Group comgares the nsk of a detaull
ooouming on the financial instrument as at the reporting dafe with the risk of a defaslt ocourring on the
fisancial mstrument a5 o the date of initial recopnition and considers ressonable and supportable information
that is avaikable withoul undue cost or elfort, including historical and forward-looking information,

Financial assets &l amortised cosl are subject o mmpairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement of ECLs except for rade receivables which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.

Slage 1 — Financial instuments for which credit risk has not increased  significantly  since  mitial
recognition and for which the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs

Slage 2 — Fmancial instruments for which credit rigk has increased significantly since initial recognition

bl that are ned credit-mpaired Gnancial assets and Tor which the loss allwance is
measured al an amount equal fo lilelime ECLs

Stage 3 == Fmancial sssels thel are credd-ompaired ot the repoting date (bul that are nod purchised o
originled credit-impaited) and for which the loss allowance is measwed at an amount
wiquel T Ffetirme ECLs
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Caonfinued)
Financial instuments (Continued)
Financial assats (Confinued)
Subseqient medsyrement (Continued)
Impairment of fnancial assets (Continued)
smpliteed appioach
For trade recevabdes thal do not contain a signifecant inancmg component of when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing companent, e Group apphes the
simplified approach in calculstmg ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group does nol track changes in
credit rsk, but instead recognises a koss allowance based on lfelime ECLs al each reporting date. The Group
has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credil loss experience, adjusted lor lorward-
leoking tactoss specilic fo the debloss and ihe economs: environment.

For lrade roceivables thal contain a significant financing compenent, the Group chooses as its accounting
pedicy to adopt the simplified appraach = calculating ECLs with policies as descnbed above.,

Financial liabilities and equily instruments

Dbt and equity instruments ssued by a group entity are classified as edther financial Rabilities or as equity
i accordance with the substance of the contaciual arangements and the definiticns of a financid Rability
and an equily nstiument.

Eqquity fnstrumerits

An equity instrumemn is any confract that ewidences a residual interest in the assels of an entity atter
deducting all of its Rabilifies. Equity instruments ssued by the Company are recorded al the proceeds
received, net of direct issue cosls,

Financial halilifes af amortised cost
Financial labiliies, incleding borrowings, bank overdraits, and trade and other payables, are subsequently
measured al amotised cost, using the oflective interest method,

Effective interest method

The ellective mterest method B a method of caloulating the ammlised cost of a imancial liability and of
alircating interest expense during the year. The effective interest rate is the rale that exaclly discounts
estimated future cash payments (ncluding all tees and poants paid or received thal form an integrmal part of
the effechve infercst mate;, ramsaction costs and ofher premiums of discountst thiough the expected Bfe of the
flinanci liabality, or, where appropriale, a shofer period to the net canying amount on initial recognition.
Interest expense 15 recognised on an ellechve inteiesl busis,
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Confinued)
Dffsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financal labdlities e offsel and the net amount is reported i the consolidated
statement of financial position if there is @ currently enforceable begal right 1o offsel the recognised amounts
and there is an intendion lo sellle on & nel basis, or fo realise the assels and seiile the labdities
sirnullamecusly.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivalives are infially recognised al fair value al the date when derivalive contracts ame entered info and are
subsequently remessured to their fair value at the end ol the reporting period. The resulling gain or loss is
recopnised in profit of kss manvediately unless the demmative s deslgnated and effective as a hedging
instrumaent, in which evend the timing of the recognition in prolit or loss depends on the nabwre of the hedge
relationship.

Hedge accounting
The Group designates certain dervatives as hedging mstruments Tor fain value hedges and cash low hadges.

Al the inception of a hedging relationship, the Group documents the relationship between the hedging
insteurment and the hedged ibem, along with its nsk nenagement objechives and its stiategy for underaking
wvariows hedge ransactions. Fudhermore, at the inceplion of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, the Group
docurments whether the hedging insteument s highly effective in offseting changes in Gair values of cash
lkews ol the hedged flem attributable to the hedge risk.

Falr walve hedges

Changes in the lair valuee of derialives that are designated and qualily as fain value hedges are recognised in
profit o loss immediately, logether with any changes in the fair vahee of the hedged asset or liability that are
aftribatable 1o the hedged risk, The change in the fair valee of the hedging instrument and the change in the
hedged item atinbutable to the hedged risk are recognised in profit of loss in the e fem relating 1o the
hedged tem

Hedge acoounting is discontinued when the Group revokes the hedging relationship, when the hedging
instrument expires o is sold, terminated, or exercised. o when it ne longer qualifies for hedge accounting

The fair value adjustment to the carying amount of the hedged fem arising from the hedpged sk is
recoantsed 1o prodd o loss from that date,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Confinued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Derivative financial instruments {Continued)
Cash fow hedges
The effective portion of changes in the falr value of detivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flew
hedges are recognised in other comprehensive imoome and accumulated i other reseive. The gain or koss
redating 1o the imeffective porfion s recognised immediately m profit of loss and & included in the "Olher
gaing and (losses)” ling item,

Amounts previously recognised in other comprefensive income and accumulated in equity (other reservel} are
reclassilied to profit of loss in the periods when the hedged item affects prolit o loss, in the same line of the
consolidated statement of profd of loss and olher comprelensive oo as the recopnised hedged e

Hedge asccounting s discontinued when the Group revokes the hedging reltionship, when the hedging
instrumeent expares of B osold, teiminated, of exerclued, of when it no knger qeslifies ler hedge scoounhing,
Any gain or loss recognised m other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity at that time remains
in equity and is recognised when the lorecast ransaction s ultimately recognised o prodit or less, When a
forecast transaction i no longer expected o ocour, the gain or loss accumulated in equity is recognised
mmnedialely in pralil o loss.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contraclual rights to the cash Nows Trom the assel
cageire, of when it ransiers the financial asset and substantially all the rsks and rewards of ownership of the
astel o ancther entity. On derecognition of a Tinancial assel in ils entirety, the difference between the assel's
carmying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receiable is recognised in profit o loss,

The Group derecognises fnancial labilies when, and only when, the Group's obligations are dischaiged o
cancelled, or expire, The diference between the carying ameant of the financial liabiity derecognised and
the consederation paid and payabde i recognised in profit or loss,

Provisions

Provesions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation {ogal or constructive} as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation, and a melable estimate can be
made of the amound of the obligalion. The amounl recognised a5 a piovision is the best estimate ol the
conskieration required to settle fhe present obdigation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account
the risks and uncerfainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured wsing the cash flows
estimated o seltle the present obligabion, its camyng aineunt s the piesent waloe of those cash flows (whee
the effect of the time value of money & natenal),

When some of all of the economic benelits required 1o setthe a provision are expected to be recovered ioim
A third parly, 8 receivable is recognised as an assel if it s virtually certain that reimbursement will be
received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Share-based payment arrangements
Awarded sharesfshare options granled to employees
For grants of sharesshare options that are conditional upon satistying specified vesting conditions, the Eair
value of services received is determined by reference to the lain value of shares/share options granted al the
date of grant and 15 expensed on a stiaight-ling basis over the veshing pened. with & conesponding increase
in equaly (ol reserve) For grants of shares/share oplions thal vest immediately at the date of gant, the
Tair valwe of the awarded shares i recognised immediately in peofit or loss,

Al the end of The repotting peniod, the Group revises its estimates of the number of share options that ae
expecled fo wiimately vest. The inpact of the revsion of the aiginal estimates, if any, is recognised in profit
of boss sch that the cumilative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a conesponding adpistiment fo
olher resenve,

Whien share oplions are exercised, the amount prevously ecognised i other reseive will be transterred 1o
share premium. When the share options are lofeited alter the veshng dale o are still nod exercised at the
expiry date, e amount previously recognised in other reserve will be tansferred 1o relaimed profits

Dividends
Final dividends are recognised as a liabilty when they are approved by the shareholders in @ geneial
meeting. Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes o the linancial stalemenis.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because the Company's memorandem and
articlkes of association grant the directos the authority o declare inferim divdends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recogmssd immediately a5 a liabsity when they are proposed and dectsed,

AMNRL REPORT 2019 'WH GROUF LIMITED ar
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Conlinued)
Taxation
Income lax expense represents the sum of the tax curently payable and deferred tax

The tax currently payable is based on tasable profit lor the year. Taxable profit differs from “profit beloee tax”
as repated in profil o0 boss because of income of expense that is takable of deductible in other years and
e that are never taable or dedectibbe. The Groug's lmability lor corent tax B caloulated using tax rabes
that have been enacted o substantively enacted by the end of the repoding period,

Dederted lax is recognised on lemposaty differences between the canying amounls of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the comesponding fax base used in the compulation of laable
profit. Defened Lac liabdiles e gensally recogmised for all beasble temporay déferences, Defernd fax amsels
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences that can be ulilised, Such deferred . tax
assels and Habilikes are not recognised il the wemporary difference arises irom the infial recognition (other
than in a bisiness combination} of ather assels and kabaliies ioa fransaction that affects neither the taxable
pralit o the accounting profil

[eferred tax habilities are recognised for taxable temporary diierences associated with invesiments in
subsidianes, mssociates and joint vendures, excepl where the Group i able o conliol the reversal of the
temporary difference and it s probable that the temposasy difference will not reverse in the foesecable
future. Defered tax assels arsing from deductible temporary differences associated with such investments
and interests are only recogmised to e extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taable profits
apainsl which o wilise the benefs of the lemporary differences and they are expected lo reverse in the
foresecable Tulure

The carying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no kboger probable that sufficient taxable profils will be available lo allow all or pat of the
assel 1o be recovered, Unrecognised defemed tax assets are re-assessed al each reporting date and are
recognised to the extent el @ has bocome probable that fulure tasable profits will allow the delened tax
assel o be recovered

Dederred tax asscls and labilibes are measured al the lax rates thal are expected 1o apply in the penod in
which the liability is settled of the asset is realised, based on tax rates (and tax kaws) thal have been
enacted or substanlively enacled by the end of the repoting period.

Ther messurement of deferred tax Babilites and assels reflects the tax cosequences. thal woulbd follow Trom
the mannar i which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, o recover or seltbe the canying
amount of its assets and labilibes,

Cument or deferred lax & recopnied in prolit o oss, except when it selates 1o iters that are recognised in

other comprehensive income of direclly in eguity, in which case the cumenl and deferred lax is akso
recognised in olher comprehensive mcome of directly in equily respectively,

o8 WHGROUF LIMITED AL REPCAT 2015
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currencies
In preparing the fimancial stalements of each individual group entity, transactions in cunrencies offeer than the
Tuncticnsl currency of that entity (feeeign cunencies) are recorded at the rates of cxchanges prevailing on the
dales of the wamsactions. AL the end of the reporting period, monetary dems denominated i foreign
currencees are melanslated at the rates prewailing al thal dale. Non-monetary fems thetl ae measared in
lepnes of histoncal cost i a Tosesgn currency are nod relranslated.

Exchange dillerences ansing on the settlement of monelary fenms, and on the retranslation of meonelary items
are tecognised in profit o boss in the perod in which they arise,

For e purposes of presenling these consolidated financel stalements, the laepn currencies denominated
assets and liabilities of the Group are tanstated into the presentation curency of the Group (US$) using
exchange ates prevailing at the end of each reporting peried. Income and cxpense fems are anslated al
the average exchange rates for the year, Exchange differences arkng, If any, are recognised o ofher
comgrehansive income and accumudaled in equity in the bansition reserve (attnbuted o non-contredling
interest @5 appropaated.

In detesmining the exchange rale on mitial recognition of the elated assel, expense of mcome on the
derecognition of a non-monetary assel of non-menetany lakslity relating to an advance conssderation, e date
of initial transaction = the date on which the Group intially recognises the non-monetary assel or non-
monelary lmabilty ansing from the advance consideration, If there are multiple payments o receipts. in
advance, the Group determines the transaction dale o each payment of receipt of the advance
consideration.

On the disposal of a foeign operation, all of the exchange differences accumulated in equily in respect of
that operation aftribulable fo the owners of the Company are reclassilied o profit o loss.

Government grants
Government grants are recognised where these is reasonabde assurance that the Group will comply wilh the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Governmeent granis are recognised in prodit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the elaled costs for which the granls are inlended o compensale. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition 15 that the Group should purchase, construct or atherwise acquiee
non-cument assots are recognised as defemed evenue in the consoldated stabement of financial positon and
Iransterred 1o prolil o loss on a systematic and @bional basits ovar the uselul lives of the related assets.

Governmen! granls that are eceiable as compensalion for expenses of losses aleady mourred or for the
purpose ol gving imamediate financial support to the Group with no (uture related costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period i which they become receivable,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Conlinued)
Cash and cash equivalents
Fos the pupose of the consolidated statemend of cash flows, cash and cash equivalenis comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and sheel team highly hguid investments thal are readily convestible mbo known
amounts of cash, are subject lo an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafls which are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpese of the consolidaled statenent of financial position, cash and cash equivalents compiise cash
on hand and at banks, including term deposits and assels similar in nature 1o cash, which ade nol restricted
as o usa

Retirement benefil costs and termination benefits
For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing benafits is determined using the projected
umlt credit method, with actuailal valuations being carmed oot at the end of the repoiting perd,

Drefined benefit costs are categonsed as lolkows:

. service oosl (indluding currend service cosl, pasl semvice cosl, as well as gains and Bsses on curtailments
and setthements);

. el inlesest expense o income; and
. remeasurement,

The Group presents the lest bwo components of délined benell cosls in profil o boss a5 employes beneht
expeivse, Curtailment pains. and losses are accounted for as past service costs. Past service cosl s
recognised in profil or loss in the pericd of 8 plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying the
discount rabe at the beginning of the perod o the net defined benefd lability o asscel.

Remeaswrement, comprising acluarial gains and losses, the eftect of the changes to the assel ceiling (if
applicablel and the refum on plan assets (excluding interest), |s rellected Immediately in the consoldated
staternent of financial position with 8 charge or eredit secognised in ofher comprehensive meome in the
period in which they oocur. Remeasuremenl recognised in other  comprehensive income s reflected
immedaptely in retained profits amd will not be reclassified to profit o loss

1w WHGROUF LIMITED AL REPCAT 2015
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits (Conlmued)
The retitement benelfl obdigation recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position represents the
dishcit or surplus i the Group's deined benefit plans, Any sorplus resulling from this calculation s Imited o
the present vahie of any economic benefils available i the form of refunds and eductions in Tuture
contributicns o the plans,

The employees of the Group in Chisa and Hong Kong are members of state-managed refirement  benedfit
schemes and membeis of the Mandatory Poovidend Fund Scheme ("MPF”) respectively, the obligations al the
Group under which are equivalent o those anising in a delined contribedion refirement benefit  plan.
Contribastions 1o state-managed retirement benelit schemes and MPF are recognised as an axpense when
enployees have rendesed seraces entitling them o the contribitions,

Payments to defined contribution relirement benefil plans ae recognised a5 an espense when employees.
have rendered services entitkng them to the contribations

A Bability tor @ termimation benelil s recognised at the eardier of when the Group enfity can no longer
withdiaw the offer of the termenabon benelt and when It recognlses any related festiuchuning costs

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
The following are the key assumptions concerning the fulure and ofher key sources of estimation uncerfainty
al the end of the repotting pedod, thal have a significant risk of causing a matersal adjustoment to the
camying amounts of assets and liabalities within the next financial year.

Fair value measurement of live hogs included in biological assets

The Group engaged an independent qualified waleer to perfform the live hog valuations al the end ol each
iepoiting perod, the tair valies less cosls o sell are detemined based on the peice of hogs i the sclivily
traded maiket, sublracting the breeding costs required o saise the hogs o be slaughtered and the margins
that would De required by a raser and less costs 1o sell, with relerence to the latest budgets approved by
management.  This defermination involved the use of significant judgements and estimates. Il the actual
results ditfer to the onginal estimates made by management, such differences rony the onginal estimates will
impact the fadar value change recognised in profil or Bss in the mepoting period. The canying amount of live
hogs was USEL 100 million as at December 31, 2019 (2018 US3542 million) {see note 18).

Goodwill

Determining whether goodwill = impaired requires an estimation of the recovemble ameunt of the CGUs o
which goodwill has besn allecated, which s the higher of the walue in wse or lair value less costs of
disposal. The valuedn-use calculation requires the management of the Group Io estimate the fulure cash
Tlews expected to arise from the CGUs and a switable discount rate in order to calculate the present value
Whete the acisal futuie cash ows are bes than expected, a ostenal inpaiiment lss neay arse,

The: carrying amaunt ol goodwill was US$1.955 millkon as at December 31, 2019 (2018 USHLE4T miSion)
Details of the recoverable amount calculabion are declosed in note 19,
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

4, KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Intangihle assets

In accounting for intangible assets, management of the Group considers the polential impaitment based on
the recoverabde amount, Intangibie assels with Tinite useful lives are reviewed for impairment when events o
circumsiances idicate the camying value mey not be recoverable; intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
are reviewisd Tor impairment annally, inespective of whether there is any indication that # may be impaired.
Factors thal would indecate polenteal impairment mag inclede, but ae nol limited 10, the significant change in
technology and operating losses assoriated with the intangitde assels,

[eterméning whether intangible assels are impaired requires an estimation ol the recoverable amount of the
CGLls o which intangible asselts has been allocated. The ecoverable amount of CGUs at the end of each
feparting period & basad on the higher of the fali value less cost of disposal and waliee i ose The waliein-
use calculation requires the management of the Group to estimate the ulwe cash flows expected to arise
from the CGUs and a suitable discount rate i order to calculate the present walwe. Where the actual future
cash llows are less than expected, a matenal imgadrment loss may anse.

The carnging amount of intangibbe assets was USHL712 million as at December 31 2009 (2018 U5$1.734
millicn} {see note 20,

Inventories

Invenlosies are stated at the lower of cost or the deemed cost for agricullure produce harvested from
baologcal assets and nel realisable value. MNet realisable vadee s the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.

Management o the Group pernodically reviews invenfones for slow-moving inventories, olsolescence of
declines in market value This review requires them 1o estimate the el realisable value based upon
assumptions about Tufure demand and market conditions. I the estimate of net realisable walue & below the
cost of inventories, the Group will record a wrile-down of inventories for the dilference between cost and net
realisabbe value, which will resull in 8 conesponding increase m cost of sales. 11 the nel realisable walue 5
less than the canying amount, write-down on inventories may be required. The carrying amount of
imventones was WS$2.903 million as at December 31, 2019 (2018 US$2.022 million) (see note 23),

Valuation of the obligation in respect of defined benefit plans

In determining the obligation in respect of defined benalit plans, the Group has engaged an achewial expert
to. perform the scluanial valuation of plan assets and the present vatue of the defined benefit obligations, and
the key assumplions used incheding discount mates, edqpected salary increases and modality rates. The
dascount rales assumsplions aie detemined by relerence to welds an bigh-qualty coiporate bonds and
povernment bonds yelds ol appropriate duration and  curency al the end of he reporting penod.  The
cupecied retums on plan assels ate determined on the historical returns and asset allocations by considering
the fulure market and economic conditions. The expected mie of salary increase is referenced by the salary
scale projected by management and the medtality rates are referenced by demographic markel dala

During the year ended December 31, 2019, remeasurement losses after tax effect amounding to 153143
million were recognised direclly in equity in the period in which they occurred (2018 US$6 million). The

Group's obdigabion in respect of net pension liakslity a6 al December 31, 2009 amounted to LSE566 million
{20H18: US40 million) {see note 35),
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
An anakisis of revenue s a8 lollows:

2019 ‘018

LSS million LSS million

Packaged meats 12,31 12,147
Fresh poek 10,078 9,136
Hog fareduction 937 bEs
Ohers 757 B34

24,103 22805

Maore than 99% (2018 more than 99°%) of the Group's tevenue was recognised al a point in lime
Set out below i the amount of revenue recognised fiom

2018

U5 million

Amounts incheded in contract liabilities al the beginning
o the yesar 148 8

The remaming pefamance obligations (unsatisfied @« partially unsatisfied) a8 at December 31, 2019 and
Dwcember 31, 2018 mgarding the sabe of meal and relaled products and service income ae aapeciod 1o be
recopmsed a5 revense withe ang year
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Segment information
The Group delenmines its opemating segments based on the reports revieaed by the executive directors of the
Company who aie ako the chiel operaling decision makers that are used to make stoategic decsions, The
Group's reportable segments, which are also the operating segments, are classified based on their lecations
mcuding Chana, U5 and Europe and the nature of operations as () paclaged meats, (6) fresh pork, (i) hog
production and (iv) others.

The delails of the Group's basiness activilies ate as lollows:

(i Packaged meats — represents production, wholesale and refail sales of bew temperature and
high tlemperalune sl products

(i) Fresh pok — represents slaughtering, wholesale and 1etail sales of fresh and frozen
meal.

() Hop production — repesents hog laming

(iv) Others — represents slaghtering and sales of poullry, sales of ancillary products and

sereces such as prowisien of logstics, sales of flavouring ingredients and
internally-produced packaging materials, as well as operating finance
companies, retal business and biopharmaceubcals, setail of meal relsted
products, and corpoale expenses incured by the Groap,

Each repoitable segment denves is evenue from the sales of products and proviion of services baced on
the location of opertions. They are managed separately because each segment equires different produection
and rrarkeling strabegees,

Segment results représent the profit eamed by each segment before bickogical feir value adjustments without
allocation of other income ol altibuted to the especive seament, ol gams and losses, linance costs and
share of profits of associates and joint venfuies, This is the measure repoied o the chiel operating decision
makers [or the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of sepmen pelormance,

Inter-segment revenue were charged ab cost plus mangin basis

M WHGROUP LIMITED AL REPCAT 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continuesd)
Segment information {Conlinued)
The tollowing is an analysis o the Group's revenue and resulls by reportable segments:

For the year ended December 31, 2019

Fresh
pork Dihers Tolal
US§'million US55 million USS'mi USS million USS' million
China
Gross segment revenue 3615 5,671 20 156 10,062
e Inter-segment revenue a0 (246} (18 (242) (1,308}
Revenue 3E13 4,125 2 414 B756
Reportable segment profit {loss) 673 262 (13 35 a57
Uniled States
Gross segment revenue 1817 1,567 3282 1 18,667
Less: Inter-segment revenue (3 {3, 100} {2.405) —_ {5,508)
Revenye T.814 4 467 ar7 1 13,159
Reportable sepment grofit {loss) 847 150 &3 (148 832
Europe
Gross segment revenus 843 1,338 T23 415 3420
st INIRCANIOWIR AN an s 180 L. aas.
Rewenue a0z 288 o8 342 2,188
Repaortable segment profit {koss) 54 {a) a7 = 142
Total
Gross segmenl evenus 12,375 14577 4,025 1172 32,149
S G-t Tewetin 44) 4,459 (2.088) s (8,048)
_Revenue 123 10,078 Lol 151 24003
Reportable segment prolil {koss) 1,574 403 187 {113 203
Mel unalkcated income 42
Biclogecal fam value
adjustments e
Finance costs (144)
Share ol prolits of assoceates 4
Shawar ol profits af joint
venlires 13 ]
Prohl bebore tax 2,052

AMINRL RERORT 2013 WH GROUF LIMITED 105
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION {(Confinued)
Segment information (Conlinued)

China
Gross segment revenue 3458 4,355 59 55 g417
Less: |mter-segment revense - 7 151) (267) {1,089)
Revenue 3458 3,584 8 278 /328
Reportable segmen pralil 12 174 kil 26 S22
United States
Gross segment revenue an FRCEE] 2,761 =t 17,871
Less: Inter-segrent rovente {4} {2,543) (2,142} — {4,689
Revenue 7,773 4,790 619 = 13,182
Reportatde segment profil (lossy TES 48 {147} {71} G615
Europe . . .
Gross segiment revenue o957 1,273 686 461 3377
Less: Inler-segment revenue (41} {611} (G25) (105) {1.28%)
Revenue Gl6 ja? =1} 356 2095
Reportable segment prolil 50 19 et 15 113
Tatal
Gross segment revenss 12,192 12,561 3,504 1,040 29 665
. LESk Iler-4agiment Texce (45) 3825) (2818) (372) {7,060)
. e 12.147 Blen: L2 i .
Heportatde segment prohit (lossy 1547 24 (113} {300 1,650
Met unallocated expenses (16}
Biological fair valee
adpustments (139)
Firance costs (115
Share of profis of asscoales 8

Share of prodds of joanl
vertues 23

Prodit before tax 1.411

Mo segment assels and liabilities are disclosed as they are not regularly provided to the chiel opesding
decision meakers

L thes USE] medlbon
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

5. REVENUE AND SEEMENT INFORMATION (Cortinusd)
Geographical information
Infoamation about the Group's revenue presented above is based on the geographical locations of operation

Infoamaticn about the Group's non-current assels s presented below based on the geographical locations of
operation

2018 Mi1E

UES millson LSS million

Mon-cirent assels

China 2347 24921
LS B.110 H649
_Europe 1,843 1538

10,300 9609

6. OTHER INCOME

2019

UE S million

Gowernment subsidy 28 43
Bank inberesh incomes 14 12
Income on sales of raw matesials 10 8
Cthers 7 35

58 98

AN REPORT 2013 WH GROUF LIMITED o7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

7. OTHER GAINS AND (LOSSES)

2018

USS'million

Gain (lossd on non-quealified retirement plin assels 14 (G}
Fair walue gain on financial asseds at falr value

through profit or loss 24 15
Gain (lossh on dsposal of properly, plant and equipment 1 2
Gain on contribulion of assets to a joinl ventue q2
Gain on disposal ol an associle 15 —
Impagrment loss on other non-current assets s {12y
Impairment loss recognised in respect of property,

plant and equipment e} {4}
Imparment loss recognised i respect of infangible assets (k1] -
Impatrment loss recognised in respect of right-ol-use assels 7] —
Met exchange beases -1 {15}
Gain on insurance recovery 10 1
Cithers 1 {1}

53 121}

8. (OTHER EXPENSES

2019

USS'millhan

Share-Based payvimenls -] 21}
Others {55) (53)
{63} {74}

108 WH GROUF LIMITED AL REPCAT 2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

9. FINANCE COSTS

2018

Amaortisation of transaction cosls

Interests on senbor unsecured nobas

Interests on medium-term unsecined noles

Interests on bank and olher loans

Interests on lease liabilities

Less: Amounls capitalised in the cosl ol qualilying assels

U5 S million

(1] (=
{76} {13
- (1
(48] {54)
{18}
3 10
{144) {115)

10. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Profit before tax has been amived at after charging (crediting):

2018

LSS millson

Auditor's remuneration
Fandil Services
Non-audit serdaces
Degréscation of properly, plant and equgmaent
Degreciation ol right-of-use assets
Refease of prepaid lease payments
Amoitisation of intangible assets included in administiative
CRPENEES
Wine down of anventones cluded m oost of sales
Met allowance on trade recevables
Minimum lease payments under opeating leases
Lesse payments nol included in the medsuienent
of lease labilities
Research and development expenses
Stall costs (excluding directors’ remuneration)

4 4
-’ —_—
442 428

130 —
- 4

] 9

93 106
{n 2

- 223

&7 =

134 131

3,628 3.501

The cost of sabes represented the cost of inventones and services prosided recognised in profl o loss during

bolh years.,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

DIRECTORS' AND EMPFLOYEES' EMOLUMEMNTS

Direciors’ and chiel execulive’s emunemstion for the year, declosed poseant to the applicable Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the Hong Kong Companies
Codimance, is as follows:

Retiement

beenidit
Perfcamamce Share-bas schemi 2006
Mami of direttor [F & bonus Y coamri biinns Tedal
USS million UE$ million LSS milliom

&) EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

- 2 = 2 - 4

e e — CE —t 1

M G Lijum — 1 = 1 — 7
M. Sulinvan Kemneth

Mast = 1 13 = — 14

M. Mg Kepngjie —_ 1 —_— — — 1

kbt = 5 L] 3 - 22

The execulive directors’ emoluments shown above were paid for thelr serices in connection with the
management of the affais of the Company and the Group,

B) NOM-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Jiso Shugs - P - _ _ -
Shb-Sotal — - = — - —

Mo emcluments was pakd to the pon-eseculive dieclor shown above for his serdce as director ol the
Company or ils subsidiarics.

The indepandant non-cxecutive directors” emoluments shown above were paid for their sovices as directos
of the Company,

22
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

11. DIRECTORS' AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Conlinued)

A} EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

- Lo — =
! 2 1 - 4
— = - w _a |
- 1 i 1
Lib-1okal =] . ] ¥ |

The executive directors’ emoluments  shown above were paid for thelr services in connection with the
managemen] of the allais ol the Comgany and the Group.

B} NOM-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

M e Shigs
St otal

Mo emolements was pald o the nonexécutive direclton shown above Tof his service as diector of the
Company or fis subsidiaries.

C} INDEPENDENT KON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Huang Ming

The independen! non-executive direchors’ emaluments shown above were paid lor their services as direclors
ol the Compsany

17
Sanies
Padodmanos selabed incentive payrments Bie 1 manded by the remunemlion commities of Ine Company and aré apgioved by the
boged of Eeeciors, with delergnce 1o the Gr ng resuls, mdividusd parierance ar WRpArARSE rEarked & HE
[11] Mo direcior nor (e chiel execuller waived any emoluments in fespect of the year ended December 51, 2019 and December 31
2018
SRS M ‘Wen Long & a0 the Cedel Execadies for he yean énded Decemipsr 31, 2009 snd December 31, 2018
o L2 1 ol
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

11. DIRECTORS' AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
The dive highest paid individuals for the year ended December 31, 2019 included two disectors of ihe
Company (2018 three), defails of whose emaduments are sef out above, The emoluments of the remaining
three (2018: twal non-deeclor highest pasd individuals during the yeae wene as lollows:

2019

UsS ' millian

Employees
Basic salaries and allowances 3
Performance bonus 13 A
Share-based payments —
Retirerment benef scheme: contribulions -—h o=

The emsduments of the remaining non-director highest paid individuals were within the follvwing bands;

Number ol employeas

2018

HEF21, 500,000 o HE$22,000, 000 = 1
HES2E 500,000 1o HKSED, 000, (00 1 -
HE$32 500,001 to HIK$23,000, 000 = 1
HF bt SO0 00 R0 HIRES0, 0, O 1 ==
HE$63, 500,001 1o HE$E, 000, 000 1 -

Dourigg e year, no emoluments were paid by the Group tooany of the directors or the Tivee highest paid
mdividuads (including dieclors and employees) a6 an inducement o join of upon jomning the Group of as
compensation fog loss of office (2018 MNil)

Les then 251 milkon

1z WH GROUF LIMITED AL REPCAT 2019

210/315



EDINETOOOO
O00DOo00oOo0ooo00oOo0ooOO(E30533)
oOoOooodn

MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

12. TAXATION

China income Lax (176} {196)
LS, Income bax 156} {513
Other income axes {35 {16)
Withhvaldimg lax (13 {33
Deferred faxation (ki aB

[357] {258)

Under the China by on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and the Implkementation Regulation of the EIT
Law, the tax rate of the China subsidiaries is 25% except for the follewing:

{i}  According to the Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law and the EIT exemptions regulation set out
in the Circular of the Minishy of Finance and the State Administration on Releasing the Primary
Processing Ranges of Agricultusal Pioducts Entitked 1o Preferental Policses. on Enferpnse Income Tax
{Tnal Implementation) (Cai Shui [2008] Mo, 149 and the requirements of Article 86 of the
lmplementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the moome from vanous Ching subsidianes of the Company
engaging in premary processing for agriculhural products are exempted from EIT.

(it Pursuant to the retated segulations in espect of the Implementation Regulaton of the EIT Law, the income:
{rom vanous China subsidiaries o the Company engaging in propeclts of animal-husbandry and poultry
feeding are entitled 1o exemption from EIT during both years,

{in}  Pursusnt to the ielated sepulatons in espect of the Mobice of Cetain Tax Policies for Implementation of
Exploration and Development of Western Region (Can Shin [2012) Mo, 58} jointly ssued by the Mingstry
of Finance, the Genetal Administration of Custens and the State Adminmsiation of Taxation, various
China subsidianes of the Company are entilled to a peeferential moome g ate of 15% during both
YEAIS

{iv}  Accoading o the Implementation Regulaton of the EIT Law and Cireatar of State Adnenistration of Taxation
on lssues Concerning  Implemeantation of Prefeential Income Taz Enjeyed by High-and-new-tech
Enterprises (Guo Shai Han [2009] Noo 203}, high-and-now-lech enterprises are levied enterprise
income tax at 15%. Varous Ching subsidiares of the Company are classified as high-and-new-tech
enterprises and are entitled o enjoy a prefesential mcome tax rate al 15% during both years,

AMNRL REPORT 2019 'WH GROUF LMITED 13
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

12. TAXATION (Continued)

According to Articles 3 oand 2/ of the EIT Law and Adicle 91 of its lmplemeniation Rules, dividends
distribuled to foreign investors out of the profit generated by China subsidiaries are subject to EIT at 10% or
reduced tax rate il & tax bealy or anangement applies. Undes the relevant tax arangement, the withivoldiong
ta rate on dividend distribution 1o the qualfying Hong Kong resident companies B 5%, Defered tas
labvilies on the undistnbuted profits earmed by the China subsidianes have been accrued ol the Bx rals ol
5% and 10% for the year ended December 31, 2018 and at the tax rale of 5% for the year ended
December 31, 2019,

The LIS, corporate tax rate B 219% for the year ended December 31, 2018 and Decembar 31, 2019,
by overseas Gaxation & caloulated at the rates prevaling in the respective juisdichons

Thwe taealion charge for both years 5 reconciled bo e profit before tax as follows:

LSS millbon

Prodt befode tax 2052 1,411
Tan al the applicatde rates (Nobe) [494) 24.1) (354) {2500
Tax effect of share of prodits of associates

and joint ventures 3 0.1 ! 0.5
Tax effect of income 1hal & not taxable in

determining current year taxable profit 23 11 ] 06
Tax effect ol expenses that are nol deductible

in determining currend year taxable profit (21} (1.0 {14 {1.0}
Tax effect of tax ksses nol recognised {4} (0.2) ="}
Ltlisation of lax losses previously nol

recognised — —_— 1 8 |

Effect ol tax exemplions and preferential lax
rates granted fo China subsidianes a2
Elfect of tax exemptions and preferential lax
rates granted lo LS, subskdianes 30 1.8 12 09
LIS, Tax Reform — bransition lax = — {13} {09
Withholding tax on undstibuled esmings
ol subsidianies (35) (1.7} {10 {07}
Recognition of deferred tax ansing

from tax loss previcasly not recognised k| o4 — —
Cherprosesion in pros years G 0.3 15 1.1
Tax effect of tax lesses recogmised
N inlia-grotg Uansaclions 3N 1.7 34 24
Tax charge and effechive b ate for the year [ELTS {17.4) (258) {18.3)
Hobe:  An the Goups revénus & generslsd in seversl pansdcliong, ke direcls of e Company consides thal 1 = more: mesnangiul o

ag@iezabe bhe sepanale reconcilalions preguead cping Bhe Jomestic rate in each Individual jurisdis o
Detiaibs of secognmsed and unproveded deferred taxalion are sel oub in note 33

Lesa than USE] milbon
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

13. DIVIDENDS

2018

5% million

Davidend recognised as distnibution during the year:
2018 final divdend of HE 15 cents per share

(2017: HK 22 cents) 282 411

2019 imlerim dividend of HE 5 cenls per share
{2018: HK 5 cents) 83 a4
15 EL5]

The final dividend af HE 265 cents per share in respect of the year ended December 31, 2019 has been
proposed by the directors and is subject to approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE
The calculation of the basic and dilvted cammgs per share atiribulable to owners of the Company is based

an the Tollowing data

2019

US% million

Earmings.
Prafit 1or the year atiributable lo owners of the Company Tor the

purpese of besic and dilubed eamings per share 1465 o943

miillian il s

Mumber of shares
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose

of basic eamings par share 14,7021 1467483
Eftect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: share ophions a8.on i
Weighted average number of ordinary shares fog the purpose of

diluted esrnings per share 14,791.22 14 73985

AN REPORT 2013 WH GROUF LIMITED 115
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Plast

machinery
Fieehald Muotai and  Constiuction
land Bl dings wehicles equipmem ageit

(=]

A Jargany 1, 2018 B30 2.5 145 3408 Ad3

Curency fealgnment ] {ra) [% {58 4

% - = 14 [: T8

1 . 4 [w} 1

8 B [EHEY

{al (18] =
Al Degernber 31, 2018 40 2514 3,762 B2 ' hA
Effect of adop of IFRS 1E = {25 11 (E]H]]

19 {restatad) 540 2404 139 3761 562 1486
ency Tealignmend (3 (24) in 1 (35 [LE]

(3 = 4 4 25 B30 11
Acquisition of mebsldares (ol 36) ] 49 - 52 4 1]
Trah 8 17 b1 & 517 {821 =
Chtspecrsa {15} (B3) % 155} —— (nez

ap

nber 31, 20019 2 2,1 132 4,269 346 2my

Depecimion and Faspal e

A lamuarg 1, 2008 - e 1]

Cunency realignment (18] (8%
ol T — 110 14
1 ks recognised

ar kss 1 3 = ]

14 (1 . - [=C

maer 31, 2018 a4 ] 1523 2280
o adoptio IFRS 16 - (4 (¥4 —_— - (5

- &0 i) 1522 - an
= (B} = {4y = 20
e 13 ] 118 — 442

e ) ko] 35} = =0

Al Decermber 31, 2019 = T Ll 1,800 = 2811

Cairjing walues:
&) Decémber 3], 2012 542 1,982 L] 2488 340 54006

Al December 31, 2018 540 1,595 & 228 BH2 5300
& January 1, 2019 (reshaled) B0 1,874 &1 2,238 B&2 52715
& Lisgw ah USE] milkon
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIFMENT {Continued)
Cedlam of the Group’s buldmgs of US3S56 mellion as ab December 31, 2019 (2018 USES02 milion) are
erecled on land held n China while the rest are erected on freghold land sifuated in the LS, and Europe.

As al December 31, 2019, the application 1o obtaining the ownership cerlificates of buildings in China with
an apgregate carrying valee of approdimately USE187 million (2018 US$169 million) was still in progress.

Included in the carning value of property, plant and equipment as at December 31, 2018 was an amount of
US$25 million i respect of assets held under finance leases.

Property, plant and equipment with a canying amount of approximately US$18 millon {2018: US$4 million}
have been lully impaired and recognised in prodit or loss tod the year ended December 31, 2019

16. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT
Properties under development expected 1o be completed:;

2018

USS million

Within nogmal operating oycle included under current assats 102 30

Properties under development expected lo be completed within nonmal opesating cycle and recoverned:

2019

LSS milleon

Within one year 19 -
After one yoar 83 30
102 30

AMINRL RERORT 2013 WH GROUF LIMITED 1
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17. LEASES

{a) Prepaid lease payments (hefore lanuary 1, 2019)

MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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Cost;
Al Jamery ] 28
Currency ecaligrment {12)
Additions
Transker o propestes under development {1)
Disposal {3
Al December 31 228
Amortisation:
Al Janmuary 1 A
Currency realagnment el
Charge for the year A
L posal .
Al December 31 48
Carrying value:
Al December 31 180
Panalysesd Too reporling. purposes as
Current 5
Mon-current 175
1810

The amount a5 at December 31, 2018 mainly represented the prepayment of rentals for land use rghls

sibuled in China with unexpired lease pesods of 10 to 48 years,

118 WH GROUF LIMITED  AHUAL REPCAT 2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cortinued)

17. LEASES (Confinued})
{b) Right-of-use assets
The carying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets and the movermnents during the year are as
[allowes

Flant
mac hnery
and Mot Comract
Exildings Equi pmens welleles larmi

ITo e 11 52 132 SiE

= = =n =9 = =

Lo 3 2 A -] 21

(58) (e L] (23 (32} {130y

In pandit oo low i — - - — 1

Al December 31, )19 o 1 28 52 143 645

{c) Lease liabilities
The cammying amount o lease habilibes and e movements during the year ame a5 tollows

2019

Lease

liahilities

WSS 'million

As al Jamuary | 86 28
Mew leases 180
Interes! expenses 18 v
fccpusibon of subsidianes (Nole 36) 3
Paymenls {118} (53
Exchange ealignmenl {5) 2
As al December 31 485 25

Analysed for repoling parposes as

Currend labilities e 7
Non-cumrent liabilities 357 23
485 i1

The maturity analysis ol lease labilties (2018 obligations under linance lases) B dischsed in note 39
to the financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

17. LEASES (Coenlinued)
{d)  The amounts secognised in predit o loss inorelation to leases are as lollows

UES millon

Intesest on lease labilties 18
Depreciation charge of right-ol-use assels 130
Expenses relating bo sho-term leases with remngining bease tenns
ended on or before December 31, 2019 5
Wariabde lesse payments nol incheded o the messurement of lease Tabililes 12
Gain (loss) on sake and leaseback transactions -
Impairment of right-of-use assets 5
240

(e} Extension and tesmination options
The Group has leases with rensaining lease berans rangeng from more than 1 year to 37 years. The
kases conlaining extension and termination options are managed locally and vary in tesms. The Group
has included extension or bermination options i the measurement of the lease oblipations when it s
easonably certain lo exercise the options

() Variahle lease payments
The Group has leases conlaining varable lease payment terms not depending on an index of rate for
hog ransing lacililies, buildings, mator vehicles, machinery and equspment. Management ane responsible
for negotiating the lease terms and each term may vary depending on the underlying asset and
reportable segment. Varable lease payments leoms are based on a mulliple of faclors including the
eeetall usage of the underlying assel, maintenance and repair seraces, property faxes and inswiance,

The Group exgpects the overall fnancial impact for fulure years 1o be consistent with the arable lease
paymients that were mcumed during 2019,

ig) Sales and leaseback transactions
On August 27, 2019, the Group sold a cold storage facility located in Maryland, the LS. for US$E1
million, mel of transachion costs, In September 2019, the Group executed a 20-vear lease agreemeant, in
which the buyer agreed o lease the cold stoiage facility back be the Group. In addition to the 20-year
term, the lease contains two 10-year renewal periods that would begin al the sole dscedion of the
Group with o penalty for @ Lailure 1o renew the lease

In addeion, n 2019, the Group sold 23 contract laims for an agaregate price of USE4T million while
retaining ownership of the underlying land. Subsequent to each sale, the Group leased the {anms back
for a non-cancellable lerm of approkimately 15 years with renowal oplions,

(h) The total cash cautflow 1o leases and fulure cash outflows relating to leases that have not yet commenced
are disclosed in nodes 37, 39 and 41, respectively, o the linancial statements.

Less than LISS1 million

120 WHGROUF LIMITED  AHUAL REPCAT 2019
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

18. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS
Nature of the Group’s agricultural activities
The bidlogical assels of the Group are live hogs and poultry al varous stages of development, including
sucklimg hogs, nwsery hogs and linishing hogs and broders which are dassified a5 current assels, Bological
assets also inclede breeding stock (hogs and poulirg), which are used to prodece fulure live hogs and
broilers, are classilied as non-cument assels ol the Group. The quantities of live hogs, broders and beeeding
stock owned by the Group al the end of each repoling penod are as lollows:

Live hogs
— suckhing 1,826 1,757
- FIRESERY 2,136 2,122
— Hnishing 8,280 010
) 12,258 11889
Breeding stock (hogs) 1,084 1,120
13,342 13,0005
Broilers 4,860 3,950
Breeding stock (poulliy) G625 525
5,485 4515

Hogs

In general, once a sow is inseminated, it will gestate for a pericd of 114 days. New born hogs are classified
as "suckling”. The suckling hogs will stay with their mather for three to four weeks at which lime they will be
weaned. Onee the suckling hogs ase weaned, sl approamately 1 to 8 kilegrams, they are translenred to the
“nurseny”,

The nursery facilities are desgned to meet the needs of newly weaned plgs. They are led with a senies of
specially formulated diets to meet thein changing mufriional needs. The pigs will stay in the nursery for
approximdely & weeks where they will grow to approximately 7 to 45 kbograns and then be tanslened 1o
the “finkshimg” fam,

Fimsshang hogs typically stay im this phase for 123 0 19 weeks, During el time, they will grow fo
approcimately 23 o 132 kilograms and be considered as a live hog with markel value Once the hog

resches e ideal weighl, they are loaded onto specilly designed trucks Tor iranspodl 1o the processing
1acifity.

AMNRL REPORT 2019 'WH GROUF LMITED 1
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

18. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (Conlinued)
Nature of the Group's agricultural activities {Conlmued)
Poultry
In peneial, once a puliet lays cGes, the eggps will be sent to the hatchery and #t will lake approomately 21
days to be hatched. The hatched chicks are then sent to the baoiler tarm

The chicks are fed with a seres of specally formuiated diets o meel their nutribion needs. The chicks will
stay in the broiler faom for apprecimately 38 o 42 days where they will grow 1o approximately 2.1 kilograms
and hen be considened as a brodle with madkel value,

Once the broibes reaches the markel weight, they are loaded onbo speceally designed trucks for tanspod to
the paecessing lacility

Thwe Group i exposed o a number of msks selaled o s biological assels. The Group s exposed o the
following operating risks:

{1} Reguwlahory and emerovmental fsks
The Group s subject 1o lws and regulations in the lecation in which it operates breeding of hogs and
poultry. The Group has established envionmental polices and procedures. aming at complyng with
kcal envitonmental and other laws, Management performs reguls reviews to identily environmmentat
risks and to ensure that the systems in place are adequale o manage these risks.

i} Chmate, disegse and other natural nsks
The Group's biological assels are exposed 1o the rigk of dameage from climastic changes, disesses and

other natural forces, The Group has extensive processes i place aiming al monilosing and mitigating
those risks, induding regular inspections, discase controls and insurance.

122, WHGROUP LIMITED ANMLLAL REPCRT 2015
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

18. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS {(Confinued)
Carrying value of the Group's biological assets

Brewdisg, sock

LTy DT L] 11 (Ed] =" =" = 1B 14}
3 186 b 1713 ] 144 140 ] : e TAla
changes: in e valus bem
by 10wl of rodsieal
Eat a0 {71 (L 141 117 o i ) @ [rks] 130
Trarviler 8 et Rires B B

poiet ol hanvest LHE 64912 i) 125 g ] i 1] frien T ety
Damirentsd dum 1o culieg 191 (e a7l i el 23 i 12 Lot Far
iy ahs §

Cacwrnter 31 (R1-] w2 125 145 8 5 - H LI 1,0

.|"|.|'|..“.|I5r'.5.,1:s;l Jani IE[.xutm,g LI POSES. s

2018

WSS million

Current 1,107 =2 )
Mon-current 137 147
1.244 1,054

= (e T i
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

18. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (Conlinued)
Fair value measurement — Level 3

LSS millsan

Biological assets
Live hogs 1,101 iz
Breeding slock (hogsh 135 145
Broilers G 5
__ Breeding stock {poultry) 2 7

1,244 1,094

The Fair valees of breeding stock (hogs and poultry)} are determined based on the average of the histoical
selling price of hog and poultry of smilar bieed and penetic ment less costs to sell (Level 3} The estimated
lair value will significantly increase when there is a slight increase in the average historical selling price, and
R WS,

The fair values of five hogs and beoilers are mainly detesmined based on the price of hogs and broilers in the
actively traded market, subliactng the bresding cosls required o saise the Bve hogs and Lroibers 1o be
slaughtered and the masgins that would be required by a raiser and less costs to sell {(Level 3} The
estimated far valee will increase when there B an increase in the markel price ol hogs and broileas o
dectease in the breading cost required to sakse the live hogs and brollers, and wice versa

Changes in lair walue kets costs bo sell of Biological assets include changes m the fair vabue of the hogs and
poultry at the end of both years. The Group's blological assels were valued by the independent qualified

valuer, Jones Lang LaSalle Corpoale Appeaisal and Advesory Limited (SJLL") situsted @ OF, One Taikoo
Place, 979 King's Road, Hong Kong

1 WH GROUF LIMITED AL REPCAT 2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

18. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (Confinued)
Fair value measurement — Level 3 (Conlmued)
Set forth below are the key assumplicns and inputs adopled in the valuation process of biclogical assels;

2018
RMB
China
Breeding stock (hogs)
Per head market price’?! 1,90 2,127
Suckling hogs
Per hesd cost™! 138 B
Finishing hogs
Por hesd market pricc"' 3,332 1,260

Per head weekly average breeding costs required fo aise o

firishing lugs™ 85 68
Breeding stock {(poultiy)
Per head markel price’? 25 25
Broilers
Per head markel price' 19 19
Per head averago breeding costs required 1o rase to broibers'™ 18 16

AMNRL REPORT 2019 'WH GROUF LMITED 125
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

18. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (Conlinued)
Fair value measurement — Level 3 (Conlimued)

.5,
Breadmg stock — Sow (hogs)
Per head marked price™ 125 127

Breedng stock — Boar (hogs)
Per head matket price’™ 46 56

Suckling hogs
Per head cost™! 32 32

Finshing hogs

Per head market price™ 153 131
Per head woekly average breeding costs requined o
raise 1o finishing hogs™ ) 5.7
Feobes
1 Mariost ity of Sepading S0k 15 smumed 10 Do sallbis 8 the markal 53 80 e coneRpondeg Slock valiston des
Eaeeding shock The phces adoplsd refér 1o the mwerage histoical sslling prcés. Irinsscted B cal sbugh Wouse. A5

the Gioup rever se
figuren are avilable

il breeding sock belom the end of fis useicl We, no histoncal achual sakes

2 Corie of suchding hogs AR Mans M insgnfican] Dokl raeaiornason il ties place Setwasn (he banh of Mese anmmah
anlil ey become fnishing hogs, Ihe coxl approach was adopled. As the s ing ‘hogs are ooly 4
waaks' pid 81 most, the recent Cost nouried BpomEimaies the mplacsment cost

! Markgt guices of linshing The sdopied ssiling poces of finishing hogetbipils (whch gie tnehing hogsbrodem that are okd
g ek erigh 1o Be Gokl 10 the modst] are deteimined uling Beli mbikel e 61 (he Betively raded local
spot sndigr fufure morket as meleence. The prices wsed i (Fe waluation are in ine with the aclual

Proed P oiTed

- Cirals oLl od The <oals 5 Cotrgiele used BE BN aEsumpbon B wakabon o based o ooomiplede on (ke histoncal
Mestape febdles Coit, madicalion and vaocina growar paymend, profuttion housing, production
oveehand, by feghtdo-abiughier and selling couts that would be Incumed for saes The extimabed

profde thisl would b requited By & raiser ae oo spplad in M vakabon
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

19. GOODWILL

2019

Cost:
A lanuary 1 1,847
Actuisilion of subsidiares (Note 36) 111
Currency iealignment {3
At December 31 1.955

Aocumulated impairment losses:
Al January 1 and December 3] —

Carrying value:
At Decamber 31 1.955

1,838
28
{19

1,847

1,847

Impairment testing on goodwill

Based on the Group's business units, goodwill hes been allocated for impaimment testing purpose to the

Tollowing CGLs:
. Fresh pork

- Packaged meals

ANNURL RERORT 2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

19. GOODWILL (Continued)
Impairment testing on goodwill (Conlinued)
The canying amoant of goodwill allocated to CGLUS s as lollows:

2018

UE% million

Allpcated to
Fresh pork Ching §8 48
Packaged meats — China 137 138
Fresh poek — LLS n 31
Packaged meats L5, 1,510 1.510
Fresh pork and packaged mests — Europse 229 120

1,065 1.847

An impairment review of these CGUs is underlaken annually or when evenls o circunstances mdicate that
the camrying amounts of CGLis may not be recoverable The recoverable amounts of these CGUs have been
determined by the value in use method using cash flow profections pedormed by the management tor both
years ended December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2018

For the purpose of impairment testing, the Group prepates cash flow projection and the recoverable amounts
of these CGUs ae calculaled by usng pre-tax cash fow projeclions based onoa S-peanDeyear Tlinamos

budget approved by managemen! and extrapolation of cash flows beyond the 3-yearS-year budgel period

Key assumptions used i the cash flow pojectons of fresh pork in Chinafthe US, coveting 8 3-yeanS-year
budgel period and exmapolated cash flows beyond the badget period are as follows:

China

2018

Revenue growth rate {Mote i {23.8-46.6 GO-22.2 20-126 20-88
Lodg-lesim giowth rate {Nale n) 2 2 2 2
Discount rate {Mole i) 1 13 T a8
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

19. GOODWILL (Continued)
Impairment testing on goodwill (Conlineed)
Key assumgtions used i the cash flew projections ol packaged meals n Chinafthe LS. cowering a
SeyeanDeyear budget persed and exrapolated cash Nows beyond the buedgel penod are as Tollows

Rewvenue growlh mate (Mole i) T.2=14.0 10.59-15.4 2.1-4.7 2.1-3.1
Long-term grovwlh rate {hboke i) 2 2 2 2
Discount rate (Mobe ik i 13 1 8

Kazy assumpleans used m the cash llow proection of fresh porkoand packaged meals in other locations
oulside China and the LS covering a S-year budgel period and edapolated cash flows beyond the budpget
period ae as follows:

Rewenue growin ate (Noe i} 10-7.4 20-3.0
Long-term growth rate (Mobe i) 3 3
Dascount rabe (WNate il [ 3
Motk
The mansgament delermaned the iresnue ghiwth rate over 3 SyearS-yea budgel pernd with refersnce 16 the qast parfahmancs and
£ eapsciahons W the marks Sesssnpmant
The bagdem growlh rafe used does nol excesd fhe long-leem growdh rafe for the meat peoduction busssss in which A operabes
The discoumt rate uted = (B pre-ie Gtousd rat SDpBad fo the ash Tiow plopcliond which reflect specific ritks felatng 1o Ihe

Mo impanment loss s recognised al the end ol both years based on the impaiment assessment performed
The management believes that any reasonably possible change moany of these assumplions would nol carse
the aggregate catrying amount of the CGLIS o exceed the aggregate recoverablte anwunt of the CGLIs,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

ik
At Jareary 1, 2008 v 5 1 -.r, 0 i 111
Redpaiths of idialorwd Blote 301 » - - 1 - = »
Dumercy septgremant 2] = - [# 13 - - 2

A Dt 30, 2005 0]
Javaniey 1, 2000 (£ ] 1 35 L] L] LM

e and it

M bnrusy 1, 2010 - - 1 ) B - i
Sy et = = = = = —l o
Frowndant bor T pair B . i
M Dcartr 31, 0|8 e

Sy 1, 2009 = - L] m L1 1 L]
STy g TTR . .
Frowtm] ¥d T maiv L ] = — B 2 i LL
M [mwreiar 31, 2015 ] = L] M L] 1 L1

[T T

i Bmcrgsr 55, {6 1,653 5 = n m & [ NET]
M Dy 30, J0NE Ly 4 = w L] L} 174

Patents, customes relations, confiact tarm refations and mghts and permits are amortised over e estimated
vseful lives of 5 to 25 years,

Trademarks and distributon nebwork acquired in the business combinations are idenliied and recognised as
intangible assels with indefinite vseful lives and camied at historical cost without amotisation for the Following
FEASIVE;

- they are capable o being enewed mdelintely at insignificant cost

= there i no loresceable fmit to the perod over which the assel is expocted o generale nel cash (bows,
based on an analysks of &l ol the relevant tactors,

- Lo s USS] mdlkon
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

20. INTAMGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)
Impairment testing on intangible assels
Based on the Groups business units, bademarks and distibulion network have been allocated for
impainment lesting purpose to the lollowing CGLS:
. Fresh pork
. Packaged meats

The carying amounl of trademarks and distribution network was allocated to CGLs as folbows

2018

US% million

Allocated to
Fresh pork China 47 48
Packaged meals — China 282 286
Fresh pork — LLS. M 243
Packaged meats — LS Qg3 033
Fresh pork and packaged meats — Ewope 112 112

1,658 1,672

An impairment review ol thesa CGUs s undertaken annually or when events or ciicumstances indicale thal
the carmying amounts of CGUs may nol be recoverable, The recoverable amounis of these CGUs have been
determined by e walie an use method wing cash sy projections by manggement lor the years ended
December 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018

For the purpose ol impaimment lesting, the Group prepares cash flow progections based on a 3-yeanS-year
financial budgels approved by mansgement and extrapolation of cash llows beyond the 3-yearS-year budgel
Period

Eey assumplions wsed in the cash flow Ll!l.’whl:ll'l‘_\ of trachemarks and disinbution nebwork of Tresh pork
covering a 3-yeanS-year budgel peried and exbapolated cash flows beyond the budget period are as lollows

China

Revenue growih tate (Note () (238466 b2 2 20128 20-88
Long-term growth rate (Mobe i) 2 2 2 2
Discount mate (Mote i) 14 I& 7 8

AN RERORT 2019 WH GROUF LIMITED 13
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continueed)
Impairment testing on intangible assets (Confinued)
Fey assumptions wsed in the cash llow projections of rademarks and distribation network of packaped meals
covermg 8 J-yeanSoyear budget period and edrapolated cash Now beyond the budgel penod are as Tollows:

China

2018

Revenue growth rate {MNobe 1) 1.2-144 19154 20-4.7 2.1-31
Log-term growth rate {Note i} 2 2 2 2
Discount rabe {Mote §@i) 14 16 7 8

Ky assumpbons used in the cash low progection ol rademarks and distibubon networkl of fresh pork and
packaged meats in other locations outside China and U5, covering a S-year badpget period and extrapolated
cash flow beyond the budgel period ae as follows:

Revenue growth rate {Nole 1) 3.0-74 2.0=3.0

Long-term growth rate (Note i) 3 3

Discoumni rate {Mole i) ] 9
Fotes

Tiw ranagement delermined the eseous grow iate oved o Syeanfryear bodget percd with seference i the pasl performasce and
15 FpacETONs B 1Pe Tkl déwalopenent

Fine E-DEE Y EIOWTY TR Lebded OO M SXCGS] e IGNEESEIT @roWwts sl Tor Uil M PIOOuaCadi DAIsirielss sn wWiieh ) Opadgled

The dimount rxie U
WadeTEkE A .

he pre-lan discount 1ake appSed bo The cash loww prjections whach sellech specilc i |-l'_-|l.l|_g o the
it i

The Group has secognised an impairment loss ol USES million for the year ended December 31, 2019
(2018 mil} based on the impaimen! asessment pedormed, The management bellaves that any reasonably
possibde change in any ol these assumptions would nod cawse the aggregate camying amount of the
trademarks and distnbubion network B0 exceed e agpregate ecovesable amount ol Hese assels

132 WHGROUF LIMITED  AHUAL REPORT 2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

2018 MR

U5 S million LESE million

Share of net assets 42 150

All The Growp's associabes are ool conswdered as individually matenial as al December 310 2009 and
December 31, 2018 The agerepate amounts o its share of these associales are set oul in the conselidated
Tancial staterments.

Aggregate information of associates that are nob individually material is set oul below

2018 18

US% million LSS million

The {aroa’s share of prodils and tolal compreiensivg indome:
for the yeas froan these associabes 4 8

Dividends received from these associates durning the year - 1

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

2018 2018

LSS million LSS million

Shade of net assets 305 g

Al this Group's joind ventures are not considered as individually matenal as ot December 31, 2019 and 2018
Thi :Ig._;m—,;'_flt.r: s o s shewe of these joanl wenturés are el ol o the consoldaled Tinancial
slatenments

"'H‘F‘HWH-E-'E‘-‘- ilarmation o ||:-|r|I widlures (Al are ol ||H!Iwi|,||.uil|y maleial 5 sel oul beliw

2018 M e

US S million LISE million

The Group's share of profits and tolal comprehensive incomae
for the year from these joinl wenlures n 27

Davidends ieceived from these point ventures duing the year g 1

AMEL REZRCRT 2019 WH GROUP LMITED 133
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23. INVENTORIES

2018

USS'million

Raw materials 904 733
Woak in progress a7 o9
Finished goods 1,802 1,190

2,903 2022

24, TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

2018

LSS millhion

Trade recenables 1,049 1,137

I et (R0} {1 Fi)
1,038 1,125

Bills receiatle a8 (1e]
1,047 1,135

Ihe general credd term allowed by the Group lo its customers s within 30 days in China operations while
the credit tenms vary depending on the sales clannel and cwstormers for the WS and other countries
operations, The following 5 an aging amalysis of the trade and bills recenables nel of loss alkewance
pesentesd based on the date of delivery of poods which approdimated the respective dates on which revenue
wWas recogmised:

2018

UES' million

Current o 30 days B7Ta ah7
31 o 90 days 1687 178
91 o 180 days 1 gl

1,047 1,135

Before acoepling any new custormers, the Group oses past expenence to assess the polenlial customerns’
credit quality and deflines credd limils for the customes, Limits attiibuled to customers are reviewed
regulanly.

[ WHGROUP LMITED SHMLIAL REPORT 2005
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

24. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continmsed)
In determining the recoverability of The rade recevables, the Group monifors the change i the credil quality
o the bade recoivables since the credit was geanled and up to the reporting date. The direclors of the
Company considered al the concentralion of credidl msk is ineled due 1o the customes base beg boge and
unrelated

Mo nterest s charged on Uade receivables, Less allowances are made based on the estimated inecoverable
amounts from the sales of goods by reference to past defaull experience and objective evidences of
impainment detenmined by the difference betwesn the camrying amound and the present alue of the estimale
luture cash llows discounted at the orginal eflective interest rate

Movemenl in boss allowance lor impaioment of trade receiables:

At January 1 {12} {10)

Rewersal of (impairment losses), net 1 (23

Currency realignment — i

At Deoember 31 {11) {12}
Impairment

An impaiment analysis is perfoomed at each repoting date using 8 provision maliia to messure expectsd
credit bosses The provesion rates are Dased on days past due foo groupimgs of vanous customer segments
with simila loss patterns (e, by geographical region, product type, customer lype and rating, and coverage
by Retters of credd o other lorms of credd mswance). The calculation reflects e probablity-weighted
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and supporiable miormation that & avallable at the
reparting date aboat past events, coment conditions and Torecasts of future economis conditeons. Generally,
frade receivables are written off B past due for more than one yea and are nol subjedt 1o enforcement
aclivily.

= Lests thaim LISSE milon

AMNRL REPORT 2019 'WH GROUF LIMITED 135
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24, TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES {Conlinued)
Impairment {Continued)
Sel oul below ks the infermation aboul the credit sk exposure on the Groups bade receivables using a
pravision fatiix

December 31, 2019

Mare than Mare than

90 days 180 days
Current pasl due past due Total

Expected kss rate 1.00% 0.25%-3.60% 5.30% 1.06%
Gross canmymg amount

(LSE million} 1,049 — — 1,049
Loss allowance provision

[Us$ million} 1 = o 11

December 31, 2018

Expiscted boss rate 102% 300% 514% 1.02%
Gross camying amount
{USE million} 1,137 — — 1,137
Loss allwandce provision
(LSS million] 12 e i 17
41 n
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

25. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND OTHER ASSETS

2018

U5 S million

Loans recaivables BE [
Degosits pasd to suppleess 58 20
Degosits. placed with financial institutions 53 9
Recerables from financesd instilulions 14 =153
Darivative financzal instruments. {Moe 27) T4 12
Value-added lax recoverable 118 GG
Prepayments B4 63
(ahess T4 &7

562 358

Anabmed for reporting purposes as:

Current assels =08 358
Mon-curtent assels o4 A4
562 358

26. FINAMCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR WALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

2018

LSS million

Financial assets &t fair value throsgh profit or loss
Unfisted imvestments:

Financeal products 447 nz
Equity investments 10 !
457 324

Analysed lor reporting purposes as

Current assels 447 317
Mon-currenl assals 10 3
457 324

The vestments classied @ current al December 31, 20019 and Decembsr 31, 2018 are mainly wealth
management products ssued by banks in Chima. They were mandatorily classified as financial assets at fair
walue theough pralit or koss as their contiactual cash llows are nod solely payments of principal and mlernesl
The above non-current equity investments were nweasured at FYPL as the Gioup has not elected o recognise
the fan value gain o loss through olher comgrehensive moome

AN RERORT 2019 WH GROUF LIMITED 137
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27. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Devivatives under hedge accounting

2019

Assals Liahilities Astiots Liabdlities

UE% ' million US55 mitlion LIS $ miillson

Fair value hedges
Gisan contracts 1 = | .
Livestock conbacts 2 o 1 —
Cash Now lu_-:dﬂm.
Foreign currency

Torwand 1 2 - —
Grain contracts —_— 22 2 12
Livestock conbracts 78 G 10 2
!I1|.L‘:H‘-"5! mle conlracts o . .

&2 30 14 14

Fair value hedges

The Group entefed info derivalive instruments {primarily lonward contracts) to minimise s exposure o fair
walue changes of s commilments o ransit grains and livestock, The direclors of the Company consider thal
those derivative instruments are  highly effective  hedging  instruments, Major  tesms  of the  derivative
mestruments ase sol oul below

Ak December 31, 2019

Chawge in lair valoe

used f
measiingy hedge
Hotsaal wolume

Denvalive instruments Mimisum Marimum Meiric Waturity

oy s 10,004 525,000 Bushelds Up 1o November 3020
1,46%,000 5820000  Buihels Up 1o March 2021
fi hog: 53,000,000 128920000  Pounds Up lo December 2020 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

27. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Fair value hedges [Conlmued)
Al December 31, 2018

The hedge inelectivencss can anse Trom:

. changes to the femsied amaomnls of cash Nows of hedped itlems and hedging instruments

. differances i the timing of cash flows of the lorecasted transactions and the hedging instruments

The commodiies contracts as at December 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018 are recoeded in

“Prapayments, other receivabdes and olher assels” and “Acoued expenses and odher payables” n the
consolidated statement of financial position

AMEL REZPORT 2019 WH GROUP LMITED 139
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

27. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Cash flow hedges
At December 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018, the Group had the follewving foeign exchange forward
conlracls designated as highly effective hedging instruments in order o manage the Group's lofeign curréncy
exposure in relation to foreign cutrency forecast sales and purchases,

The Group entered info denvative instiumeents, such as Tulures, Swaps and option conbracls designated as
highly effective hedging instruments in order to manage the Group's exposure to the vasability in expected
future cash flows atfributable o commodity price risk associated with the Torscasted sale of live hogs, fresh
pork, and [he forecasted purchase of corn and soybean meal, cash Tlow inlerest ate sisk associated with
Noating ate borowings as well a5 foreign curency risk associated with flecluating foreign currency rates. The
b ol the defrealiee instruiments ave heen |||,'E$|1|l:'|n1|.=.|,_l fo match the tenmd ol the fespechive desygnated
hedged iterns, The major lenms of these confracts ae as lollows

Al December 31, 2019

Chasge in lair value

i foa
measunng bedye
Matsamal wolume melfechve
Berivalive insbaments Wi eum Maximum  Melric Waturity the yeat
5§ milliom

A JlES Coniracl
133,040,000  1,987,320,000 Paunds Up 10 Mareh 2021 459
32
10,857,129 178.230,000 Bashels Up 1o December 2021
565,600 1,170,600 Tons Uip 1o Mareh 2021
63,004 61.022.670 Yarinus Up 1o December 2020 ==
carpencies
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

27. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Cash flow hedges (Conlinued)
Al December 31, 2018

The hedge ineflectiveness can arise from:
. changes fo the forecasted amownts of cash flows of hedped tems and hedging instiuments

. differences m the timing of cash flows ol the forecasted transachions and the hedging Instruments

Leas than LITET i

Al

SR REFORT 2019 'WH GROUP LMITED 141
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

27. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Cash flow hedges {Continued)
The impact ol the hedged items on the consolidaled fnancial statements are as follows:

Total hedging Amoment
£ain (boss} neciass
from nther Hedlge Dedered net
comprelensive ineffectiveneis gain (loss) measuring he
comgreben imcome to profit recognised in included im inetlectiveness

Income of boss profit or boss oEhet resemve For the yeas

As 8t December 31, 2018

Highly probable forecast kear

466 445 3 ) 468

grain iransactions (31} {25} iy 27h (32}

ber 31, 2018

e ¢ =

The commodibies contracts, mberest ate contracts and loesign currency Torward conliacts as &l Decemiber
31, 2019 and December 31, 2018 are wecorded in “Prepayments, ofher receivables and olther assets” and
“hccrued expenses and olher payables” in the consofidated statement of linancial position.

The hedge ineffediveness 1or lorecast lean hog and grain ransactions are recognised in “Revenue™ and
“‘Cost of sales” In the consolidated staterment of prolit o loss and other compaehensdve mcome, respecivedy

142 WHGROUP LMITED ~HMUIAL REPORT 2005
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

27. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Confinued)
Derivatives not under hedge accounting

Assels Liabilities
US% million W% million

Foreign currency forward i3S - 2 ==
LGiain conliacs 5 a i i
Livestock conhacts 1 1 s —

_ Ensagy conbracts 2 n 2 5
L] 21 5 7

Magoa lesis of such dervalives are a5 follows:

Maturify

M Decembes 31, 2018

Commadibes ConYacs

Whex! 185,000 1,950,030 Buyshely Up 1o july 2020
St mics 1,800 40,550 Tam Up 1o duju 3020
; 10, 50,00 B2160,000 Fauady Up 10 December 2020
LNEETI 20.047.428 Bqshely Up 1o December 3031
30,000 3515000 Rashely Up o Jangary 2021
Live cait — 160,000 Foungs Up o Augun 30840
Natural gas 10, T, 00k 17.000,000 Eitish Themal Up o December 2031
Unity
Wind energy _— 3300605 e paamr-hoa Up 0 Sapienber 2032
Dhesed 17,138,000 21,168,020 Eallom Up 1o Decemier 2071
Fonasgn cumenty Mewstd conikscly 510,541 IE9E7.130 Vinem Up 1o dpeil 2020
carentiey
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

27.

28,

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Derivatives not under hedge accounting (Conlinued)

At December 31, 2018

Commodbed conlisth

Whaal 65,000 1205000 Brrshids Up 1o July 2020
Sybean meal B0 Tefd Up o August 2019
Lean b 480 () 29 JER 000 Pounds Lp e Movember 2009
Com 13535 004 33515 600 Errshels Ug o Maich N30
Coybeans 10,000 0000 Ershels Up b Novesmiet 2009
ks 14660000 REE0.000 Btk Theesal U 6 Decemiter 2071
Ll
Hesling ol - LE=0 000 =
] 2,100,000 18136000 Gtk
Forgn ourfendy lorwand confiacc 4 849 115 215 M5 TeB Wi bourk
CUTENCies

Drenivative financial assets and liabifities of less than US$] million, US$ET3 million, USES million and USE$27
million (2018 WSHL million, USEL1 million, USHE million and USES méllion) are recorded a8 non-cument
asaels, cuirent assels, non-cuirent labdlifies and curient liabilities, respectively

PLEDGED/RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS AMD BANK BALAMNCES AND CASH

Al Decomber 31, 20019, bank balances carry Intedest at market rates wanging from 0.01% to 4.50% (2018
01% o 480%) par annum. The pledged and restricted bank deposits canry flied inlerest rates from 001%
o 381% (2018 G01% o 3.58%) per annum,

At December 31, 2009, pledged bank deposits represented deposits of US$13 million (2018: 534 million)
pledped to banks for secuwring banking and trading factlities such as lefiers of credit and bank loans granted
to the Group, and US$2 million (2018: US$3 million) pledeed for secuning a loan hiom a thind party. These
pledped bank deposits will be released upon the seltlement of relesant boriowings of the release of e
relevant facilities.

A December 31, 2019, bank balance of LUS$EL milion (2018 USE] mallion) B pledged Tor worker's
compensation insurance claims in U5

Al December 31, 2019, a subsidiny of the Group which engaged in financial services, was governed by the
law to place USEES million (2018 US40 million) of a stalutory deposit in the People's Bank of China.

As al December 31, 2018, bank balance of IS$10 million s pledged for constructon of a plant in Poland.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

29. TRADE PAYABLES
The avesage credd perod on puichase of goods is about 30 days in China operations and the credit berms
vary depending on the vendor for the US, and other counfries of operations. The Group has flinancial risk
mEnagement policies i plce to enswe that all payables are paid within e credil limetranse:

20189

UES milleon

Trade payables 1.074 977

The follwing is an analysis of trade payables based on the nvaice date:

2018

LSS millson

Within 30 days 1,043 523
31 1o 50 days 26 4}
91 to 180 days 2 7
181 to 365 days 1 7

1.074 a7
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30. ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER PAYABLES

2018

Accreed statl cosls

Deposits receved

Sales rebates payables

Payables in respect of soquisition ol progesly, plant and
equipment

Insurance payables

Inlerest payable

Balance of conlingent consideration in respect of acquisition of
subsidiaries

Growers payaliles

Pension liability {Mote 35}

Amounts due to associstes and joinl ventures {Nofe 44(b)

Derivative Tinancial instruments {Note 27)

fccrued prolessional expenses

Accred rend and ulilsles

Dividend payables

Contract [@bilties (MNole)

Other acciued expenses

Other payables

fnahysed for reporling, pusposes. as:
Current liabilities
Mon-current labilities

491
2 1]
™

1,875

373
114
238

110
135
25

Il
41
14
31
14

32
10
16l
172
107

SLESS,

1,428
214

Foote

Comametd abditet IRCIUde ENANGES TR0Riwd 11 CUstCeelivy IR

!
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

DBELIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

The Group has leased cerdan of iis buildings, machinery, vehicles and other equipment. These leases were
classified as finance leases prior to IFRS 16 becoming effective on January 1, 2019 and had remaining lease
term @nging from 2 o 22 years. Interest afes undestyng all obligations under finance kases ae varable
respective contract dates with an average rate of 2.6% per annum for the year ended December 31, J018,

As gl December 31, 2008, e total fulure midmum bease payments ondes nance leases and their present
values were as follows:

Amounts payable under inance leases:

Wilhin ona yea A 3
One o two years 3 2
Two ko live years G E
Adter five years 15 16
E] | 25
Less: Fulure finance charges o
Present value of lease obligations 25
Less: Amounts due for settlement within one year and
shewn under cument labalities (2
Amounts due aller ahe yesr 23

The Group's obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessor’s charge over the leased assels

AMINRL RERORT 2019 WH GROUF LIMITED T
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

32. BORROWINGS

2018

Senion unsecied noles:

23009 senior unsecured notes due January 200 — 5

26509 senios unsecured noles due Oclober 2021 bl ] a7

A.350% senws unsecured noles due Februany 2027 198 T

A 2500 senior unsecured notes due February 2027 545 55

52005 senict unsecured notes due Apil 2025 195 -—

1.787 1,788

Commerncial papers (Mole i) 125 2356
Bank boans {Mote )

Secured £ EFE

Unsecured 1,138 67

Loans from third parties (Mole i)

Secunesd 1 1
Uinsecured 2 2
Tolal borrewings ofther than bank overdralls 3,082 3,078
Bank overdralls (Mobe w) v Al
The borowings other than bank overdalls ate repayable as
ollows o Mote e
Within ane year 905 g8l9
oz 10 o years 421 451
Two To five years 173 1.211
Aller five yoars 993 a7
3,092 3,078
Less: Amounts due within ome year shown under current abilities {505 (819
Amrouints due after one year 2,187 2,259
Total borrowings othes than bank overdrals:
At fwed rates 2,385 2370
. Pl ieling yobes 10 08
3,082 3,078
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

32. BORROWINGS (Continued)

U5 S million

Analysis of bomowings by cumency:

Denominated in LI5S 2,273 2458
Denominated in RMEB 582 a4
Denominated in PLN T4 ]
Denominated in ROMN 41 [0
Denominated in HKS 50 18
Denominated m ELIR Z 2
3,082 3,078
hiotes
in May 2012, Me Gioup esiabished o new commmrcial paper program Lo esue shoatderm notes. The program akows the Group to
e T peocesdn 3o lumg RTINS CARR Mjiaddrrlnt. LeInT T e of e COeTEmEi papesr AgrepmEnn, [he =75 payE & fals
of inlensst hosed on, among dther tectoes, the mafurily of (ke Ssuance and market conditions. The matunites of (hé issied papess
iy vRfy, DUt may mol mmesd 3T dea fnom the dabe of Bpance, Tee HEwaece of ComMMCEl DTS G Ihe eMact o rediscng
svalabbe Bquidiy by ao armount squal b the cfincigal cutitandmg amoant of the commercal papers. Manimum issusnts capacity
undar ihe program i LiSE1, 780 mison
Fesd rate bam'e foans cany et ot fosd rabes mnging from 2.26% to BE0W (3008: 205% fo 5.70%) and toating mies rangng
herm WIBOR 050K 1o tha U Primape 0.375% por ansum pal anousmn ot Decembeds 31, D019 (0IE WIBOR+QL.5E jo Be US
Prime+ 0 ATEN per arnsm])
i Loans fmm Ehad partes cary inbaest ot @ fosd raste of 0.5% por anmum ot Becember 1, 2019 (2018 09% por onnum}
" Bk owerdradis at December §1, 2008 carry interest 82 3 fidabing rate of A92% par snnum
¥ The amounts dus &te based on schedulsd epapmen! dales sed oul in the loan sgresments

The Group's borrewings contain alliemative and negalive covenants thal, among other things, limet o restict
W Growsp's abilily to creale lens and cncumbrances, mour debl, enter inlo hquidabicn, entérn Inlo change o
control fransactions of change the scope of the basiness, of dispose of o transier assels, in each case,
subject bo certain qualfications and exceplions. The Group has no matenial delaull in payment of the bank
borrewngs, nor did i1 beeach any relevant fmance cowenants Tor the years ended December 31, 2009 and
December 31, 2018, Details of assets pledged to secure borrowings afe sel oul in note 42 to the financial
slalemants.

AMNRL REPORT 2019 'WH GROUP LIMITED 149

247/315



EDINETOOOO
O00DOo00oOo0ooo00oOo0ooOO(E30533)
oOoOooodn

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

33. DEFERRED TAXATION
For the purpese of presentation n the consolidaled statement of financial pesition, cerain deferred tax assets
and liabilities have been offset The loflowing k= the analysis of the deferred tax balances Tor financal
PEpOrTIng, U posts:

2019

UsS' millian

Delerred tax assels 53] 57
Deferred tax Eabilities (&G0} ]
{594} (541

The following are the major deferred tax asselsfliabiliies recognised by the Group, and the movements
thereon during tha year

Tax effect of deductible lemporary differences:

i bt

A ey 1, X8 , [ 5 ' L] i Lot i
Curnicy ol et it b it ~ & ™ ] L4}
ol ichanged] ko oot or

tes - H] 2 t 1] n 3 14 %

Coxlin] rapedl b Bl - - - - - 1 -

2 Do 10, 2004 ard

mramry 1, = 5 L] L~ n L} ] i ] [1] ¥4
Curmncy gt - - - - - - - - -
Acquision of mirigne
Mok W - = - - -t - - | 1
Contilee] ichargai 1 poct®
™ et - L} k] o [LEi] 4 ] 2]
Coeiied] 1 ol - = — —— . a8 — - L]
&1 Cocember 31, 2055 — 5 il £ Ed ) 12 ] Hi

Lisz than USE] milken
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

33. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)
Tax ellect of taxable benporary diffesences:

M by |, 2008 =21 & L {5 (E]] A
IITeny Fslgnmen & = 4 2 i ]
Reoquiiiers of pulcibiared {liols 35 & = (25 = = in
fohged) owihid 16 proll o ks Lkl 7 4 2 1a 1208
Ae Dacirded 3L K03 o0 Rty 1, S0P el 3y Lt Ell ok L
Cuneccy raalgrement ¥ . —w - 1 4
Rorpndan of opteidorie {liote 50 (1] = - = = T
Crustged) cewiibed b peolt of by 281 [Fe ] LL] ="} 1 4
il ke = = i = . i,
M Decenter 31, 2009 [E2] (er]] [Lrad k] 113§ -2

Al December 31, 2019, the Group hed unused e bsses of USE203 million (2018 US$315 milkion}
available for offsetting against fulure profits o which a deferred tax assel has been recognised i respect of
USE207 million (2018 USE271 million) of such losses. Mo deferred b asset has been recognised in respec
ol such losses of USE56 milkon (2018 USEA million) due to unpredictability of futwe prolit sleam, There
are no uirecopnised tax losses al December 31, 2019 (2018 M) that may be carred lorward indefinitely
and ather losses will expire om o before 2038

Liss (hyny LSET milfion
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

33. DEFERRED TAXATION (Contirmed)
The unrecogmsed b losses will expire on of before 2038 as lollows:

2019
USE million
By end ol

2019 =
2020 T 1
e 3 .
2022 12 12
after 2023 3 20

56 49

At the end of the epoding pericd, the apgegate amount of temporary  differences associated wilh
undistiibated eamings of subsidiaries for which deferred lax Eabilities have nol been tecognised was
U543.201 malllon {F018: USE2 730 millkon). Mo Rabilly has been recogmised in respect of these diflerences
because the Group & In a position 1o controd the fiming of the reversal of the tempoary differences and the
Group has delermmned thal s porion of peol@s derived from these operating subsidianes will be odained by
these subsidiaries and wall nod be disbibuted in the foreseeable future, Theredose, it is probable that such
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable fulure,

34. DEFERRED REVENUE

2019

WSS million

Govermment grant
Cument {included in accrued expenses and olher payables)
(Mote 30) == -
Mon-current 10 10

10 10

The delerred mvenue represents government gran] eceived inonelation o construction of progely, plant and
eruipment ol e Group. As the delaled assels are under constrachon, the gramnt receieed Trom the
povernment will be released to profit o loss as other mcome over the useful lives of the related amounts
alter e construction s conpbeted

Lass fhen USF] mdlkon
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

35. PENSION LIABILITY AND OTHER RETIREMEMNT BEMEFITS
Defined benefit plans
The group enfities ‘which operate in the LS, operate funded defined benefit scheme for all their qualified
employees, Penston bencdits provided by the Group are cunrently oiganmsed pnimanily through defmed benedfit
pension plans which cover virtually all the WS employees and cerain foreign employess of the Group
Salarnad employees are provdied benehits bosed on yesns ol sonidce and average salary levels. Hourly
cmployess are provided benefits of stated amounts for each yeas of seivioe.

The delined benelit plan is administered by a separabe fund that s legally separated Trom the entity. The
board of the pension fund is composed of an equeal number ol regeesentatives from both  employers,
employees and (foemer) employees. The board of the pension fund s requined by bw and by s articles of
associaton to act in the mbedest of the fund and of &l relevant stakehabders in the scheme, e active
employees, imactive employees, retirees and employers. The board of the pension Tund is responsible for the
investmend policy with regard 1o the assels of the fund.

Under the plan, the employees are entitled 1o relirement banefits vanying belween 40% and 45% of final
salary on attanment of & retiremend age of 65 No ollss post-retirement benelits are provded to these
employees.

The plan in the L5, exposes the Group 1o acluarial gisks such as investrent nsk, interest rate 1isk, longevily
risk and salary risk are as lollows:

Investment risk

The presend value of the delined benefil plan liabality is calculated wsing a discound rate delermined by
refesence 1o high qualily coiporate bond yeebds: if the reluin on plan assel i below this mate, it will create a
plan deficit. Currendly the plan has a elstively balanced Investment in equily securilies, debl instruments and
resl estates. Due to the long-teom nature of the plan liabdity, e board of the pension lund considers i s
approgriate that a reasonable porhion of the plan assets should be invested in equity securities and in real
estales o leverage the relurn genermted by the fund,

Interest risk
A decrease i Bhe interest mte of Tked income products will increase the plan lability, howeser, this will be
partially offsel by an increase in the relum on the plan’s debd invesiments,

Longewity risk

The present value of the defined benelit plan liability s caboulated by reference to the best estimate of the
martality of plan participants both during and afler their employmenl. An increase i the life expectancy of
the plan participants will increase the plan's liability

Salary rigk
The present value of the defined benefit plan lEBbilty s calculated by reference to the fulwre salares of plan
participants. As such, an increase in the salary of ihe plan participants will increase the plan's llabslity.
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otes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

35. PENSION LIABILITY AMD OTHER RETIREMENT BEMEFITS (Continued)
Defined benefit plans (Conlinued)
Price risk
An ncrease o e rackel price of equily investments will increase the plan assels

The most recent aduarial valuations of plan assets and the present walue of the defined benefl obligation
were carreed oul al December 31, 20019 by Mescer (US)L Inc. The present vabee of the defined benefit
obligation, and the related current service cost and past semnvice cost, were measured using the Projected
Unit Credit Method.

The principal assumplions wsed for the parposes of the acluanal valuations were as folbows:

Valuation at December 31,

2018
Discounl rafe 3.50% 4.50'%
Expecled sale of salary increase 4% 4%

The actuarial valuabion showed thal the markel value of plan assets was USHLE1Z million (2018: US5%]1,625
rillicin k.

Amounts recognised in profil or koss inorespect of these delined benefil plans are a5 Tolbows:

2018

USS'million

Current senvce oosl 5] iz
Met interest expense 18 4
Talal a7 B

Remeasamerment of the net defined beneli |i.r1|.IIEI|'.' included in ofher comprelensive expenss is as lollows:

2018

USE'million

Heturn on plan assets (excludmg amounts

included in net mterest expensel 111 (143)
Actuanal (kbsses) gains arising from change
in financial assumplions {33 136
(192} ]
Deleared taxation (Mole 33} 49 1
Tolal {143) {6}
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

35. PENSION LIABILITY AND OTHER RETIREMENT BEMEFITS (Continued)

Defined benefit plans {Conlinued)

The amounl included in the consoldated statement of financial position arksing from the Group's obligation in

tespect ol ils delined benelit plans 5 as Tollows:

20189

Present value of Tunded defined benelit obligations
Fain value of plan assels

Funded status and net labiity ansing fiom defined benefit
abligation
Odher relirement benedits, med

UES milleon

Included in:
Current Eabilies (Mote 30)
Mon-current liabalities
Other non-current assals

2,378 2071
{1.812) {1,625)
566 L B
1m0 10
576 Ah6
18 14
558 448
= (&)
576 A5G

Maovements in e present value ol the defined benelit obligation m the current yes were as Tollows:

2019 018

Defimed benelil obdigaton al January |
Current service cost
Inferest cost
Bemelils paid
Remeasurement losses (gains);
Actuaral losses {gains) arising from change in
financial assumgtions

Defined benefil obdigation al December 31

Uss million LSS milion

Z.0m 2,139
[32] 2
|0 a2

{185) {85
333 {138)
2,378 2071
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otes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

35. PENSION LIABILITY AND OTHER RETIREMENT BENEFITS (Continued)
Defined benefit plans (Conbinoed)
Movements in the present value o the plan assels in the current year were as follows:

2018

USS'million

Fair value ol plan assets al January 1 1,625 1,777
Interest income 12 63
Contributions from the employers 158 9
Benelits pad {183 (B

Remessurement gains (losses)
Return on plan assets {excleding amounts incheded
in nel infterest expensal 141 (143

Fair value of plan assels al Decemdser 31 1.812 1,625

Iz Tawr vabses of the plan assels as at the énd of the epoitmp persod lor each calegory are as Tollows

Fair value of plan assels
' eeamber 37,

2019

UsS'millian
Cash and cash equivalents 142 219
Equity socuribies 616 426
Dbl securibes BT 242
Allemative investments 18 a7
Limited partnerships 178 127
Tatal fair value 1,892 1,801
Umsatibed bansactions, nel fi-1i] (176D
Total plan assels 1,812 1,625

The fair values of the above equity and debt instroements are defermined based on quoted markel prices in
achve markets whereas the fan salues of alternative imvestiments and Brouted partnerships are nol based on
quoted markel prices in active markets. As at December 31, 20019, USE757 million, LIS3956 milon and
USF179 million of plan assets (2018; US$6S9]1 million, US35%8E3 million and USEL2T million} are dassified as
Level 1, Level 2 and Leved 3, respeclively.

The aclual relurm on plan assels was 5.55% (2018: 5.00%) over 5 yeans,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

35. PENSION LIABILITY AND OTHER RETIREMENT BEMEFITS (Continued)
Delined benefit plans {Conlinued)
Significant achuarial assumptions for the determination of fhe defined obligation are discount rate, papected
salary increase and modally. The sensilialy amalyses below have been determined based on reasonably
possible changes of the respective assumptions oocurning at the end of the reporting period, while holding a1l
olher assumplions constant.

If the discount rate s 50 basis paints higher (lowen), the defined benelit obhigation would decrease {increase)
by USEIE3 million (2018 decrease (mcresse) by US$142 million).

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefi
obligabon as it 15 unbkely thal the change in sssumpbions would occur m isolation of one another as some ol
the assumgtions may be correlated,

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the presenl value of the defined benedit oblgation
has been calculled wing the Projecied Unit Cradd Method o the end of the reporting period, which & the
same as that applied in calculating the defined benefil obligation Eabilty recognised In the consolidated
statement ol financial position

Pension plan assels may be imvested in cash and cash equivalenls, equities secunfies, debl secuiities and
alternative assols {including alternative investments, limited partnerships and  insurance contracts). The
investment! policy for the pension plans s to batance nisk and relwn rough a diversified portfolio of high
quality equity and fixed income securities. Equity tamgets for the pension plans are as indicated in the
following table. Maturity for fixed mcome secusities is managed such that suflicient liquidily exists to meel
near-lerm  benelil payment obligations. The plans relain oulside investrent advisors o manage  plan
investments within parameters established by the plan trustees.

The following table presents the fair value of the qualified pension plan assefs by major assel category as at
the end ol the reporting persad. The allocation of the pension plan assels s based on the targel range
presemted in the Tollwang Eabbe,

Al December 31

UE 5 million t range

Asset calegories
Cash and cash
equivalents, net of

unsettied ransactons G2 0-4% 43 4%
Ecquity securilies 616 30-50% A26 -5
Dt securities 477 A5-55% 42 IE-55%

 Allemative assels 257 5-20% 214 S0
Toal 1812 1625
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

35. PENSION LIABILITY AND OTHER RETIREMENT BEMEFITS (Continued)
Defined benefit plans (Continued)
The Group expects o make a contribution of US$217 milion 1o the defined benefit plan during the nest
linancis year.

The follswing are descriglions of the valuation methodologees and key inpuls used o measwe pension plan
ashels recorded ab lair vabee:

Cazh and cash equivalents

Cash equivalents include highly liquid investrments with originad maturities of three months or less. Due to
their shot-berm mature, the carying amount of hese mstroments appoosimates Bhe estimated  fain value:
Bclrvety traded money madket Tunds are measured al thelr ned assel walues, which approximates to Taie value,
and classilied as Level 1. The fain values of certain money markel funds for which quoted prices are
available bl raded less trequently have been dlassiied as Level 2

Equity securities

When awailable, the lalr values ol equily securilies are based on quoted prices in active markets and
classified a5 Level 1. Level 1 flinanceal dnstruments include highly lguld instriments with quoted prices, such
as edquities and mutual funds baded in active markels.

Il quoted prices are nol available, fair values are obtained from pricing services, broker quoles or other
model-Dased waluation techniques with observable ingsuts and chssiied as Level 2, The nature of these equily
securities inchede securilies for which quoted prices are available but traded less frequently, securities whose
fair value has been derved using a model where inputs to the model are directly observable in the markef,
of can be derved pancipally from of coroboaled by observable markel data and secinities that ae valued
using other fimancial instruments, the parameters of which can be ditedly cbserved. Level 2 equily securitkes
mclude profemed slock and commingled Tunds That are not achively raded.

Dobt securities

Thwe fawr values of debd securities are oblained from pricing serdces, broker quobes or other model-baged
wvalualion techniques with obsetvable inputs and classified as Level 1 o Level 2. The natwe of these debt
secutities includes instroments for which quoted grices ae aailable bul baded less Trequently, instroments
whose fair value has been derived wsing a model where inputs o the model ae directly observable in the
markel, of can be derived principally from of cofroborated by observable market data and securities thal are
valued wsing othed financial insttuments, the paraimeters of which can be directly observed, Level 1 debt
securities inchude corporate debt secarities and government debt securities. Level 2 dobt securities include
comminghed funds, asset-backed secuiities and emengang markel securiles,
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

35. PENSION LIABILITY AND OTHER RETIREMENT BEMEFITS (Continued)
Delined benefit plans (Conlinued)
Alemative investmants
The faw values of alternative investiments are obtained from pricig services, brokes quoles o other model-
based valuation techniques with observable inputs and classified as Level 2. The nature of these alternative
investments - includes  instrumends for which quoled prices are available bul traded less  frequently,
insttuments whose fair value has been derved wsing & model where inpuls 1o the model are directly
obserable in the market, o can be derived principally friom o comoborated by observable market data and
securiies thal are valued wsing other financial instruments, the paramelers of which can be directly
observed, Level 2 alternative mvestments include diversified investment funds,

Limited partierships

The valuation of limited partnership inveshmends requires the wse of significant unobserable inpuls due to the
absence ol quoted maghel prices, inherent ek of kquidity and long term nature ol such assats and ame
classitied as Level 3. These investments are initlally valued al cost with quarterly valuations performed
utilising available markel data 1o determine the fair valee of these investments. Such markel data consists
ey of the obseoabions of leding moliples of public companies considered  comparabde 1o the
investments, with adjustments for investment-specific issues, the lack of lquidity and oher lems

Defined contribution plans

The Group's qualitying employees in Hong Kong participate in MPF in Hong Kong, The assets of the MPF are
held separately from those of the Group in fund onder the conbiol of trustee. Under the MPF scheme in
Hong Kong, the emplover and 5 employees are each required to make confributions 1o the scheme at 5% of
e employecs’ relevant income, subject to a cap of manthly relevant income of HE$30,000. Conbribulions to
the scheme aie vested mmediabely,

The employess of the Group's China subsidisries are membess of the sate-managed retirement benefits
scheme operated by the China goverminent, The subsidiaries are reguired to conteibute & certaln peicentage
ol their payrdll 1o the retirement benefits scheme to fund the benelils. The only obligabion of the Group with
respech to the retirement benefits scheme s b make the sequined contributions under the scheme,

The Group has defined contribution plans (A01(K) plans) covering substantmally all LS. employees. The
Group's contribubions to the plans are primarily based on esch contribution and cannol exceed the maximum
allowable for tax purposes.

The amount charged o profit or loss of approximately US$SE million dwing the year ended December 31,
2019 (2018 USPA3 millien) represents contiibaibions paid o payable to the plans by the Group ab rates
specilied i the rules of the peans,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cantinued)

36. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS
For the year ended Decembes 31, 2018
Step acquisition of Pini Polonia sp. z o.o.
On May 28, 2019, the Group satished all conditons precedent under the share puichase agiesment 1o the
acouisition of 66,5% equity interest of Pind Polonia sp. 7 oo, ("Pini Polonia™y, Along with the 33.5% equity
mterest acquired on July 28, 2017, Pimi Polonia became a wholly-owned subsidiany of the Group. The results
ol Pini Poloni are consolidated inlo the Group's fmancial sialements commencing from the acquisdion date
(ie, May 28 2019)

The Group accordingly remeasured the tair value ol its pre-existing interest in Pini Polonia at the date of
acquisition and recognised the resulting bss of less than US$L million on the remeaswement of the Group”
pre-exitig interest in Pind Polonta to the acquistion date fair value

Detaibs of the carying wlue and lair value of the Group's pre-existing intersst in Pini Polonia ol the date of
acqsition are summansed as lollws:

Share of nel assets 84
Less; Fair value ol pre-existing bnterest (84}
Loss on remeasurenent —_

A5 at the date of approwal for issuance of the consolidated financial statements, the B value assessments of
identiliable assels and labilities sisng from the above acquisition have mol been foalised and thus, e
assels and [@bilties recognised al the date of acquisition {see below) have been determined provisionably,
Upon finalisation of the valuation, goodwill arising on acquisition may change accordingly. The directors of the
Company expect the waluabon will be linalised within ome yesr rom the completion dale of the acquisition

Lewm thaen USE] millen
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

36. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Contirsed)
For the year ended December 21, 20189 (Conbinuad)
Step acquisition of Pini Polomia sp. z o.o. (Continued)
Th faie values of the dentifiable assels and Habilies of the acquisition as al the dale ol adcqusition
{determined on a provisional basis) were as follows

Fair value

recognised on

acquisiion
UsES million

Property, plant and equipment
Inventories

Trade and Bills receivables 12
Prepayments, other receiables and other assets

Bank balances and cash 1
Cahed non-cuifent assels 44
Trade payables (65)
Acciued expenses and other payabbes s
Bosrowings and othes loans {13)
Lesse labidities (3}
Deferrad tax labdities {15}
Other liakilities {48)
Total identifliable net assets &t lalr value a5
Goodwill 11
196
Satisfeed by
Cash 12
Fair value of pre-essting mterest ad
196

The Groug incurred fransaction costs of US$E2 mallion fee the acquisition. These transaction costs: have been
expensed and are included i other expenses in profit or loss

= Less tran LIS million
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

36. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Confinued)
For the year ended December 31, 2018 (Conlinued )
Step acquisition of Pini Polonia sp. z o.o. (Continuwed)
AR analysis of e cash Nows in eespect of the acousition of the above subsidories & as follows:

USS million

Cash consideration {112)
Bank balances and cash aoquited 1

Met outflow ol cash and cish equivadents included in cash Tlows

used in investing activities {1in

Transaction costs paid during the year inclisded in cash flows Tiom operating
aclivities {2)
{113

Since the completion of acquisition, Pind Polonia contributed LISF1ET mdlion 1o the Group's revenue and
USHG million koss to s consolidated profit betore tax for the year ended December 31, 2019

Had the acquisition of Pinl Poonia taken place atl the beginning of the year, the revenue and the
consolidabed profit before tax of the Group would have been LESE24,307 million and 552048  milkion,
respicively.

162 WHGROUF LIMITED AL REPCAT 2015
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

36. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Contirsed)
For the year ended December 21, 2018
RAcquisition of Elit 5.R.L. and Vericom 2001 5.R.L.
On January 9, 2018, the Group acquired from an independent third party e cnting equity interest in two
Romanian companies, Elit SR and Yercom 2001 S.R.L (“Elit and Vericom™), The acquisition was made as
part ol the Group's strategy lo increase prolitability in branded packaged meats and strengthen thair leading
posiion in the packaged meals markel in Romania,

The ke values ol the identifEble assels and Eabilties of the acquisition as al the date of acquisfion were as
Tollows:

Property, plant and equipment s
Intangible assels 26
Inventornies 5
Trade and bills receivables 8
Prepayments, otfws receiables and olher assets s
Bank balances and cash 7
Trade payables (4]
Accrued expenses and other payabdes (3}
Deferead tax liabdlities ]
 Cher liabalitios {13)
Total kfentifiable net assets ot lalr value =153
Goodwi 28
Satisfeed by cash &4

The Group incurred bansaction cosfs of US$1 mallion foe the acquisition, These transaction costs have been
expensed and are included moother expenses i prodit or logs

Less ikuan LEST miflon
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

36. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Confinued)
For the year ended December 31, 2018 (Conlinued )
Acquisilion of Elit 5.R.L. and Vericom 2001 5.R.L.
An analysis of e cash Nows in eespect of the acousition of the above subsidowries s as follows:

Cash consideration (&4)
Bank batances and cash acquired ¥
Outstanding consideration at the end of the reporting period 18

Met outflow of cash and cash equivalents included in cash Hows wsed in investing

aclivities (55

Transaction costs paid during the year incheded in cash Nows Trom opeating
activities {1
(60)

Sance the aequisition, EN and Vercom contributed US$117 milbon to the Group’s revenee and USER million
to the consolidated profit belore tax {or year ended December 31, 2018

The revenue and profit of the Growp for the year ended Decemnber 31, 20018 would remain unchanged &s the
acquasition of ENt and Vercam had taken place ot the begmning of the year

16 WHGROUF LIMITED AL REPCAT 2015
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

37. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

{a)

{b)

fe)

Major non-cash transactions
[ming the year, the Group had non-cash additions o rightl-of-use assels and bease [@bilities of LISE 1590
millicn and USE1B0 mallion, respectively (2018 Nilp

On December 20, 2009, the Group contribisted cortain biogas operations to ils jeint venture, Alipn RNG
LLE ("Mlign”). The transaction resulted in 8 gain of USH2 mallion, which regresented the diference
between the fair value of the equity interests received from Align and the net book value of the biogas
aperabons conlnibuled

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

Dbligations under
Dividend finance leases’ Bormmowings and

lease liabilities
154 mallion

At Jangary 1, 2008 13 s 3106
Changes (vom Ginancing cash llows [795) (5} 4
Interest expense and amortisation o

lansachon cosks - . 5
Dividends declaned 18 == "
Cumency realgnment [ 2 {37
At December 31, 2018 10 25 3078
Effect of adopltion of IFRS 16 - 361 —
At Janeary 1, 2019 {restated) 10 386 3,078
Changes from financing cash (lows (464} {116) 3
MNew leases o 180 o
Interesl expense = 18 .
Acquasition of subsidarnies (Mobe 36) — 3 13
Divichends. declaned 472 - -
Cumency realignment (=) {G) {2y
Al December 31, 2019 18 465 3,092

Tolal cash outflow for leases
The lotal cash oulflow for lesses included in the statement of cash llows s as Tollows:

0me

USS mil lian

Within operating aclivities a7
Within Investing activibes {24}
Within financing actnilies 16

179

Less than U2 lign
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

38. SHARE CAFITAL

Mamber ol 5

Ordinary shares of LUS$00001 each

Authorised:
Al lanuary 1, 2018, December 31, 2018, January 1, 2015, and
December 31, 2019 0, 0.0 5
Issued and fully paid:
At January 1, 2018 14.664.23 1
lssue of shares on exercise of share ophbons (MNote) 11.25 :
Al December 31, 2018 and Jameary 1, 2019 14,675.48 1
Issue of shares on exercise of share oplions (Mote) 45 27 il
Al December 31, 2019 14720075 1

Fiche
The shume apbons exercssd during the yesis afe under 1hé pee- PO shaes opton schame

AN e shares Esusd duting the yesd rask parl passe with tha Ihen exsting shares in 8 respacic

39. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMEMNT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The Group manages s capital 1o enswe thal enlibes m the Group will be able o conlimue as a going
concern white maximising the return o owners through the optimisation of the dett and equity balance. The
Group's owerall strategy remains unchanged during the years,

The capital struchere of the Group consists of net debt, which includes the borrowings disclssed in nole 32,
nid ol cash and cash equivalents and equity altributable to owners of the Company, comprsing issued shane
capital, reserves and relained profits. As al December 31, 2019, the Group's net debd to equity ralio was
26.9% (2018 30.8%)

Lesk then USR] millken
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

39. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Confinued)
Categories of financial instruments
Finamcial assets
As at Decermnber J1, S01F

Financial 3
profit or loss® amaorlis Tolal

Assel calegores UsE million UsS million USS mil han

Uinlisted equilty investments 10 e 10
Unisted financil products A47 — a7
Darivative linancel assels Td = T4
Mhes non-ciiren assels 145 — 145
Trades, bills and other receivables

and ather asses 15 1,202 1217
Pledpediresinicted bank deposits —— 43 45
Bank balances and cash - 552 552
Total &a1 1,798 2490

As at Decermbet X1, 2008

Unfisted equaly investrments ! !
Unlisted financial products 37 — 37
Desivative financial assels 19 15
Othes non-current assels 121 - 121
Trade, bills and other 1eceivables

and ather assels — 1,268 1,268
Pledgedirestricted bank deposits L. 58
Bank balances and cash = ¥l 525
Total A4 1.851 2315

= The financial sssete & fair valus Hvough peofit or foes se mandalonly measusd ot FYFL
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

39. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Categories of financial instruments (Conlinued)
Financial liabilities

USE million

Al amortised cosls:

Trade and other payatdes 1462 1.329
Lease liabilities/obligations under finance leases 465 25
Bosrowings {lixed and floating rales) 3,092 1078
Bank ovendrafts = i1

5,019 4473

Al fair value through peofit or Boss:
Deetivative linanckal labilities 35 21

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's major financial instruments include pledged bank deposits, bank balances and cash, financial
assels al FVPL, dervabive inancial instuments, ade, bills and ofher receiabbes, other non-current assels,
trade and other payables, lease liabilities, obligation under finance leases, bonowings and bank overdrafls,
Details of the financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes, The msks associated with these financial
mestruments include makel resk {corrency nsk and interest rate nsk), credit sk and liquedity nsk. The
pedicies on how to mitigate these rsks are el out below, Management of the Gloup manages and monilors
these aeposures o ensure thed approprioste measures are implemented in a mely and effective manner.

Market risk
The Growp's aclivities expose f pramarily 1o the financial rsks of dhanges in ferelgn cumency exchange rakes
and interest rales

There has been o change to B Group's exposurie to market risks o the manner in which it manages and
measures the nsk

1568 WH GROUF LIMITED AL REPCAT 2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

39. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Conlinued)

Foreign currency fisk managemenl

Cerlain group  entities  have certain foreign currency  =ales, purchases, bank balances and cash and
borrowings denominated in UsH, EUR, HK$, RMB and JPY, which expase the Group to foeign cumrency tisk
at these indiddisal groap entithes lewed, In osder to miligate the foren cirmency iisks, lofelgn cuiréncy
forward contracts are entered info by the Group for certain malerial foreign currency transactions, The ornitical
teems of these ferelgn cumency forward contracls are similar 1o those of the hedged payments and receipts
denominated in toregn cumrencies. These Totsgn curéncy loward conbizets are designated as hedping
instruments and hedige accounting 15 applied as the conbacts ae considered highly effective hedging fems
The canying amounts of the Group’s foreign curiency denominaled monetary assets and monedary labslities
al the end ol the eporling period are as Tollows:

2018
LSS milleon
Assels
Lsg
Bank balances and cash 36 2
Trade, bills and othes recelvables 18 5
EUR
Bank batances and cash 3 3
Trachiz, bills and other reoevablbes 32 !
RME
Trade, bills and ofher receivabbes 1o 1
I
Trade, bills and othes ieosvalbes 60 31
Liabilities
53
Trade and other payables 39 i
Borowings 1 af
EUR
Trade and othel payvables 26 4
Borowings z 2
HES
Borowings =0 18
RMB
Trage and ofther payables 15 —
Borowings = 24
. Less Ihan LISED milion
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

39. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Foreign currency risk management (Conlinued )
Sensitivity analysis
The Group s mainly exposed to the effect of USE agamst the functional curencies of respective group
enfities, except for HHSG as it & pegged to the US%E The directors of the Company consider that the risks
axposed to the effect of EUR and RMB are nol materil

The foflowing table details the Group's sensitivity to a 5% (2008 5%} increase and decrease in US$ against
functional  currencies of respective group  enfities whech  represent managemant’s assessmen! o the
reasonably possible change In loreign exchange rates, The sensitivity analysis includes only oulstanding
forgign currency denoiminated monelaty Berms and adjusts their banskation to the functional currencies o
respective proup enfites at year end for 8 5% (2018 5%} change in lodeign cuimency rates. A positive
{negative) number below indicates an increase {decrease) in post-lax profit where USH strengthens 5%
(2018: 5%) apgainst the relevanl currency.

208

UsE'million

LISH mmpact 6 {3

In management's opinion, the sensitivity analyse is unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk as
the year end exposure does nob rellect the caoposure during the respective year,

Interest rate risk management

The Group's fair value interest rate msk relales pomsaly 1o 15 inancial assets ot FYPL, flixed-rate bosrowings
and fmance leases (see notes 17, 26, 31 and 32 respectively for details), The Grosp currently does not enter
il any derrative contracts o hedge its exposure to changes in Tl walees of linanceal assels a1 FYPL, hined-
rate borrowings and finance leases, However, the management of the Group will consider hedging sknificant
interest rate exposure should the need atise

The Group's cash llow interest e risk relates primarily 1o (loating rates bank balances, bonowings and bank
overdrafls (see notes 28 and 32 respectively for details). The Group's exposures (o inlerest mtes on linancial
liaksildios are detatled i the liquidity sk management section of this node,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

39. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Confinued)
Interest rate risk management [Conlinued)
Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analysis below has been detéermined based on the exposure o mbeest rates foe non-denvative
instruments &t the end of the epoting period. For floating rates  bormowings, bank owverdrafts and bank
balances, the analysis is prepaced assuming the amount of assel and habilily outstanding at the and of the
teparting period was oulstanding for the whale year. A 25 bases poinls mcrease of decrease B oosed o
sensitivity analysis which represents management's assessment of the reasonably possible change in inferest
1ales,

It interest mbes decreased by 25 basis points and all other warables were held constant, the potential effect
on post-tax profit i as follows:

Inerease (decrease) in post-tax prodi el —_—

There would be an equal and opposite impact on the post-lax profil where the interest mbes increased 25
bask points and all cthes varables were held constant

Credit risk management

The Group's ciedit sk &5 pomanly attributable to s trade, bills and other recerables, bank batances amd
pledged bank deposits. At the end of the reporting peried, the Group's maximiem exposure o credit sk
which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure 10 dischaige an obligation by the coundesparties
and arising from the camying amoant of the respective recognised financial assels stated in the consolidated
slatement ol financial pesition

In order o minimise the credit risk, management of the Group has delegated a team responsible for the
defermination of credit Bmits, credit approvals and other monitonng procedures to ensune el follow-up
action is \Eken o recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual debt at the end of each reporling penod to ensure that adeguate impaioment losses are made for
imecoveiable amounts. In ths regard, the management of the Group cosiders that the Group's credit msk s
significantly reduced

The Groug has no significant concentralion of credit fsk on trade, bills and other recelvables, with axposure
spread over a large number of counterparties and customers.

Information about credit risk exposure on the Group's frade receivables wsing provision matrix is dischosed in
nole 24 to the consofidated financeal statemenls. As al December 31, 2012 and Deceomber 31, 2018, the
loss allowance provision for pledgedirestricled bank deposits, bank balances and cash, bills recelvable and
fimancial assels included in prepayments, other recenables and other assels was nol material

Les: Broary LISEE millicen
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

39. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Credit risk management (Conlinued)
The ECls for limancial assels included in prepayments, olber receiables and olher assels are based on
assumptions aboul probatality of detaull and cxpected loss rates. The Group uses edgement in making hese
assumptions and seblecting inputs o the ECLs calculations, based on the Group's historical loss record,
current condibions as well as forward-looking information.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The lables below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure lo credit nisk based on the Group's
credit policy, which s mainly based on past due information unless oflher information s available withoul
umidue cost o eftod, and year-end staging classification as al December 31 The amounts presented ae
pross caihang amounls lof binancel assets and the exposuie to credit fsk fof the hinancal guaiantes
contracts,

As gt Decamber 3], 2019

Lifetime ECLs

Simplified

Sla } Slage 3 appraach Tolal
USS million U5% mitlion US% million USS million U5S million

Trade and blls

receiables a - —— 1.038 1.047
Financial assets included

i prepayments, olher

receivabdes and olbwe

Assets 155 = = = 155
Pledged deposits 45 - - - 45
Cash and cash

equivalents 552 - e -_ 552

161 — e 1,038 1,198

112 WH GROUF LIMITED AL REPCAT 2019

270/315



EDINETOOOO
O00DOo00oOo0ooo00oOo0ooOO(E30533)
oOoOooodn

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

39. CAPITAL RISK MAMAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Confinued)
Credit rigk management (Continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)
As at Decermber J1, S008

Teade and bilks

recaivables 10 - — 1,125 1,135
Financial assels included

i prepayiments, ather

receivables and other

assets 133 133
Pledged deposits ha L
Cash and cash

equivalents 525 525

726 1125 1,851

Liguidity risk management

The wllimate responsibility Tor liquidily sk managemenl tests welh omassgement, which has  beill an
approgriate liquidity risk management framework {ot the management of the companies comprising the
Group's shot, medium and long-lerm funding and lquidity management requirements. The Group manages
liquidity risk by mambaining adequate reserdes and borowing acililies. by conlmuously monilonng lonecast
and actual cash lkews and malching the matunty profibes of financial assets and Kabilities

As at December 31, 2009, the Group has available unutilised banking facilifies of approamately LISE2 574
million (2018 USH2 853 million).

The following table details the Group's remaining contractual matugity for its non-derivative linancial l@abilities
The tabde has been deswn up bosed on the undiscounted cash llows of financial Ebilties based on the
eairllest date on which the Group can be required to pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash
fews. To the extent thal interest rales ae loating, the undiscounted amound s derived Trom inleres! rabe al
the end of the repoing persd
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

39. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Liquidity risk management (Conlinued)
In addition, the following table also details the Group's analysis of its derivative financial mstruments that
seftle on a nel basis, based on their laie wloe wcorded in [@bdities as al the end of the eporting peeniod

On demand
and

6 months Bo 12

manths

Al December 31, 2019

Trade payables 1,072 2 — = — 1,074
Other payables ez | — 59 —_— - 388
Lease labilties B3 61 145 a0 210 559
Fieed-rate borrowings G10 e 477 Rl 1188 2,809
F|I.I.‘ahlm fale bofrowings 244 -] 30 354 — 708

2,312 176 m 235 1.398 5,538

Derivative fTinancial labities,
— 4 — 8 - - 35

At December 31, 2018

Trade payables Sy0 7 — By
Other payables 302 50 ; 352

Obligations under finance
lesgrsies 1 " 3 b 19 il
Bank overdrafls al 41
Fiwed-rate borrowings 162 451 457 BE3 FLLE 2,559
Floating-rate borrowings 236 42 A6 408 73z
1,712 502 EhG 1,297 725 4,052

Derivalve Tiancial liabises,
neat =1 & 14
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

39. CAPITAL RISK MAMAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Confinued)
Fair value measurement
The directos of the Company consides that the carrying amounts of current financial assels and fmancial
liab#lites recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated linancial statements approamate o their fair values
due to the shorl lesmn maturities of these instruments.

The tair valies of non-current linancil assets and linancial Rabilities bave been caboulsted by dscounting e
expected future cash flows using mates ourrently available for instruments with similar terms, credit sk and
remainig maturiies and management has assessed thal the lair values of non-current Tmancial assels and
fimancial labiities approximate to their carying amounts, The Group's own non-perdormance tisk for non
curtent financial habilities as al December 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018 wore assessed o be
insgmificant

Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position

The lolvwing table provdes an analysis of financeal sstruoments that are measured subsequent to nitial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 o 3 based on the degree to which the lair value is
obserable,

. Leswel 1 i valee messurements are those denved from quoted preces (unadpusted} in actlive markets
lor ddenhcal assets of habalities

* Lewed 2 fan walue measurements ane those derved from inpuls other than queted prices included within
Lewel 1 that ase observable for the asset o liability, either diectly {ie. as prices) o indirectly fie
derived Irom prices)

. Lewel 3 fair value measurements are those derived Trom valuation techniques that mclude inputs for the
asset of Rbility that are nol based on obsenabde market data (unobservable mpils),

2018

Lewel 1 Level 2 Tolal

UEE million USS million US%E million UES million

Financial assels al fair
value I:|'|l-:nwa_'_ll paodil ar

loss — 10 447 457
Derivative financial assels T 17 2 a0
Other non-current assels N Ba 26 145

Financial assels inchsded
in prepayrments, ofher
receivables and other
assolbs B 15 = 135

102 130 475 707

Derivative financzal
liabililies 18 26 7 51
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

39. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Conlinued)

Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position (Conlinued)

Financial assets at fai
value thaaugh prafil o

loss 7 a7 324
Derivative mancial assels 12 & 1 19

| Other non-current asscls 9 0 22 121 )
41 g3 240 A

Derivative Tinancial
liatyilities 7 10 4 21

Financial assets at FVYPL included (a) unlisted investments in equity securities whose lair values ane
determined by incone approach based on discounted cash Tlow analysis on the expected interest rates {Leved
23, and (b} unlisted faancial products whose tair values ase determined based on significant unobsendatle
mputs {Level 3} including expected rate of refurn of 3.7% to 4. 1% (December 31, 2018 4.0% to 5 3%).

The fair valees of derivative linancial assetsfiabilities are determined by quoted prices in active markets
(Lewed 13 or whing the mecome approach based on discounted cash llow analysss on the expedcled et
rates (Level 2), as appropriate.

Ciher non-Current assets nclude mulual lunds and insttulonal Tunds whech are valeed based on 1S quoted
paices in active matket {Level 1} or denived from the mel assel wvalue per share of the investment (Level 3), as
apgreprate, and insurance contracts which aee valued al their cash swrrender vahee using the daily assel und
value which is based on the quofed markel price of the underlying secunfties and classified within Level 2,

Thisre were no ansfers between Leved 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements duning the year, and o
transtess into or owd of Level 3 fain value measurements during the year ended December 31, 2019,

Sensitivity analysis

The fair valee of financial assels and financial labilities that are classified as Level 3 is determined by using
waluation lechnigues including Monte Carlo semulaltion. In detérmining the fair walue, specilic valelion
techniques are wsed with relerence to inputs such as RMB risk-free interest rate, LIBOR and ollves specilic
imput refevant 1o those particular financial assals and Tinancial Kabilities.

Changing unobserable inputs used in Leval 3 valualion 1o reasonable alernative assumplions would nol have
segnificant impact to the Group's profit or loss,

178 WH GROUF LIMITED AL REPCAT 2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

39. CAPITAL RISK MAMAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Confinued)
Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position (Conlinued)
Movements in fair valoe measwrement within Level 3
The moverments in tar wue messurements within Level 3 duning the years are as follows:

At January 1, 2018 23
Total gain {loss) recognised in prolil o loss

inclirded in clhes gains and (losses) 15 {3) (13
Purchases 951 — —
[Dispasals [626) ana i
Currency reabignment (23) - >
Ab December 31, 2018 a7 {3 22
Total gain (oss) recegnised in profit of loss

included in olhes gains and (losses) 24 {2) 4
Total loss recognised in other comprehensve

incomse — —") —_—
Puncharses 920 — —
[Hspesals (810} —_ -
Currency realignmeant {4y == =
At Decenber 31, 2019 447 {5] 26

Fair value measurements and valuation processes
Sormee ol the Group's assels and labilfies are messured at fair value Tol linanceal reporling punposes.

In eslmating the Lair walee of an assel or a liabilly, the Group uses marked-observable data to the edent it is
available. Where Level 1 inputs are nol available, the Group engages third party qualified valuers to perdorm
the valuation The management of the Company works closely with the qualified external valuers o establsh
the appiogpriate valuation techniquees and inputs to e moedel

= Lesis 1Paey UESEL million
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the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

39. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Financial assets and financial liabilities subject to offselting enforceable master netting arrangements
and similar agreements
The disclosuee sel oul in the tables bedow includes linancead assets and Tinancial Babililses That

. are offsel in the Goup's consolidated statement of financial position; o
- are subgect to an enforceable master neting arrangement or similar agreement that covers samilar financial
mstiuments, wrespective of whether they ae offsel in the Group's consolidabed statement of Tinancis

position,

T Growp -:'mll,!utl'f has a Iq!;_'_uliy entorceabhe right to el off the derdative Indncil mstiumeats and the
Group intends to setthe these balances on a nel basis.

As al December 31, 2019

Srralae TH (14 55 - 53 108

1% {18 - - — —
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continuet

39. CAPITAL RISK MAMAGEMENT AMD FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Conlinued)
Financial assels and financial liahilities subject to offsetting enforceable master netting arrangements

and similar agreements (Conlinued)
As al December 31, 2018

Do rrabvien
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

40, SHARE INCENTIVE SCHEMES
fa) 2010 Share Award Plan

The Company's share award plan (the “2010 Share Award Plan"} was adopted parsuvant o a resolution
i owniting of all shapehodders of the Company dated Novembeer 26, 2010 {the “Resoutions™). As a resull
of the completion of the remganisation steps as described and approved in the Resolutions on
Decembar 26, 2013, 631 580,000 shares of the Company {the “Incentive Shares”), representing 6% of
the then issued shares of the Company were bamsiermed from Shine D Hobding Linibed, one of the
shareholders of the Company, to Chang Yun Holdings Limited (“Chang Yun"} for the senio
management ol the Company and @5 subsidianes and mvested entiies pursuant to the 2010 Share
Fovard Plan. The Resolutions slso approved the engagement of Tocor Servioes Limited by the Company
fo provide trustee services for the 2010 Share Award Plan and Teeroy Limited has been designated by
Tricor Services Limited to act as frestee for the A010 Share fward Plan (ihe “Trustee"), The woling
mghts in respect of the Incentive Shares held by Chang Yun will be exercised in accordance with the
direction o be given by Heroic Zoe, ome of the shareholders of the Company.

It, at the dale of lermination of the 2010 Share Award Plan, Chang Yun holds any Incenlive Shares
which have nol been set aside parsuant to the leos ol the 2010 Share Award Plan i lavour of any
selected employes of the Company or relains any wmdilised funds, the Tiustee shall handle at the
discretion of the board of directors ol the Company according 1o the then applicable laws and
fegulations. Upon termenation of the 3000 Share Award Plan, all the Incentive Shares and olher
distributions provisionally awarded 1o a selected employee to the extent ot alresdy vested pursuant to
the terms of the 2010 Share Award Plan, shall becomwe vested on such selecled employes and any
Incentive Shanes which are nol vested i accordance with the terms of the 2010 Share Awacd Plan of
are foffeited in accordance with the terms thereundes, shall be handled at the discrefion of the board
of diseciors of ihe Company according to the then applicable lbaws and regulations. Chang Yun was
herely regarded as a special purpose enlity of the Comgany and consolidated to the Group
acoordugly.
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

40, SHARE INCENTIVE SCHEMES (Confinued)
{a) 2010 Share Award Plan (Conbimuad}
The 2010 Share Award Plan was amended pursuant to a resclution in wiiting of all directors dated
Fetwuary 9, 2002 and the assessment penod tor vesling the [ncentive Shares were sel to be 2012 o
2014

Dhetails of the 2010 Share Award Plan are as Tollows:
Mumber of shares G631, 580,000

{subject b the lock-up period of 5 years and voling right shall be
retained by Heroic Zone, the immediate holding company of the

Compay, therealles)
Grand date Decembaer 26, 2012
Vesting condition Pesfommance target for each year from 2012 to 2014

The managemend ol the Company considers thatl the vestng condition on perfformance Biget s
achieved amnd afl Incentive Shares would be tansferred Trom the Trostee ultimately. The estimaled i
walwe of the Incentive Shares as at gant date amounting to USHI2E milkon had been recognised in
profit or boss during the vesting period. It was determined by market approach by JLL at the gram
date.

All shares under the 2010 Share Award Plan have been transtenred to selected employees duning the
year ended December 31, 2019 The 2010 Share Award Plan was terminated on December 23, 2019
upon determination by the board of directors.

{b) 2013 Share Award Plan

The Gompany had adopted anocther share award plan {the “2013 Share Award Plan”) pursuant to a
wrilten resolution of all the Company's sharcholders in October 2013, representing 3.0% of the then
issued shares of the Company ab the fime of issuance pursuant o the 2013 Share Award Plan held by
High Zenith Limated {("High Jenfth™) for the recognition and rewasd 1o the contnbution of oertadn
employees and the growth and development of the Group, The resolution also approved the Truslee by
the Company to provide frustee senvices. bor the 2013 Share Award Plan. The voling rights in respect of
the shares hetd by High Zenith will be exercised in accordance with the directon fo be given by Heroic
fone.

If, &t the date of termenation of the 2013 Share Award Plan, High Zenith holds any shares which have
nat been sl aside pursuant to the terms of the 2013 Share Award Plan in favour of any selecled
employees ol the Company of retains any unulilised funds, the Tiustee shall handle at the discretion of
the board of direclos of the Company according o the then apphcable laws and regulations, Lipon
tesmination of the 2013 Share Award Plan, all e shases and other destributions provisionally awarded
o a selected employes o the extent not already vested pursuant o the terms of the 2013 Share Award
Plan, shall beconwe vested on such seleded employes and any shares which are nol vested in
accordance with the tesms of the 2013 Share Award Plan or are forfeited in accordance with the terms
thereunder, shall be handled at the discretion of the board of directors of the Company according lo
the then applicable byws and regulations, High Jemith was herety regarded as a specil purpose entity
of the Gioup accordingly
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

40. SHARE INCENTIVE SCHEMES {Continued)
{b) 2013 Share Award Plan {Conlinued)
On October 23, 2013, 380,877,333 newly issued shares of USH0.0001 each were allotted to High
Zenith pursuant 1o the 2013 Share Award Plan as sel oul above.

W ‘Wan Long was granted 350,877 333 chares (the “Awarded Shares"} under the 2013 Share Award
Plan on Agnl 28, 2017, subject to the terms and condiions et oul in the relevant award notice and
under the mles of the 2013 Shate Award Plan {the “Award")

The management of the Company considers that the vesting condition on the atlainment of financial
tanget for 2017 has been achieved. The estimated fair value of the Awaded Shares as al the grant
diale amounting o US$278 million was recopnised in prolit of less o the year ended Decombas 31,
2007, The fair valre of the Awarded Shaves was determined by the madkel approach by JLL al the
grant dale

Al shawes under the 2013 Share Award Plan have beon ansferred to M. Wan Long during the year
ended December 31, 2019 The 213 Share Award Plan was terminated on June 28, 201% upon
determination by the board of directods,

(c) Pre-IPD share option
The pre-lPO share oplion scheme was adopled pursuant o a writben resolfion passed by the
shareholders of the Company on January 21, 2014 as amended on Apnl 4, 2014, the purpose of which
B to incenfivise and reward eligible parbicipants of the scheme, incleding directors and employess of
the Company o1 ils subsidianes by reason of their contribution or potential confribution to the Company
andiod any of (15 subsidinies

Iiv July 2014, the number of shares in respect of which oplions had been granted under the pieIPO
share oplion scheme was 584, 795 555, with an exercise price of HE$6.20 per share, representing no
mene than 5% of the then msued share capital of the Company upon completion o the sting on e
Sfock Exchange. Mo conssderation was paid by the graniees for the grant of the pre-1PO share oplions.

The fair value of the predPO share oplions granted using the Binomial Option Pricing Model was
HE$1 883 millicn {equivalent o approximately LIS$243 million), which was measured by ILL,

The key inputs inte e model were as lolbows:

Share price HE$6. 66
Exercise price HEpa, 20
Ciption hile: 10 yeaars
Expected volatility 42%
Risk-lree rate 2.06%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

40. SHARE INCENTIVE SCHEMES (Continued)
{c) Pre-1PO share option (Conlinued)
The expected volatility was delermined by using the historical volatility of the selected comparable
companies m the same industy,

The following lable disclses details of the Group's culstanding share oplions under the pre-IP0 share
option scheme and ther movements duning the yea

Frer i) dhiew

oplioR SChaTe: By 10, X8 SXUNGSM ) 2N000 a5, LED MENT IRATOESN S DMBGAT LB G GAREIN 60508 NG
[T

ined of Fu psar W] o AR S0

In respect of the share oplions exercised during the year, the weighted average share price al the dates
ol exercise s HKSS 60 (2008 HK$7 23)

For the year ended December 31, 2019 the Group recognised a share-based payment expense of
USSR milbon (2008 LEE21 milbion) in relation 1o the pred PO shore option schwense

41. COMMITMENTS

{a:l The Group had the I|||I-:r~ing_ cap®al commitrments al the end of the epoating period:

2019

Us% million

Contracted, bul nod provided Tor:

Capalal contribution to a point venbee 165 125
Acaquisibon ol progesty, plant and equipment 68 94
Properties under developmen! 14 e

{b) Operating lease commitments as at December 31, 2018
The Group as lesses was committed to make the following lubure minimum lease payments under non-
canceilable operatimg leases which fall due as lolkevs:

Withan oné year =14
In the second to ilth yesr inchsive 1§34
Alber Tive years 134

g0 ]

Leases were negoladed for a lease berm of 3 bo 50 years. The Group did notb have an oplon 1o
purchase the leased assels upon the expiry of the lease periods
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

42. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

2019

USS'million

Pledged bank balances 45 58

As at December 31, 2019 and Deceinber 31, 2018, the Giowp's maenal LS, subsidanes are poantly and
severally liable for, as primary obfigors, the obligations under certain banking facilities

Somihiield Recebables Fundmg, LLC, 8 wholly-owned subsidiny of the Group, has a secuitisation Laality that
matures i Movember 2021, As parl of the amangement, cedain rade seceivables are sold to a wholly-owned
“bankrupbcy remole” specal purpose vehicke (P3P The 5PY pledges the receivables as secunly for loans
and letters of credit. The 5PV is included in the consokdated financial statements of fimancial position of the
Group. Hosever, the bade receivables owned by the 5P are separate and destinet from the other assets and
are nol available to other creditors of Smithliekd i Srithfiekd was o become insobéent. As af December 31,
2019, ihe SPY held USHEE51 million (3018 USHSE35 million) of bade receivables and had oulstanding
bodrowings of USERS milkon (2018 USEXIT millen) on the secuditisation faclity. Mo linancil « olhes
suppart 1o this SPY was provided by the Group as at December 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

43, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
The Growup s subgect to vanious laws and regulations adoenistered by jurisdictional government enliies. The
Group had nolices and inquirees from regulatory authorities and ofhers asserting from time 1o fime that the
Group 15 ned in compliance with the respective laws and regulations. In some avstances, litigation ensues amd
individuals may infiate litgation against the Group

Morth Carolina Muisance Litipation

In August, September and October 2004, 25 complaints were filed i the United States District Count for the
Eastern Disteict of Morth Caroling by 515 indivicusl plaintilts agamst the Group's wholly owned subsidiary,
Murphy-Brown LLC {"Murphy-Brown™), aleging causes of action for nuisance and related claims. The
complaints stommed from the nuissance cases praviously Tiked in the Superior Court of Wake County.
Subsequent to this inital filing, cemain plaintitfs joleed the complants and in esponse BMuiphy Brown has
filed its answers and aflimabive defense, all the complainls were amended pursuant o the Cout’s order and
some plaintidls dismissed their clhins during the process of discovery. As of December 31, 2017, there were
26 cwrenily pending complants which inclided claims on behall of 511 plaintifis and relate o
approgimately 14 company-owned and 75 conbract larms. All 26 complaints include causes ol aclion for
temporary nuisance and neglgence and seek recovery of an unspeciied amount of compensatory, special
and punitive damages.

In December 2017, an order was issued by the United States. Distict Court for the Eastesn District of North
Carolina setting a date for the first trial, Apsil 2, 2018, and establshing the protocol Tor all subsequent tials,
These treds rebled 10 5 of the 26 complaints and 2 tolal of B2 plaintifls,

On April 26, 2018, a verdicl was reached i favor of ten plaintifls in the fist trial. For each plamtill, the jury
awarded USE?S,000 in compensatory damages and USES million in punitive damages, As North Carolina Law
limits punitive damages to e greater of three times compensatory damages or US$H250,000, the cour
reduced the ameunt the jury awarded to each plaintill for punifive damages to US$250 000, resulling in a
tobal aweid of USESZS millien for the ten plaintitts combined. The Group has appealed the verdict of the fiist
trial to the Lhnited States Courd of Appeals for the Fourth Circuil

On June 29, 2018, a werdict was reached in lavor of two plaintifis in the second trial. For each plaintiff, the
jury awarded US365000 in compensatory damages and USH125 millisn in punitive damages. As a result of
the it on pusitive damages, e court seduced the amount the ury swarded to each plaintit! for punitive
damages to US$EIS0 000, resulling in a folal award of US$E30,000 1o the two plaintifis combined. The
Group has appeated the verdict of the second Irial 1o the Uited States Court of Appeals for the Fourth
Gircuit.

On August 3, 2018, a verdict was resched in favor of Six plaintifts in the third tial. For each plaintdl, the
jury awarded approximately US$39 milion in compensatery  damages and USEFPS million in punitive
darmages. As a esull of the limet on punitive dameages, the court reduced the amount the iy awarded o
each plantil for punitive damages to US$11.75 million, resulting in a tstal sward of LS9 millisn for the six
plainlidts combaned. The Group will appeal the verdicl of the hird ial to the United Slates Comt of Appeals
ioe the Fourth Circuit
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

43, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continuced)

North Carolina Nuisance Litigation (Conlinued)

On December 13, 2018 a verdicl was reached in favor of eight plaintifis in the fourth trial. Howeser, unlike
all the prévows triaks, he damages svarded in has sl were Tiwled o compensatoy damages only and
varied per plaintifl, In total, compensatory damages awarded were USET02 400, which was comprised of
USHL00 awards (or fowr ol the peaintifts, US$1,000 esch 1o two plantiffls, US$25.000 to one plantifll and
USHF5. 000 o the last plantifl. The courd demied, as a maller of lw, the phantiffs’ claim for punitive
damages,

On March 7, 2089 a verdict was reached in favor of ten plaintifts in the filth tial The jury awarded
US$33.000 in compensatory damages and US$57 000 in punitive damages fo tvo of the len plaintiffs,
UISFN0.000 dn compensatory damages and USEH0000 in punitive damages 1o seven of the plaintitls, and
US33,000 in compensatory damages and USHE7 000 in punitive damages to one plaintiff. The Group will file
a post-nal motion seeking a reduction in the award and il denied, will appeal the verdict of the fth tnal to
the United States Coant of Appeals for the Fourth Cueuit

O June 3, 2009, the United States District Court Tor the Eastem District of North Caroling issued an order
staying the Merth Carclina lftigation in its entitely pending the resolution of Murphy-Brown's Fowrth Circuit
appeal of the: verdict in the first trial

Cral argument on Murply-Brown's Fourth Circuit appeal of the verdict in the fast trial was held on January
31, 2020 As of the date of approval for the ssuance of these consolidated financial statements, e
appellate coul has not announced #s ruling on the appeal.

The Group continues to believe that the claims of e plantilfs are unlounded and s delending these suils
wigoroaEsly.

The Group's policy for establishing accruals and disclosures for contingent l&abilities s set out in note 3 to
the consolidated financil statement. The Group established a resene Tor the estimated expenses o defend
against these and similar polential clainrs, which was subsequently re-evaluated,

Expenses and other fiabifites assocated with these ol will nol alfect the Group's profits of losses in
future periods unless the provision proves o be insufficient or excessive However, legal expenses incurred in
the Group's defense of these clhime and any payments made to plamtilts through unlavorable verdicls o
otherwise will negalively impact its cash flows and Bs liquidity position. The directors of the Company will
continue o eviluate and adjust the provision as necessary upon changes in laclks and ciroumstances.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

44, RELATED PARTY TRAMSACTIONS
{a) The Group had the following significant transactions with associatesfoint veniures during the years

208

WEE million

Sales ol goods to associales [ ]
Sales ol goods b peant ventues 15 12
Purchase of goods (rom assoceles 40 61
Purchase of goods from joint ventures 20 2

{I]:I Baanoes with assocelesoint ventures al e end of e reporting pénod

2018

Us% million

Included in:

Trade and bills receivables il 1
Prepayments, ofher receivables and ollwy assels 18

Trade payables . 1
fecreed expenses and olher payables 13 3l

{c) Compensation of key management personnel of the Group
The remunsration of key management personnel, representing amaluments ol directors of the Company
and semiorn msanEAgeenl of the -:‘Jr¢|||| pasdpavabbe dunng the penod under reswew 5 sel ool below

Year ended December 31,

2018 A8
WSS 'million LSS ol oy

[hrector leas — .

Basic salanes and allowances a ]

Performance bomuses it 4

Retiwement benefit scheme contributions — -

Share-based paymenis 4 11

Total compensation paid 10 key management pessonnel ia 24
. Less than LISET m

A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

2018

USS'million

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Interests i unlisied subsidiaries 5,145 5141
CURRENT ASSETS
Amounts due from subsidianes 127 122
Prepayments, other receivables and other assels —t 1
Bank balances and cash 2 T ‘
129 123

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Amounts due fo subsidiaries 37 E
Ciher payablbes 2 2
138 366

 NEE GHRAENT LMBILIVIES ) (203)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 4,933 4,598
NET ASSETS 4 935 4,598

CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Shae capatal {Mole 38) 1 1
Shate premium 2,982 2834
Teanslation reserve :3] al
Other resere 231 1213
Retained profits 1,660 2]
TOTAL ECHIETY 4,935 4,898

Less than U531 milkon
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

45, STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
Movements in the Company's reserves

Share Ghare  Transimsn Othes Retained

capital prem ivm IESErTE IRSEIVE peodits Total

At danuary 1. 2018 1 2521 &1 L1%5 o2 4881

Prodit and tolsl comprehansas

- - - - LR
— = - - 05
21 2
-
14} g
== 3 = 17 i 17

&t December 31, 2018 and

Jangary 1, 2019 1 2834 L] 1,213 L] 4. 895

Profit and tokal comprehensme
feoime 16r (e VST —_ - n — -\!T; na
[vidend (Mol 13) — = = = {375) 375

4-based

e FNEND [RAT = = — (973} 973 —

f shiares upon exerciss of

Tarmiration

At Decamber 31, 2019 1 2 942 L] 23 1,500 4,835

Hode

Crher resssm comprises the far vales of shale opticrs granted
capiml when ike relaind cpbong are eeercind, of Do i

= Liems tham LISEE milion
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46, NON-WHOLLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE MATERIAL NON-COMTROLLING INTERESTS
The table below shows the delals of nonswholly-owned subsideanes of the Group thal have materal non
controling Interesls al the end of the reporling period:

Prale allocabed ba nom Kecumulabed nos-

Mame ol ssbhadury [ 1beiesin [ WErELis

(R ARERAERFR R T nina 28.59% 26 75 220 209 [+ ] G5

ndeidually imr

230 210 TES &3

summansed financial mioomation n orespect of Shuanghal Developrment thal has matersal  non- combrolling
interests s set oul belew The swmmarised financial infopmation below represents the amounts. befone
infragroup climinations.

Az at December 31,

2019

USE million
Mon-curent assets 1,774 1,833
Current assets 2 347 1.424
Currend labilities {1,619} {1, 186)
Madi-Clirieanl |sabadiles {45} (32)
Equity afinbutalde 1o owaers of Shuangha Devedoprment (2,365} {1 B=a)
Mom-controlling interests of Shuanghol Development's subsidisnies BG 150
Non-controlling interests of Shuanghui Development [ ] Tt
755 654

190 WHGROUP LIMITED &UIAL REPCRT 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

46, NOM-WHOLLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
(Continued)

Year ended December 31,

2018
US$ miltion

Revenus 8,683 ¥ 3590
Tedal expenses {7.879) (6,623
Profit for the year 814 167
Ched comprehensive ncoms - -
Total comprebensive incomse lor e yem a14 fi
Profit atiributabde o owners of the Company 504 558

Profit attributable 1o the non-controlfing interests of Shuanghui
Development's subsidiaries 5 10

Pralit altributabde to the non-contiolling interests of Shuanghui
Development 215 199
Bi4 Fi-Ys

Davidends paid 1o nop-controlling interests of Shuanghui

Development's subsidiaries 18 17
Mel cash inflow from operating activities 631 785
Mel cash oullflow from nvesting acthalies (198) {3400
Mel cash outflow froeem fimancing activities (337 (960)
Mel cash inflow Coutflow) o5 (515)

Lesa 1han LISEY miflign

AMINRL RERORT 2013 WH GROUF LIMITED 1m
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

47. OTHER COMPREHEMSIVE EXPENSE
Oiver reserve included the fasr value of the share oplions, share awards, remeasurement deficil of ihe
defined benelil pemsion plans and fair value surplus in cash llow hedge atlribuelabde 1o the Groug,

USS million

Other comprehensive expense inclheades:
Ieers Ghat will nod b eckassified subsequently bo profit of loss:

Remessurement on delined benelil pension pians (192} {n
Income tax refating to defined benefld pension plans 49 1
(143} 6]

lterms that may be reclassitied subsequently to profit or loss:

Exchamge dillerences arising on translation of loremn operations {51} {198)
Fair walue change in cash flow hedge 249 8
_Income: tax relaling 1o cash fhow hedge {14} {2
(37} {192)

Other comprehensive expense, nel of income tax (1791 {158)

48, EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD

The outtreak ol coronavirus disease 2019 ("COVID-19"} s binging unprecedenied challenges 1o all
mdustries. As The lirst imperative of the Company s to sateguard the health of its employess and 10 ensure
the quality of s products, a wide range ol measures such as enhanced cleaning and disinfection, boosted
personal profective equipment and restncting nonessential wsitors were implemented, In order be mmimize the
disruptions of COVID-19 on its ordinary operation and to assure the continuily of its business, the Company
also veshuifled its production activities, reorganised s sales channek and adjusted its produect mic As pork
products are consumer skaples, the Company believe that the impact of COVID-19 i manageable undes
current assessment, Yel the Company is highly cautioss about the latest development and the later
implications of the pandernic

a2 WH GROUF LIMITED AL REPCAT 2019

290/315



EDINETOOOO

O00DOo00oOo0ooo00oOo0ooOO(E30533)
oOoOooodn

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

49, PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
Details of the Company's principal subsidiares at December 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018 are as

Tollows:

Rotary Voo Limaded Huegy Frgg e diary WO (15 fae. irirslTeanl kA afed Dadey
g A S0t
EIME: HIEZD S22 B0 111
Shurgfus Develogment Chang 1341% .05 Irrvestment DoAding. Wessboch
Mole 10 v ik, S AT,
e and e ol
i TR el it
sratuct
Cerathbels 153 Hotg 3 i (e vl bradig beelach
Dreadng, WveR ook BRENTIE

afuieclire o Gl o
prihicis

Mot 1 !t Shanzhes Sictk Sichengs and fegipeied 56 § bmdad Babtdily cormpany

hoaw 2 The par vilus of the common shates of it subteisdy i 2erd

The above table Bsts ihe principal subsidianes of the Company which, in the opinken ol the directess of the
Company, mincipally affecled the resulls for the year o formed a substantial portion of the consolidated et

assets, To ghe details of all the subsidanes would, m the opinion of he directors of the Company, resull in

particulars of excessive length

AMINRL RERORT 2013 WH GROUF LIMITED 193
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR"S REPORT

To the shareholders of WH Group Limited
(Incorporated iIn the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of WH Group Limited (the
“ Company” ) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “ Group” )
set out on pages 63 to 193, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2019, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2019, and
of 1ts consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“ IFRSs” ) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing

(“ HKSAs” ) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(* HKICPA” ). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor®s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
Sstatements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA*"s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the * Code” ),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each
matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided
in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor®s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section
of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit
included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements.
The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to
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address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter

Fair value measurement of live hogs
included in biological assets

The carrying value of the Group®s live
hogs included in biological assets
amounted to US$1,101 million,
representing 6.4% of the Group®s total
assets as at 31 December 2019. The
carrying value of live hogs was
measured at fair value less costs to
sell, which was determined based on
the price of hogs in the actively
traded market, reduced by the breeding
costs required to raise the hogs to be
slaughtered, the estimated margins
that would be required by a raiser,
and costs to sell with reference to
the latest budgets approved by the
management. The Group engaged an
independent qualified valuer to
perform the live hog valuations. We
identified the fair value measurement
of these live hogs as a key audit
matter because of the significant
degree of judgement involved in the
valuations to determine the fair value
less costs to sell of live hogs.

Disclosures of determination of the
fair value less costs to sell and the
key assumptions involved are included
in notes 4 and 18 to the consolidated
financial statements.

309/315

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

Our procedures in relation to assessing
the fair value measurement of live hogs
included in biological assets included:

O Understanding how the management
determined the fair value
measurement of live hogs included in
biological assets, including the
involvement of the independent
valuer;

O Evaluating the competence,
capabilities, independence and
objectivity of the independent
valuer;

O Reviewing the valuation model
prepared by the independent valuer
in determining the fair value less
costs to sell of live hogs;

O Evaluating the market price of live
hogs to the available market data,
on a sample basis; and

O Evaluating the estimates of breeding
costs required to raise the live
hogs and estimated margins that
would be required by a raiser and
costs to sell against the historical
performance and budgets approved by
the management.
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Other information included in the Annual Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor®s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view In accordance
with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group®s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group®s financial reporting process.

Auditor®s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor®s report
that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but iIs not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
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are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement
and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

O

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that i1s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group®s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors® use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group®s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention iIn our auditor™s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor®s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
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any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor®s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor®s
report is Ms. CHIU, Caroline Su Yuen.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

24March 2020
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